STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 3, 2015 10:00 A.M.
DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA
AGENDA

MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN

VICE-CHAIRMAN

JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners
for the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey
County Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and

during this meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted
agenda.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for November 3, 2015
4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for October 6, 2015

CONSENT AGENDA
(All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member of
the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and

acted upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak. ) -

5. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 10/23/15 for $333,085.99. Accounts Payable
Checks date 10/16/15 for $936,582.70 and $6,490.81(except for check 83580 for $4,500.00)




6. For possible action cancellation of the November 17, 2015 and December 15, 2015 Board of
County Commissioner’s Meeting.

7. For possible action approval of Assessor's petition to designate taxes on certain personal
property as uncoliectible.

8. For possible action approval of Business Licenses First Readings:

A.

B.

C.

D.

RENO PROVISIONS - General / 100 North Sierra ~ Reno (food truck)
FLEXIBLE ASSEMBLY SYSTEMS - Contractor / 9240 Mira Esbe Ct. ~ San Diego (tools

distributor)

US TEST & BALANCE CORP - Contractor / 10 Corporate Park Dr ~ Hopewell Junction,
NY (hvac)

SUNRUN INSTALLATION SVC - Contractor / 595 Market ~ San Francisco, CA (pv
installer)

LABEEG BUILDING SVCS - General / 225 Keystone Avenue ~ Reno (janitorial service)
XL LANDSCAPE DEVELOPMENT, LLC - Contractor / 4460 Riviera Ridge ~ Las Vegas

(landscaper)

MODERN MINING SOLUTIONS, LLC - General /1280 Alexandria Court TRI
SIMPSON GUMPERTZ & HEGER, INC. - Professional / 41 Sevon St ~ Waltham, MA (eng
SVCs.)

JAMES MAGGARD DESIGN CONS - Professional / 14665 Ambric Knolls ~ Saratoga, CA
(eng)

GRAYBAR ELECTRIC CO - Contractor / 150 East Greg Street ~ Sparks (electrical
distributor)

SHRED-IT RENO - Contractor / 8670 Technology Way ~ Reno (document destruction
contractor) :

JUGGERNAUT SERVICES, LLC dba Square 1 Solutions ~ Professional / 780 Smithridge
Drive ~ Reno (staffing solutions)

M. DUSOUTH INDUSTRIES dba DST Controls - Contractor / 651 Stone Road ~ Benicia, CA

(IT svcs.)
END OF CONSENT AGENDA

9. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff

10. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

11. DISCUSSION ONLY: Presentation by Ed James of the Carson Water Subconservancy District
(CWSD) including an overview of activities of the CWSD and impacts on the Carson River
Watershed area caused by the drought. The presentation will also include various programs
such as flood preparedness, regional water supply, the CWSD watershed literacy survey, flood
planning and education.

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of the TRI Public-Partnership for the year ended
June 30, 2014.

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of check 83580 for $4,500.00 to Buck of Blood
Saloon.




14.

15.

DISCUSSION ONLY: Workshop on nuisances and the appropriate procedures to deal with
nuisance’s and discussion on a proposed ordinance No. 15-267 amending Storey County Code
Title 8, Health and Safety by adding chapter 8.01 Nuisances, providing a uniform process for
abating all the different nuisance complaints in the code. The existing nuisance procedures in
other parts of the Code in title 6, 8, 13, 15 and 17 are amended to be consistent with the new
chapter.

DISCUSSION/ POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve second reading of Ordinance 15-266 an
ordinance amending Storey County Code section 17.12.064 Public Utility Uses to establish a
procedure for permitting aboveground utility projects and renewable energy generation projects
and providing for other properly related matters.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

16.

17.

18.

19.

DISCUSSION ONLY: Presentation by planning staff on the status of the comprehensive update
to the Storey County Master Plan. The presentation is provided pursuant to Storey County Code
Title 16A and 17A establishing minimum interim requirements for subdivision map approvals
and limiting master plan amendments for approvals of planned unit developments during the
master plan approval process, and providing for other properly related matters.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve first reading of Ordinance 15-270, an ordinance
extending interim development regulations affecting Title 16 and 17 of the Storey County Code
by extending through June 30, 2016 Title 16A establishing minimum interim requirements for
subdivision map approvals and Title 17A by limiting master plan amendments for approvals of
planned unit developments during the master plan approval process, and providing for other
properly related matters. The moratorium on subdivisions and planned unit developments will
be in effect until the comprehensive update to the Storey County Master Plan is adopted, or July
1, 2016, whichever comes first.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: (Continue item until 01/19/16 board meeting). Application
No. 2014-021 (Continued from 06/01/15 meeting) by the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LL.C.,
and Storey County on behalf of The Nature Conservancy, I.LC and the Union Pacific Railroad
Company to amend the Official Storey County Zoning Map. The amendments will apply
regulatory zones to approximately 600 acres of land located in McCarran, Nevada (River District
near the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center) which was in July of 2014 transferred from Washoe
County to Storey County by mean of boundary line adjustment. Additional information
including, but not limited to, reports and maps may be obtained from the Planning Department
at 775.847.1144 or planning@storeycounty.org.

FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:
A. RED-D-ARC, INC, - Contractor / 685A Lee Industrial Boulevard ~ Austell, GA (ind.
equipment sales)
B. PANASONIC ENERGY OF N.A. - General / Electric Avenue (lithium-ion battery
manufacturing) TRI
C. SUMMIT CONTRACTING, LLC - Contractor / 120 North Lime St ~ Lancaster, PA
(insulation contractor)




=

T 9

o

i

©c =z £

SRR ORe

SYSTEMS CONTRACTORS, INC. - Contractor / 701 South Carson Street ~ Carson City

(steel erectors)
HIGH DESERT SURFACE PREP -- Contractor / 1885 Temple Hill Rd ~ Reno (concrete

prep contractor)

SANKYO USA, INC. - Contractor / 1555 Mittel Blvd ~ Wood Dale, IL (cargo handling
svcs.)

STEP BY STEP - Home Business / 2321 Cartwright Road ~ VCH (foot care nurse - no
public traffic)

OAKRIDGE INDUSTRIES, INC. - Contractor / 352 East Monterey ~ Pomona, CA (epoxy
coatings)

SOLUM CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 10105 Indian Ridge ~ Reno (contractor)
VERITAS MANAGED SOLUTIONS, INC. -~ General / 5302 Greenside Drive ~ San Jose,
CA (IT)

CMC STEEL FABRICATORS, INC. - Contractor / 2990 East Annadale ~ Fresno, CA (rebar
cont}

INDUSTRIAL LOGISTICS - Contractor / 3868 Goni Road ~ Carson City (machinery
transport, sales)

. MESA FIRE SERVICES, INC. -~ Contractor / 7442 Tahoe Basin Drive ~ Las Vegas (fire

protection)

CARR ELECTRICAL TECH, INC. ~ Contractor / 2929 Quality Dr ~ Petersburg, VA (elect
cont)

DESERT COMMERCIAL SWEEPING - Contractor / 5620 Madras St ~ Carson City
(indust. sweeping)

JC ROOFING, INC. - Contractor / 10580 N McCarran ~ Reno (roofing contractor)

C & M CLEANING - Home Business / 137 D Street ~ Virginia City (cleaning service—no
public traffic)

RYAN'S ROCK & HOE - Contractor / 274 North A Street ~ Virginia City (dirt hauling)

BI NUTRACEUTICALS, INC. - General/ 625 Waltham Way #101 (milling botanicals)TRI
A-Z TRUCK MARINE AND RV - General / 3033 Waltham Way (repair, parts, access.)TRI
RICH DOSS, INC. — General / 201 Wild Horse Canyon Drive (transportation) MCC

20. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

21. ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE:

Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be imited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

4




Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners” Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

Storey County is an equal opportunity provider and employer.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa Stephens , Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before October 28, 2015; Virginia
City Post Office at 132 S C St, Virginia City, NV, the Storey County Courthouse located at 26 S B St,
Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N C St, Virginia City, NV, the
Virginia City Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, VC Highlands, NV and
Lockwood Fire Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV.

Vanessa Stephen elrk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: November 3, 2015 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: Approval of minutes for October 6, 2015

2. Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 775 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Minutes are attached.

5. Supporting materials: Attached.

6. Fiscal impact: N/A

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: N/A
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
"35 Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[ Approved

] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied

Continued

Agenda Item No. 4




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 6, 2015 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman Gilman, Commissioner McGuffey, County Manager
Pat Whitten, District Attorney Anne Langer, Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, Outside Counsel Robert
Morris, Administrative Officer/ Planning Director Austin Osborne, Planner Jason Van Havel, Sheriff
Gerald Antinoro, Public Works Director Mike Nevin, Fire Chief Gary Hames, Chief Deputy Melanie
Keener

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.
The meeting was called to order by the Chair at 10:00am

2, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Chair led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for October 6, 2015

County Manager Pat Whitten requested that Consent Agenda Item 8 be deleted- rescheduling of the
meeting is no longer necessary- and to move Item 20 before Item 17.

Planning Director Austin Osborne requested continuance of Item 16 to November 2, 2015; Items 22
and 23 to October 19, 2015. Mr. Whitten corrected the October 19th date is now October 20, 2015.

Public comment:

Virginia City Resident, Mark Joseph Phillips: In regards to Agenda Item 14, Mr. Phillips
requested this item be separated into two items - one for the general liquor license and general
business license for the Delta Saloon as 14A. And, 14B for the general business license and regular
liquor license for the Bonanza Saloon. Dr. Vincent Malfitano applicant on both items. Mr. Phillips
further suggested the Board convene as the Liquor Board while hearing these items.




County Manager Whitten stated the notice at the beginning of the Agenda states that this Board also
serves as the Liquor and Gaming Board, amongst other boards. Mr. Whitten concurs that item 14 be
heard as 14A and 14B, with the liquor licenses for the Delta and the Bonanza combined as 14A, and
the general licenses for the Delta and the Bonanza combined as 14B.

Outside Counsel Robert Morris said he believes there is sufficient notice that the Liquor Board is
going to take action based on the initial paragraph in the Agenda to be able to go ahead with the
item today.

Chairman McBride reviewed corrections/changes to the agenda as follows: Removal of item 8 on
the Consent Agenda, continuance of item 16 to November 2, 2015 and items 22 and 23 to October 20,
2015. Divide agenda item 14 into 14A - to approve liquor licenses, and 14B - to approve general
licenses. Move item 20 to be heard before item 17.

Motion: Approve the Agenda for October 6, 2015, with changes as indicated, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried
by unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=3)

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for August 18, 2015

District Attorney Anne Langer explained the August 18t Minutes had been approved at a previous
meeting. Vice Chairman Gilman was not present at the August 18% meeting and had voted to
approve the minutes. For that reason, the August 18t Minutes are requested to be re-approved by
the two Commissioners present at that meeting.

Mr. Whitten noted the incorrect spelling of Fritz Klingler on the Roll Call of the minutes.

Motion: Approve the Minutes for August 18, 2015, with correction of spelling of Fritz Klingler
under the Roll Call, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey, Seconded by:
Chair McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=2)

5. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for September 1, 2015

Motion: Approve the Minutes for September 1, 2015, Action: Appove, Moved by: Vice Chair
Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote
(Summary: Yes=3)

CONSENT AGENDA

6. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 08/28/15 for $439,338.52, date 09/11/15 for
$476,976.73, date 09/14/15 for $117,294.43, date 09/14/15 for $64,037.69 and date 09/25/15 for
$407,693.92. Accounts Payable Checks date 08/04/15 for $499,000.00, 09/04/15 for $211,237.81 and
$10,732.86, date 09/08/15 for $17,529.25 and date 09/18/15 for $3,046,743.17and $6,780.98.

7. For possible action approval of Treasurer Report for August 2015




9. For possible action approval of Business Licenses First Readings:
A. ROCK RAT ADVENTURES, LLC -- General /160 South A Street (guided UTV tours)VC
B. MAVERICK TECHNOLOGIES, LLC - Contractor / 265 Admiral Trost Drive ~ Columbia,

IL (eng)

PAPA FRED’S FOOD (DBA) - General / 1575 Linda Way ~ Sparks (mobile food truck)

PRECISION CONCRETE - Contractor / 1640 West Brooks Avenue ~ N. Las Vegas

{(concrete cont.)

JET.COM - General / 2777 USA Parkway (fulfillment center) TRI

RELIABLE PLUMBING ~ Contractor / 4075 Desatoya ~ Reno (plumbing contractor)

DUKE'S PLUMBING - Contractor / 1424 Industrial Way ~ Gardnerville (plumbing

contractor)

FAMILY LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE - Contractor / 330 River Road ~ Dayton

NEVADA COMMERCIAL COATINGS, LLC - Contractor / 4890 Aircenter Cir ~ Reno

(painting cont.)

J. FARWEST INSULATION - Contractor / 1220 South Sherman St, ~ Anaheim, CA
{(insulation contractor)

K. MIDWEST RECYCLEING SERVICE & SALES, INC. - Contractor / 855 Rowland Springs
Rd ~ Cartersville, GA (install recycling equipment)

L. TILE ALLIANCE, INC. - Contractor / 4615 Aircenter Cir ~ Reno (tile contractor)

M. PETRO SOLUTIONS - General / 2511 Edgerock Road ~ Reno (truck storage @ 3033
Waltham)

N. PLATINUM SCAFFOLDING SERVICES ~ Contractor / 14950 Heathrow Forest ~ Houston
(scaffolding)

O. M G & H CONSULTING, LTD - Home Business / 21570 Dortort Drive ~ VC Highlands
(consultant)

C 0N

—m omm

10. For possible action approval of Sheriff Business Licenses First Reading:
a. The Hatchling House, a home day care in the VC Highlands

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

Motion: Approve the Consent Agenda, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman,
Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (Summary:
Yes=3)

11. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports

Ron Englebrecht, Mark Twain Community Center;
* Anarts and crafts fair will be held at the Community Center in November.
* InDecember, the Community Center will hold its annual spaghetti feed.
* The Veteran's Memorial is under construction and should be completed in time to hold a
dedication on Veteran’s Day. This will be a great presentation with local Vietnam Vets
and American Legion members being invited.




Shaun Griffin, Community Chest :

On October 28 the Health Center will re-open in Virginia City with an attending
physician’s assistant. The Health Center will be open every Wednesday from 8:30 AM to
4PM. There is a possibility that pharmaceutical services will be provided.

Health services will open in Lockwood on Thursday, November 5%, Services will be
available on Thursdays and will be coordinated through the Community Chest Outreach
counselor, Adrienne Sutherland. Services are primarily senior outreach.

On November 21¢, 4 - 6 PM, an author presentation will be given by Heidi Durrow,
critically acclaimed author of The Girl Who Fell From the Sky, at Piper’s Opera House.
Plans are nearing completion and progress continues on Phase 2 of the Community
Center. Requests have been made to six foundations for support. Written commitments to
be returned by November,

Jason VanHavel, Planner:

The Planning Department has been reviewing recent sign variances and issues. A group
has been brought together to discuss issues and potential updates. A public conversation
on this topic and implications of updating the County’s sign zoning will be initiated in the
future.

Austin Osborne, Administrative Officer/Senior Planner:

A "pocket plaza” is being built as a 5 ~ 10 year interim project at the Black & Howell
building. This will include a shade structure, benches and a kiosk.

Work continues on the Courthouse parking lot. Comstock Mining, Inc. will be providing
rip-rap at a low cost to be utilized in stabilizing the slopes at the back of the parking lot.
This project goes out to bid this week. A mandatory contract meeting will be held at the
site before bids are accepted.

State Route 342 is closed for completion of the 2nd phase of the road project. Work should
be finished by the target date of November 12th,

We continue to work on the Master Plan. Chapters on the website for housing,
transportation, land use and population, are substantially complete. The Largamasino
plan is complete and on the website. March 2016 is the anticipated date for completion
and presentation to the Board. Written comments and questions from the public
regarding the Master Plan are encouraged. Comments become part of the record
supporting the Master Plan and should be directed to the Planning Department.

The entire Master Plan is a draft. Numbers and dates will be assigned in the future.

Mr. Osborne continues to meet with BLM and with staff from Congressman Amodei’s
and Congressman Porter’s offices regarding the land conveyance between BLM and
Storey County. Bill draft language for the next Congressional session is being prepared.
A review of Storey County employee health benefits plans has begun in preparation for
the annual employee benefits fair to be held in May. An employee committee will be set
up to discuss any issues.




Gary Hames, Fire Chief:

» Thank you to the staff for their work and support during the Chief's recent absence.

» Fire crew fuel management activities should begin next week in the Highlands. The
new excavator will be used to complete this work. After the Highlands, work will
continue at Six Mile Canyon and the top of Bailey’s Canyon. A presentation will be
given this month at each of the Highlands Homeowner Association Boards regarding
the work to be done. A fuels foreman will go door-to-door to discuss fuel management
with residents.

» Fire Station 75 is now fully staffed. Since being staffed, call volume has quadrupled.
An additional dorm-room has been installed by Public Works. We are working with
REMSA regarding response issues.

¢ An opening burning press release was issued this week primarily for Mark Twain and
Painted Rocks. There is no open burning allowed in the Highlands.

¢ The aerial platform for Station 75 was delivered to Las Vegas for refurbishment.
Hopefully the platform will be in service by the first of the year.

¢ The CDBG grant for the fourth ambulance is going through. The cab and chassis have
been ordered with delivery after refurbishment in March.

Vice Chair Gilman asked about the call volume and the nature of the calls in TRI at Station 75.

Chief Hames said most of the calls are medical emergencies. In the past, these type of incidents were
most likely transported in private vehicles due to long response times.

Hugh Gallagher, Comptroller:

* The budget to actual process for the first quarter 2015-16 will be scheduled for the next
meeting. At a recent meeting of local Counties fiscal management, attendees were
surprised at the amount of consideration this Board gives to the budget process and the
progress made through this process.

Commissioner McGuffey asked if there was any progress on the V & T Railroad issues.

Mr. Gallagher replied that several outside auditors that were contacted do not have time to complete
an audit of the V & T issues. The County will step up and do it internally. This will be done soon.

Anne Langer, District Attorney:

» The Hoover estate/property has been cleaned up. An auction of items found on the
property is scheduled for October 24 at that location. Time and date will be published
in the newspaper. A lot of the items belong to the Comstock and hopefully these items
will remain here through a private auction.

Pat Whitten, County Manager:
» Present at today’s meeting is former Commissioner Bill Sjovangen as well as the
developer of Tahoe Reno Industrial Center, Don Roger Norman.
« Completion of a cape-seal project on the private portions of Cartwright Road in the
Highlands has been discussed at a previous meeting. Both Homeowner’s Associations
have sent the requisite letter requesting the County’s support and help. The legal

5




department has found an approach allowing the County to do this. Currently the
project will be on hold until the next paving season, which may be May of next year.
The Clerk’s office will post notice of a possible quorum for October 28% and November
5t so that Commissioners can attend the opening of the Health Centers in Virginia City
and Lockwood respectively.

The work done in the parking lot has been some of the best collaboration of County
resources to date. Austin Osborne has done a great job on this project and in obtaining
rip-rap from Comstock Mining at a lower cost.

12. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

Commissioner McGuffey:

Community Development Director Dean Haymore was recently honored by EDAWN
for his great efforts and successes in working with businesses at TRI.

The NACO convention was held last week. Commissioner McGuffey attended and has
completed all mandatory workshops, and has taken additional classes towards
becoming a certified public officer.

Commissioner McGulffey attended the Comstock Mine Portal dedication to Randy
Harris. At the time of the dedication, the portal was about 200 feet deep in and is
progressing 10 feet per day. Giant steel doors with padding have been installed and are
closed during blasting.

Chair McBride:

Lisa Mensa, Department of Agriculture Under-Secretary, recently toured the industrial
park visiting properties that have been given loan guarantees from USDA.

Projects such as the new wastewater treatment plant on Six Mile Canyon are done in
cooperation with the USDA Rural Development, who gives the County grant funds and
loans money for a long period of time at low interest rates. After completion of
projects, USDA sends a representative from Washington to review the property and see
that everything was done to specifications. Kent Evans from Washington recently
toured the facility with representatives from the USDA Carson City office. The County
has been working on replacing the wastewater lines throughout Virginia City and Gold
Hill, a project that would be many phases over many years. Mr. Evans was so
impressed with the how smoothly the treatment plant project was completed, he
suggested the County submit plans for replacement of the system in Virginia City and
Gold Hill.

An application was submitted to the USDA in August. Within 30 days, the USDA
advised the County of being very interested in the project and suggested the County
ask for full funding and one phase - saving money by having one set-up and one tear-
down. The application for full funding was granted and USDA Rural Development has
awarded Storey County a grant of almost $9 million and a low-interest, long term loan
of approximately $4 million. This project can be completed as soon as a bid is awarded.
The County is mandated by EPA to be in compliance with clean drinking and
wastewater. With the assistance of the Federal government, the County has been given
the opportunity to obtain the majority of funds needed to complete the wastewater
system project. This is a sign of good government,

6




* Chair McBride thanked the staff of USDA Rural Development, Carson City, who went
out of their way to make sure the application was submitted timely and approved.
* Chair McBride also attended the NACO conference in Las Vegas,

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve second reading of liquor and general business
license for Storey County School District for Piper’s Opera House

Sheriff Antinoro joined the Commissioners as part of the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board.

County Manager suggested hearing this item as 13A for the liquor license and 13B for the general
business license.

Sheriff Antinoro stated that investigation has been completed on the School Board’s liquor license.
There is no reason to preclude the School Board from obtaining the liquor license and Sheriff
Antinoro recommends approval,

Public comment;
Mark Joseph Phillips, Virginia City Resident: Would like to confirm that it is the School Board of
Trustees that submitted this application.

Sheriff Antinoro replied that it was.

Mr. Whitten indicated that this license is primarily for upstairs and not related to the Corner Bar,
Motion: Approve the liquor license for Storey County School District for Piper’s Opera House,
Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey,

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=3)

Chair McBride stated Item 13B, general business license, would be for selling souvenirs, conducting
events, and the like.

No public comment.

Motion: Approve the general business license for Storey County School District for Piper’s Opera
House, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner
McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=3)

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve liquor and general business license for The
Bonanza and The Delta

Chair McBride said this item will be heard as 14A for liquor license and 14B as general business
license.

Chair McBride disclosed that he is in business on C Street and holds a liquor license, and does not
have a pecuniary interest in either the Delta or Bonanza Saloons.




Vice Chair Gilman disclosed that he operates a business on C Street, and has not pecuniary interest in
the Delta or the Bonanza.

District Attorney Anne Langer presented this item (14A), liquor licenses for the Delta and the
Bonanza.

Ms. Langer said NRS 369.190 would apply to the liquor license regarding both establishments. This
statute discusses applying for a liquor license and that your moral character would be an item that
the Board will, and shall, take into consideration when making their opinion on granting a liquor
license.

In further review of the statute and researching the subject, it came to the attention of the District
Attorney’s office that - 369.190 applies to wineries, breweries - places along that line. When looking
to a general liquor license, what would apply here would be the County Code, Section 5.

Ms. Langer said Outside Counsel, Robert Morris, has done the major research regarding the County
Code and will continue the presentation of the procedures that the Board would like to know prior to
making a decision. ‘ o

Robert Morris discussed legal areas providing the groundwork for the Board’s decision in this matter.

Initially, NRS 244.350 is the authorization allowing Board of County Commissioners to become the
Liquor Board and to pass regulations on the sale of intoxicating liquors in this County, and allows the
County to adopt ordinances for that purpose. The County has adopted two different sections -
chapter 5.04 for business licenses. Chapter 5.12, deals with the sale of alcoholic beverages. The basic
requirements for any license within the County are contained in chapter 5.04. Section 5.04.050 talks
about the need to have a hearing on any license. There is an additional section in the code dealing
with alcoholic beverage licenses having additional requirements. For a business license, Section
5.04.100 gives grounds for the refusal of a license - stating that a license may be refused by any
licensing agency until the applicant complies or agrees to comply with all the other existing
ordinances, laws in force, including the County master plan. A license may be revoked for failure to
comply therewith. Specifically for a business license, any unpaid taxes would be grounds for
refusing a license.

Mr. Morris continued, since this is a license for sales of alcoholic beverages, it's important to look at
that requirement. The first section of 5.12.010, states that all new applicants for a liquor license
authorizing the sale of alcoholic beverages on or off premises, shall provide the County Liquor
License Board with the following primary consideration: a) proof of financial standing to warrant an
expected, satisfactory and profitable business operation. That is to provide the Board evidence to
show that applicant has the financial standing to have a profitable business operation.

This should provide the Board with the basic legal framework for their decision. There is a lower
standard of approval for a business license. Since there is a specific section about the sale of alcoholic
beverages, there is the additional requirement of proof of financial standing - it is important for the
Board to see if there is evidence to show or not to show that.




Mr. Morris said it s important for the Board to specifically call out the reasons why they are voting
one way or the other on an item like this. If there are particular reasons the Board feels convinces a
vote one way or the other, it would be good to put those on the record.

Under the code sections, the Sheriff is to do an investigation into the background. Some of the other
sections are a complete background as to applicant’s criminal record and experience in saloon or
liquor vending businesses. The Sheriff is the one to report to the Board on this matter.

Sheriff Antinoro stated the applicant made application to the County for the liquor license. An
investigation was conducted finding nothing of a criminal nature that would preclude applicant from
having a license. During the course of investigation, there was showing of significant finances and
financial background knowledge to where there would be no reason to expect the business would
fail.

Sheriff Antinoro believes the reason this is being done with such gusto, is because of what happened
recently with this particular applicant with gaming. Gaming has a significantly higher standard than
what the County ordinances have, requiring much larger showing of financial background and
knowledge of the industry - things like that. For the purposes of Storey County liquor licenses and
the licenses we have issued in the past, nothing was found in the applicant’s background or during
the course of the investigation that would preclude him from obtaining a Storey County liquor
license.

Mr. Morris suggested that since the matter of the Gaming Control Board and it's order has been
raised as something that the Board might want to consider, Mr. Morris has a copy of that order and
can provide it for the record. There is one section the Board may want to consider. On page 4,
“Virginia City Gaming, Malfitano and Delta failed to carry their burdens to demonstrate adequate
business competence for the licensing applications. This is demonstrated through the non-disclosure
of business related issues to the Board, significant disclosed and non-disclosed litigation, significant
employment related issues from Malfitano’s assisted living and his prior dental practice, significant
citations and actions by other regulatory agencies concerning Malfitano's assisted living business and
prior dental practice, the existence of numerous prior tax liens, and appearance of significant cash
flow problems.”

Mr. Morris continued the only reason to use that is to consider the financial standing of the applicant
and whether that would assist in deciding whether you could expect the satisfactory and profitable
business operation.

Sheriff Antinoro, again Gaming has an extremely high standard. Several of the State agencies have
standards that far exceed what we have ever given to in Storey County in the past. One regulatory
agency requires you have $20,000 cash sitting in the bank at your disposal for your business. Sheriff
Antinoro does not know specifically what Gaming requires, however in our investigation, Mr.
Malfitano has significant personal holdings.- According to the financial documentation provided to
us, he does have liquid resources along with real property holdings. The CPA familiar with Mr.
Malfitano’s finances said there is no reason why he would not be successful in this endeavor. If we
are to consider what Gaming offers on his financial status, then we should look at what Gaming
requires as the level of proof financial stability. If we are going to hold this applicant to that standard




of what Gaming requires, does that mean we now have to go back and reconsider all other liquor
applicants who may have a difficult time reaching that same threshold.

Mr. Morris reminded the Board that it's not the Gaming requirements that the applicant has to meet.
Basically you are deciding, “proof of financial standing to warrant an expected satisfactory and
profitable business operation”. You're looking at that specific standard of requirement.

Sheriff Antinoro pointed out that the investigative reports have been provided to the Board. While
the personal financials were not included as it contains protected information ~ the bottom line
estimated value of Mr. Malfitano’s holdings, as listed, are in excess of 5 million dollars.

Mr. Morris said the Board could ask the applicant. Chair McBride noted the applicant is not in
attendance: -

Chair McBride indicated that Mr. Malfitano’s general manager is present and prepared to give
testimony.

Mr. Morris indicated the Board has staff’s view of the matter and it’s appropriate for the applicant, or
anyone that wants to speak, to go ahead and give public testimony. It is understood that the Chair
may have testimony as well, and after - if there are any other questions - they could be answered and
the Board could go ahead.

Tina Perkins, current General Manager at the Bonanza and the Delta for Dr. Malfitano, said they have
been working tirelessly preparing the documents. Health inspections were yesterday, which went
very well. The Bonanza restaurant and the bar were approved. Four of the bars in the Delta were
approved - the restaurant was not approved yet as there is a lot of work to be done.

Ms. Perkins continued, at least 15 of the prior employees have been retained. Five from the Sawdust
Restaurant. They are trying to keep everyone employed and everyone who has asked to stay, has
stayed.

Bruce Kiddis, resident of Carson City and friend of Dr. Malfitano for 20 years: Describing the
Gaming Board Commission process in one word - tilt. Mr. Kiddis doubts that any of you could pass
the Gaming Commission if they decided we don’t want them. You can be accused and you don’t get
the documents. That's not the point. This is Virginia City, this is the old west.

Mr. Kiddis continued: This young man has made his money the old-fashioned way. He paid the
seller, Mr. Petrini, 4 million dollars. Mr. Kiddis is sorry if Mr. Petrini regrets selling it. He could have
easily said in the contract - if you don’t get your Gaming License, I get first option to buy it back. He
didn’t. We are sorry to see the machines leave the Delta - they may come back. The whole process is
discouraging. This young man is an entrepreneur and deserves a chance to run a business. If he
doesn’t make it, he’ll go bankrupt or sell it.

Hugh Gallagher, Storey County Comptroller, has a couple of items to remind or advise the
Commission on:
o First and best use going forward - that it was a gaming establishment originally, and the
process was it was going to be continued as such. It is no longer going to be the case;

10




* Profitability at that point in time becomes somewhat “salted down”. Understanding the fact
that the Gaming Control Board decided not to license the applicant, is a big concern - going
forward as to the profitability of those two locations.

* The other side is there has been a number thrown out as to the net worth of the applicant,
which is somewhere around 5 million. Mr. Gallagher is not sure if this is an audited statement
or just an application. If that's the case, that should probably be examined to see if that is not
true.

Chair McBride disclosed that after reading that applicant was denied by the Nevada Gaming Control
Board, Mr. McBride decided to attend the next meeting before the Nevada Gaming Commission -
two weeks later. It was three hours of testimony. As pointed out by Mr. Morris, there has to be
strong financial standing in order to be licensed - not only by liquor regulations but by gaming.
Gaming pointed out a host of different things - lawsuits, foreclosures, delinquent tax payments, tax
liens, default notices, all of these items,

The vote against the applicant from the Gaming Control Board was 3-0 for denial. The Gaming
Commission vote was 5-0 for denial. Talking about financial stability and net worth of
approximately 5 million dollars, dwarfs what Commissioner Townsend on the Gaming Commission
stated - that the debt Mr. Malfitano has is 12 million dollars.

Chair McBride continued that Mr. Kiddis has suggested that Mr. Malfitano paid 4 million dollars for
the properties. Probably true, but no secret that there are large sums of debt attached to this
purchase, in the amount of 2.5 million dollars. Looking at the financials, he is upside-down by 7
million dollars, and has outstanding debt of 2.5 million dollars. Removing gaming from the
properties, and the cash flow by 60 or 70%, does not make a sustainable business.

As pointed out earlier, Chair McBride said he does have a little knowledge when it comes to gaming,
with his family in the business since 1931.

Chair McBride said this would be an up-hill climb when it doesn’t look like there’s any financial
stability in order to operate these two businesses,

Sheriff Antinoro asked what kind of precedent we are setting. An entity has just been licensed
without going through this discussion on finances. We assume the School Board has sufficient
money to keep that license going and run a sustainable business - different type of business,

Even though Mr. Morris says we are not holding him (applicant) to a gaming standard, in essence we
are. Everything being talked about is what Gaming says. If Gaming says there are lawsuits, tax liens,
and judgments - again, do we go back and look at the existing license holders. There are existing
license holders that have suffered some of those same issues. Sheriff Antinoro said he is not judging
the applicant’s business model. As Mr. Gallagher pointed out, Sheriff Antinoro thinks trying to run
(the businesses) just as a bar, that the businesses will probably fail. That is not his decision to make.

Are we going to hold this applicant to a different standard, than what we have in the last five years
and to what the last approval was held to?

11




Chair McBride replied that he doesn’t know if we're holding to a different standard. Under liquor
license provisions in Chapter 5.12, “an applicant is required to provide to County Liquor License
Board the proof of financial standing to one expected, satisfactory profitable business operation”.
Can a profitable operation when the major source of revenue has been taken out

Sheriff Antinoro stated he does not know the breakdown of revenues and does not know what the
entire business plan is for the operation of the buildings. He is looking at the consistent application
of the ordinances and issuance of liquor licenses. It seems to be like a different standard.

Vice Chair Gilman said he has reviewed the Gaming Board's review and analysis. Mr. Gilman
assumes that that Board had well-qualified, investigative staff who looked carefully at this individual
perhaps beyond what this Board would do for a license. If the Gaming Board’s reasons for denial are
followed, how can we - as a body - support a liquor license based on our statutes. The Sheriff has
done his investigation and we have an investigation done in depth by the Gaming Board. Mr.
Gilman does not understand why we're apart because the Gaming Board's investigation was clear
and the violations are clear. The standard wasn't reach for the gaming license or for a liquor license.

Commissioner McGuffey expressed that it was difficult to compare (this item) with the school board
getting a liquor license. They make some money and are trying to help support that old building.

As far as relying on what the Gaming Board says - no, but the information gives an idea of what kind
of person he (Mr. Malfitano) is. Commissioner McGuffey refers to information in the Gaming
Board's decision referring to the applicant’s business background, numerous tax liens, and significant
cash flow problems. Applicant was not qualified to be a landlord. This shows what kind of person
he has been and shows that he lacks probity and does not show integrity to run a business - the way
the Gaming Board sees it.

Sheriff Antinoro replied, again the Gaming Board is holding that position on the basis of their
requirements to hold a gaming license. Storey County has had, and has, license holders who have
judgments and tax liens. Do we go back and review all of those licenses to hold them to a different
standard? We're talking about a Storey County liquor license, not a gaming license. The Sheriff said
he cares that we are applying things equally and fairly across the board to all past, present and future
license holders and applicants.

County Manager Whitten read from page 4 of the gaming order continuing from Mr. Morris left off,
“For the landlord applications, this is demonstrated by significant issues concerning foreclosures,
delinquent tax payments, tax liens and default notices concerning the real property of or business
owned by Malfitano, which indicates Malfitano was not suitable to be the landlord of the gaming
establishment.” These are serious contra-indicators of financial standing,

Mr. Whitten continued that as Sheriff he issued these licenses for six years. He applied similar
standards known in the banking industry where you looked at character and capacity in order to
extend lines of credit. Once he became knowledgeable of the level of concern from gaming, seeing
gaming’s order, it is Mr. Whitten’s opinion, it can’t be denied.

Mr. Whitten said he would argue that if this information was known about every other liquor license
applicant, they should be held to this standard - but we don’t. In the instant case, we know because
of the gaming order and the testimony heard at the Gaming Commission hearing.

12




These are serious indicators of lack of financial strength and ability to conduct a business. Staff’s
recommendation is to deny both liquor based on those findings.

Chair McBride called for additional public comment.

Bruce Kiddis, Carson City Resident: Earlier you approved the September 1st minutes. Ttem 13 refers
to a statement that if Dr. Malfitano were to sever relations with Dewing Gaming to operate the
businesses himself, there would be no delay in obtaining the licenses. There is no reason not to license
Dr. Malfitano except that it would be a duplicate license. Mr. Kiddis addressed Chair McBride and
said the Chair was there and Malfitano’s attorney ~ who had served on the gaming board - argued
the standard for gaming was different from that for being a landlord.

What was said on September 1st is meaningless.

Chair McBride responded: You are correct, that is what was said. Chair McBride said he mis-spoke
and what he should have said - and to correct the record - that you (Malfitano) can come back for
consideration to have the license approved.

Chair McBride continued, your friend’s lawyer - testifying before the Gaming Commission - lost his
argument. He is an expert in gaming law as he was on the Gaming Board. He was amongst his peers
and lost. It rarely happens that a person goes through the application process all the way to denial.
Most of the items there were items that were undisclosed - numerous lawsuits, sexual harassment
settlements, all undisclosed. The six page letter of denial is public record.

Chair McBride said he has to look out for what's good for Storey County, the community of Virginia
City, the taxpayers, and the wellbeing of the people who live and work in the community.

This is the most controversial issue in Chair McBride’s three years on the commission. He has
received phone calls and walk-ups from people who are upset and displeased that the Delta is going
to turn into a sports bar. There’s a history of gaming there (at the Delta),

The Gaming Commission awarded Mr. Dewing, the operator, 90 days to operate giving Mr.
Malfitano time to find other avenues to sell the property, to operator or do something else. He opted
to take this path.

Pat Whitten: One item to clarify. Further in the minutes it does indicate that County Manager
Whitten stated that Sheriff Antinoro has asked Mr. Whitten to explain the licenses will be considered
for approval. So the misstaternent (by Chair McBride) was corrected at the time to indicate they
would be considered. -

Vice Chair Gilman: The statement was - made on what was known at the time. Now there is more
information and it’s important to make the proper decision. Mr. Gilman does not understand why
the two reports and investigations are so different.

Nicole Barde, Storey County Resident: Suggested that before trying to apply a higher standard as
demanded by gaming, go back to the local standard. Is it asked on the liquor license application and
on the business license, for disclosure of the issues that came up at the Gaming Commission.

13




Sheriff Antinoro replied, some of the financial stuff, yes - some of it, no. All of the criminal stuff is
asked for disclosure. There were no omissions by Mr. Malfitano on what we inquired of.

Ms. Barde: If there’s something wrong with our process that allows this level of magnitude of issue
to pass by our investigation, we need to plug that hole. If the application asks for this information
and he failed to disclose it, it seems that it can be denied based on the local requirement. Ms. Barde
is concerned that if a step is taken outside the local regulations and the higher standards of the
Gaming Commission are used, it may have implications and set precedence we may not like. If the
violation is in the regulations, applications, ordinances, that’s clean to say denial. Stepping outside of
that may cause problems. Ms. Barde is not advocating for or against, just saying it leaves you open.

Judy Cohen, C Street business owner and Storey County Resident: Ms. Cohen has a general business
license. No one on C Street likes to see what's happening. Ms. Cohen thinks, if there is a
discrepancy, the statute - whatever it’s called - needs to be looked at.

District Attorney Anne Langer: Before the vote, Ms. Langer said she would like to go over a few
rules. One of the first issues wafting around, is under NRS 369.190, moral character. A lot of the
issues that have come up before the vote, is to look at the Storey County ordinances having to do
with the procedures for getting a liquor license. This comes down to proof of financial standing to
warrant an expected satisfactory and profitable business operation. That's it. Moral character doesn’t
apply. Financial wellbeing under the local ordinance is what you are looking at, and that is what I
would direct you to as Storey County District Attorney.

County Manager Pat Whitten: Staff’s recommendation is to deny both liquor licenses for the grounds
that have been explained, and that you have explained on the record - your concerns.

Ms. Langer: Depending on the motion, whether to approve or deny the license, please make it
specific as to your reasoning behind approval or denial.

Motion: To deny the licenses, the liquor licenses, for both the Bonanza and the Delta, based upon the
probability of financial instability to operate successfully here in Virginia City Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=3, Chair McBride, Vice Chair Gilman and Commissioner
McGuffey; Nay=1, Sheriff Antinoro )

Chair McBride called to hear item 14B, licensing for the general license for the Delta and the Bonanza.
Outside Counsel Robert Motris, addressed the board. If there’s consideration of refusal of a license,
Section 5.04.100, has specific grounds for refusal. Basically, a license can be refused by any agency
until the applicant complies or agrees to comply with all other existing ordinances, law in force,

including the County master plan and license.

This is a general requirement that the applicant abide by existing ordinances and laws. Refusal
would be based on the applicant not complying with existing ordinances and laws.

14




There is a section about any unpaid real property taxes. Mr. Morris understands that this has not
been brought up.

The business license has a different requirement for approval and denial than the liquor license,

County Manager Whitten: It would be staff’s position, subject to further input from legal counsel,
that as far as the Delta is concerned - to the best of his knowledge - they are current on inspection
requirements for both building and fire, and would be eligible to meet the burden of standard.

However, the Bonanza is not. There are fire code issues being worked on currently,

Mr. Whitten said staff’s recommendation is to recommend approval for the Delta and continuation of
the Bonanza, therefore revoking any temporary licenses granted earlier and allow them to operate
without liquor or gaming. The Bonanza would not be allowed to operate.

Commissioner McGuffey asked if in the past they were able to operate their business while making
fire, sprinkler improvements or anything like that. If so, might we entertain that possibility?

Mr. Whitten asked Fire Chief Hames to comment on the status of compliance.

Gary Hames, Storey County Fire Protection District Fire Chief: We have been working with them for
approximately nine months. In our district, the generally accepted practice is six months. We are
over by three months. That building is not safe. Chief Hames understands that at escrow it was
understood that building had to be fire sprinkled. It’s almost a year now. I would recommend that a
general business license is not issued for that facility.

Bruce Kiddis: To the Chief, is there or isn’t there a written agreement that says the sprinklers will be
in by December 31¢t and that was negotiated in the County Manager’s office. Is there or isn’t there?
There is.

Chief Hames: No, there is not. There is an agreement in place that states that it ties back to the
gaming license approval. The gaming license approval was not successful. It is Chief Hames’
opinion that the agreement is null and void as it was tied to the gaming license. That process was not
fulfilled.

Motion: To deny the Bonanza business license and to approve the Delta general business license,
Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey,

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=4)

Chair McBride: And the denial would be lifted upon the time that the sprinkler systems were
completed.

Mr. Whitten: If you're going to do that, they would have to reapply.
The Chair called for recess at 11:42AM; reconvened at 11:53AM

RECESS TO CONVENE AS STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD
15




15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution No. 15-431 approving portal-to-
portal payment for CFAA mutual aid requests.

Fire Chief Gary Hames presented this item. This is a five-party agreement between the Eederal
parties, US Forest Service, BLM, California Office of Emergency Services, Cal-Fire, and local
governments. The agreement allows and promotes portal to portal payments relating to mutual aid
outside of the area over to California, The agreement is portal to portal so that our crews can be run
24 hours per day on fire incidents. Separate from the agreement, a resolution supporting the same
language is required.

Vice Chair Gilman said he understands there is no financial impact, the agreements are already in
place and California has requested the County to address an ordinance to satisfy their requirements.

Chair McBride corrected that it's a resolution not an ordinance.
Commissioner McGuffey asked if there are mutual fees involved.

Chief Hames said yes, this is a reciprocal agreement. The fees are broken down in the agreement that
has been signed for 15 years.

Motion: Approve Resolution No. 15-431 approving portal-to-portal payment for CFAA mutual aid
requests Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner
McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=3)

ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: (Continue until 11/02/15 board meeting) Approve second
reading of Ordinance 15-266 an ordinance amending Storey County Code section 17.12.064 Public
Utility Uses to establish a procedure for permitting aboveground utility projects and renewable
energy generation projects and providing for other properly related matters.

20. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Request by Don Gilman for assistance re ad hoc
rulemaking.

Vice Chair Gilman recuses from discussions and vote as he has a pecuniary interest in the business
operations that will include items 17, 18, 19 and 20.

Donny Gilman, licensed manager of the Mustang Ranch, is before the Board for help related to work
card issues. This includes ad hoc rule changes without notice of what is expected on applications.
Initially all convictions within the last 10 years were to be listed. That progressed to all arrests and
convictions in the past 10 years, then to all arrests and convictions in adult life. Finally to include all
arrests as a minor. All changes have been verbal from the Sheriff’s staff. Although requested,
nothing in writing has been received. This has resulted in issues where individuals have forgotten or
not realized what was, or should have been, on their record ~ causing a ban for life from applying for
a work card and a refusal from the Sheriff's Office to accept a corrected application.

16




Mr. Gilman requests the Board look into this issue.

Mr. Gilman: Regarding renewal of work cards, a person submitting for renewal who has had a card
for several years where everything was listed, and something is forgotten, a work card is
automatically denied and an appearance before the Commission is required. If a person's
information is already on file and a card is approved, why is a “memory test” necessary.

Mr. Gilman: Three workers are present who were recently denied work cards and the right to re-
apply with the corrected work card application to include information that was forgotten. Mr.
Gilman requests the Board to approve these work cards.

Robert Morris: Mr. Gilman is addressing items 17, 18, and 19 and should only address item 20 at this
time.

County Manager Whitten: This item is heard as a combination of Brothel Licensing Board
and County Commission. It would be appropriate to have Sheriff Antinoro join the table as a
member of the Brothel Licensing Board.

Mr. Morris: A rework of the Brothel Ordinance was done earlier this year. A lot of time was spent on
the issues raised. There are two sections of the Code dealing with this issue - the section on work
cards states, “the Sheriff must investigate through all available means the accuracy of all information
supplied by any applicant on the registration form and the Sheriff may issue a work permit after
investigation and determination the applicant meets the work permit requirements”.

There are so many variations on use of discretion that it is impossible to include in the Code. The
position was that the alternative to having discretion laid out in the Code, would be to leave as is or
take away, the discretion of the Sheriff. It was determined to leave the Code as is, knowing that the
Sheriff, as administrator of the work cards, has discretion in the issuance of work permits.

Sheriff Antinoro: There has been no change in the standard. The form states: “have you ever been
arrested - list all arrests and convictions”. In conversation with Mr. Gilman, the brothel keeps
records and would double check when a renewal was submitted to make sure everything is clarified.
It is not the place of the Sheriff to track what their employees do or do not do one year to the next.
Since January, 142 work cards have been processed with 23 revocations - 8 of which were allowed to
re-apply. The Sheriff's Office staff spends approximately 40% of their time on brothel issues.

Mr. Gilman: Not asking for the Sheriff’s discretion to be taken away. Asking to list arrests as a minor
has never been a process for all the year’s Mr. Gilman has worked at the brothel. This is a new issue,
not approved by the licensing board but approved by the Sheriff’s Office. He is willing to submit this
information, but needs to know that it is requested.

Sheriff Antinoro: The form states “all arrests and convictions”. If there is a problem with that the
Sheriff is available by phone. This is the first time the Sheriff is hearing about “minor” arrests.

Mr. Gilman: He had asked the Sheriff’s Office staff to have the Sheriff send something in writing.

17




Commissioner McGuffey: If the form has been the same since the Sheriff took office, where did the
issue of minor arrests come from?

Mr. Gilman: We have never had to do this in the history of having the brothel. This was an ad hoc
change never brought to our attention.

District Attorney Langer: A juvenile matter is not a criminal matter it is a quasi-criminal matter.
There is a different standard and approach and juvenile records are confidential information.

Sheriff Antinoro: Criminal history as a general rule does not show juvenile convictions.

Mr. Gilman: In response to the Sheriff’s statement about time spent processing these applications, a
fee is paid for each application. If there is a need to re-apply, another fee is paid so as to not cost
taxpayers the money to run the records.

Chair McBride: The application states “all arrests and convictions”. What is being requested?

Mr. Gilman: We would like a definition to be included in the application.
Mr. Gilman reviewed items requested in the questionnaire that is part of the application. People have
been denied a work card for not listing things that happened as a minor.

Sheriff Antinoro: If the applicant was certified as an adult, that would be on their criminal history. If
they were not certified as an adult, handled through the juvenile courts, it will not show up on their
criminal history.

District Attorney Langer: That's correct.

Mr. Gilman: We have had specific people denied a work card for not listing things that happened as
a minor. This contradicts what the Sheriff is saying,

Robert Morris: Since this a general request for a change in the way work cards are administered,
possibly there should be a change to the ordinance being more specific about how the Sheriff uses his
discretion in allowing a person to re-apply. The Board could give direct staff to review to see if there
would be an amendment to satisfy both sides.

Chair McBride asked the Sheriff: In the event of an omission on the work card application, is this a
lifetime ban in getting a work card?

Sheriff Antinoro: There is nothing in the ordinance that addresses a life-time ban. In several
circumstances where there are continued failures to disclose, they are told in writing to follow the
ordinance and appeal the decision to the Board. There is no such thing as a ban. If there’s a problem
with the application and it's revoked and it's clearly an oversight, the applicant is allowed to reapply.

Chair McBride: Maybe the application should be more specific.

Pat Whitten: The application is not necessarily governed by the ordinance, other than the
questionnaire. Maybe we could work on clarifying this item.

18




Sheriff Antinoro: On the questionnaire if there is an affirmative answer on specific questions asked,
that will be a denial. On the application, a failure to disclose can lead to a denial or revocation. The
applicant would have to come to Board if it was a repetitive item. The applicant must apply for the
work card yearly.

Chris Thompson, Controlling Manager at TRI: If a business at TRI is encountering procedures or
penalties applied on that business or its workers, it is common that we look into it. County Code
Section 15.16.220(b)(5) lists what must be in the questionnaire. It does not provide authority or
discretion to add to the questionnaire. There is nothing in this section that talks about a list of arrests.
Most people would think that a complete criminal record was criminal convictions. This would be an
issue to an applicant in understanding what is being requested.

It was previously stated if there too many mistakes, on separate or consecutive applications, that the
applicant is told by staff that no further applications would be accepted, corrected or not. No penalty
period is given nor are they told to come back another time.

As the Code reads, a work card application may be denied but there does not appear to be any
authority telling the applicant you can never file another application to work in the County.
Apparently the thought is if applicant fails to list arrests or convictions, that failure is grounds for
denial of a work card. The grounds for denial in (f)(6) are “willfully making any false statement or
omission in the registration form”. There is no authority, in the absence of a finding of willful
omission, for someone to make a mistake or leave it off without a finding, is not grounds by itself. It
is not a ban for life, nothing that says simply missing out on filling out application properly, is
grounds for appeal.

Mr. Thompson read the Sheriff’s Office denial letter which does not state that failure to disclose was
willful.  This is not in accordance with the Code. An inquiry with the subject business found that
over approximately 15 years, 2,500 to 3,000 work cards have been applied for and no one has been
connected to organized crime or drug cartels.

Mr. Thompson continued that this business is a good corporate citizen and pays the County in license
fees and taxes. Each applicant pays $72 per application for the review.

The denial of the work card is a heavy price for these applicants to pay.

Mr. Whitten: If we are to going to be specific, we will have to re-open the ordinance. What is it
specifically is being asked for?

Mr. Gilman: One thing would be if someone had forgotten to put something on their work card
application, they would be able to re-apply. The $72 application and loss of a day’s wages, is a
reasonable fine ~ rather than having to stop work for 2 weeks, or more, to be able to get to a
Commission meeting to have a hearing. If something is left off the application that absolutely denies
from being able to have a work card, that is understandable and it should be denied.

Mr. Morris: In reading the Ordinance, there is no ban. With multiple applications, there is the
remedy that an applicant can appeal any denial of the work card to the Board. If the Board is

19




interested in what constitutes a work card that could be re-applied for, that might be possible. There
are so many possibilities it is hard to use language to limit someone’s discretion.

Sheriff Antinoro: This was something that was previously struggled with. “Willful omission” and
non-disclosures were discussed. Everything then becomes an accident - or I forgot. There is no life-
time ban, no matter how many times it is said. The card is denied, the process is to appeal it to the
Board.

Roger Norman: If there is something wrong with the application, the Sheriff could call and ask about
it. There should be a way to make it work, simply and easier.

Sheriff Antinoro: We have tried to work directly with the applicants, however that caused issues.
There have been discussions that the brothel management should be the “go-between”.

Commissioner McGuffey: Is there a way that Mr. Gilman could get the criminal background check
from the Sheriff. It might make it easier for applicants who might forget their history.

Sheriff Antinoro: Not from the Sheriff. There are private organizations that provide that information.
If the brothel did a background check, the Sheriff's Office would also have to do its own check,
adding to the time it takes to process the application. The temporary work card is intended to
minimize the time, allowing the person to work as soon as there is a record of their existence.
Information not disclosed on the application causes trouble. Most of the time, the Sheriff works with
the applicant ~ in extreme cases it becomes a denial which comes before the Board.

Judy Cohen, Storey County Resident/Business Owner: Human Resources, in any company, should
check background when hiring someone and review with and instruct the potential employee how to
till out the application.

Motion: To direct staff to adjust or amend the brothel related work card application, Action:
Approve, Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey = Seconded by: Chair McBride, Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=2)

County Manager Whitten requested Items 17, 18 and 19 be combined and heard as one item.

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Appeal for work card, submitted by Carmen G. Rivera.

18, DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Appeal for work card for Marisha Nolan, submitted by
Don Gilman,

19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Appeal for work card for Stephen Jim, submitted by Don
Gilman.

Don Gilman asked Tara, representative of the Mustang Ranch, to present this item.

Tara reviewed the employment history and personal background information of each of the work
card applicants: Carmen G. Rivera, Marisha Nolan, and Stephen Jim.

The applicants, Carmen G. Rivera, Marisha Nolan, and Stephen Jim, each explained to the Board the
reasons why each of their respective applications failed to include all information found in the
background investigations.

20




Chair McBride asked Mr. Gilman if he can attest that the applicant Carmen G. River is fit for work at
the Mustang Ranch. Mr. Gilman responded yes.

Chair McBride commented to Sheriff Antinoro that his message is clear that these applicants should
complete their applications correctly the first time around. Chair McBride asked the Sheriff if he is
satisfied with the explanations given by applicant Rivera and would he recommend approval or
denial of the appeal.

Sheriff Antinoro said he is not in a position to approve or deny but will entertain whatever is the
Board'’s decision.

District Attorney Anne Langer stated that juvenile matters should not be considered.

Commissioner McGuffey stated he is not averse to having Ms. Rivera re-apply with a complete
application and with payment of the application fee but is not willing to override the Sheriff's
decision.

Motion: To approve re-submittal of the work card application for Carmen G. Rivera, Action:
Approve, Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey ~Seconded by: Chair McBride, Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=2)

In discussing the application of Ms. Nolan, Sheriff Antinoro said the initial application was made in
2011 and was denied. A work card was issued later that year. In the two subsequent years,
applications were denied for failure to complete background history. The time limit has passed for
any of the background issues to be a dis-qualifier. The last issue was in 2013.

Chair McBride said he is inclined to give Ms. Nolan the opportunity to re-apply, however this will be
the last time. Mr. McBride advised the Mustang Ranch representatives that they should have the
records, and the employees need to know their histories. The rules are greater and more in-depth for
brothels, gaming and liquor.

No public comment.

Motion: To approve re-submittal of the work card application for Marisha Nolan, Action:
Approve, Moved by: Chair McBride Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=2)

In regards to Mr. Jim, his work card was pulled for non-disclosure of background history. Tara
explained that Mr. Jim did not understand that he had to disclose background information as all of
these events took place on tribal grounds. All matters are 15 years old or older.

Chair McBride asked if the reason the information didn’t show was because of the Bureau of Indian
Affairs. Sheriff Antinoro explained that the history came from the tribal court with unknown
dispositions.

Sheriff Antinoro requested the work card be approved for Mr. Jim.
2]




County Manager Whitten reiterated that all future applications need to contain all background
information.

Public Comment:

Nicole Barde, Storey County Resident: Asked the Sheriff what the approximate hours are that staff
works on brothel licensing. It was stated that 23 applications were denied and 8 were accepted - that
was out of how many?

Sheriff Antinoro: A little over 2,000 hours per year in staff hours. 142 applications submitted.

Ms. Barde: As a taxpayer, the amount and level of re-work regarding the applications and the burden
on the County as a reflected in the amount of taxpayer dollars being spent to fix problems, is an
outrage. This is a problem that seemingly never gets corrected. There is a lack of understanding by
the applicants, and a lack of control by the brothel in making sure the applications get passed -
requiring re-work by the County. This equals taxpayer dollars being spent that could be spent in
other areas. Both sides need to fix this.

Commissioner McGuffey: This is a company that pays a lot of taxes to the County.

Motion: To approve the work card for Stephen Jim, Action: Approve, Moved by: Sheriff
Antinoro, Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote
(Summary: Yes=3)

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

21. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Variance 2015-029, by Hansen, Allen & Luce, INC., Atin;
Vern Conder representing Refuse, Inc. The Applicant requests a Variance for a reduced setback to
three feet from the required 50 feet side setback for the placement of a proposed well house on the
property located at 2700 East Mustang Road, Mustang, Storey County, Nevada (APN: 004-111-20).

Jason Van Havel, Planner, presented this item. The applicant represents Refuse, Inc., also known as
the Lockwood Landfill. The request is for an up-graded well house servicing their property. Mr. Van
Havel referred to the staff report for an area map showing the parcel in question. The uses of land in
the area are generally industrial. Notices have been sent out to all landowners in the area with no
public comments received.

The new well house will continue to encroach on the setback. Applicant would like to up-grade the
well to be more efficient in utilizing County resources. The Planning Commission has heard and
approved the application.

Staff recommends approval of this variance.
Public Comment:

Mr. Whitten addressed applicant’s representative Marc Franc. Mr. Whitten, as County Manager,
recommends following the recommendation of the Planning Commission for approval. Mr. Whitten

22




asked Mr. Franc to send a strong message to senior management. During the time of the County’s
franchise agreement with Waste Management, specifically for the landfill and for refuse collection,
we continue to hit items that weren’t addressed. Recently it was communicated that there may be a
need to address the size of dumpster box services at TRIC because they are not using what was called
for. Mr. Whitten is more than willing to work with these types of issues, but this needs to be a two-
way street. Recently the County changed processes with sewage sludge coming out of the plant. It is
the position of the landfill manager that this change will cost the County - an amount Mr. Whitten
considers very high for something the County has not paid before and what other similar
governments are paying at a much lower rate. Take the spirit of what the Commission decides today
back to management and request that dialogs be opened with the understanding that cooperation is a
two-way street.

Mr. Franc replied that is the position of the company, and if it doesn’t seem so, that will be fixed.

Jason Van Havel read the Findings for Approval:
That because of special circumstances applicable to the subject property,
including shape, size, topography or location of surroundings, the strict
application of the zoning ordinance would deprive the subject property
of privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity or under identical
zone classification; and

That the granting of the Variance is necessary for the preservation and
enjoyment of substantial property rights of the applicant; and

That the granting of the Variance will not, under the circumstances of the
particular case, adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of
persons residing or working in the area of the subject property and will not
be materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious to
property or improvements in the area of the subject property; and

The proposed Variance is in compliance with all Federal, Nevada State,
and Storey County regulations; and

The proposed Variance is in compliance with Storey County Code 17.03.140
Variances and 17.36 Heavy Industrial when all Conditions of Approval are
met; and

The proposed Variance is in compliance with and supports the goals,
objectives and recommendations of the Storey County Master Plan.

Motion: To approve Variance 2015-029, by Hansen, Allen & Luce, INC. Attn: Vern Conder
representing Refuse, Inc. The Applicant requests a Variance for a reduced setback to three feet from
the required 50 feet side setback for the placement of a proposed well house on the property located
at 2700 East Mustang Road, Mustang, Storey County, Nevada (APN: 004-111-20), Action:
Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=3)

23




22, DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: (Continue until 10/19/15 board meeting) SECOND
READING Ordinance No. 15-269: Application No. 2014-020 by the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center,
LLC to amend the text of Storey County Code Title 17 (Zoning Ordinance) by adding chapter 17.39 IC
Industrial-Commercial Zone. The intent of the proposed IC Zone is to provide for certain mixed-use
industrial and commercial uses where found appropriate by the board with recommendation by the
planning commission. Additional information including, but not limited to, reports and the draft
zone text may be obtained from the Planning Department at 775.847.114.

23. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: (Continue until 10/19/15 board meeting) SECOND
READING Ordinance No. 15-268 (Zone Text Amendments). An ordinance amending Storey County
Code Title 17 Zoning to update the procedures and requirements of the title by amending the
following chapters: Ordinance title page; Chapter 17.03 Administrative Provisions; 17.06
Nonconforming Uses; 17.08 Zones Generally; 17.10 Definitions; Chapter 17.12 General Provisions;
17.15 P Public Zone; 17.16 R-1 Single-Family Residential Zone; 17.20 R-2 Multi-Family Residential
Zone; 17.24 A Agriculture Zone; 17.28 C Commercial Zone; 17.30 C-R Comumercial-Residential Zone;
17.32 F Forestry Zone; 17.34 I-1 Light Industrial Zone; 17.35 I-2 Heavy Industrial Zone; 17.36 1-3
Heavy Industrial Zone; 17.38 I-S Special Industrial Zone; 17.40 E Estate Zone; 17.44 SPR Special
Planning Review Zone; 17.48 Historic Overlay District; 17.56 PUD Planned Unit Development; 17.76
N-R Natural Resources Zone; 17.84 Signs and Billboards; 17.92 Mineral Exploration Mining and
Extraction; and other properly related matters. Public participation is encouraged. Copies of the text
amendments may be obtained from the Planning Department website at
www.storeycounty.org/521 /updates, at 775.847.1144 or from planning@storeycounty.org.

24, FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:
A. AMERICAN MINING & TUNNELING, LLC -- Contractor / 19208 E. Broadway ~
Spokane, WA (mining services)
B. P & L FENCING & IRON, LLC - Contractor / 2842 Marco Street ~ Las Vegas (steel
fabrication)
C. CROP PRODUCTION SERVICES, INC. - General / 3005 Rocky Mountain Ave ~
Loveland, CO (distributor of crop input)
D. SOIL TECH, INC - Contractor / 6420 South Cameron ~ Las Vegas (general
contractor/engineer)
E. GARTNER REFRIGERATION & MFG - Contractor / 13205 16t Ave. North ~ Plymouth,
MN (refrigeration contractor)
F. NEIL ADAMS CONSTRUCTION, INC. - Contractor / 6490 S. McCarran ~ Reno (general
contractor)
G. BRYCON CORPORATION - Contractor / 134 Rio Rancho Blvd ~ Rio Rancho, NM
(general contractor)
BI NUTRACEUTICALS, INC. - General / 625 Waltham Way #101 (milling botanicals)TRI
A-Z TRUCK MARINE AND RV - General / 3033 Waltham Way (repair, parts, access.)TRI
RICH DOSS, INC. - General / 201 Wild Horse Canyon Drive {transportation) MCC

=T

On behalf of Community Development, County Manager Whitten, requested continuance of items
H., L, and ], and approval of items A., through G.

Motion: Continue items H., I, and ]., Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman,
24




Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Carried by unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=3)

Motion: Approve items A, B, C, D, E, F, and G, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair
Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Carried by unanimous vote (Summary:
Yes=3}

25. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

Sheriff Gerald Antinoro: Sheriff Antinoro asked the Commission to direct staff to re-examine the
liquor licensing ordinance to clarify standards. As it stands now, the Sheriff understands from
today’s meeting that he should investigate any potential, future liquor license applicants to the level
gaming investigations. If this is not the case, there needs to be a clarification of the standard.

Commissioner McGuffey: What level are your background checks?

Sheriff Antinoro: Basically what it says in the ordinance. Applicant is not a convicted felon, a drug
dealer, has no ties to organized crime, and there is some semblance of financial order that they can
continue on with their business. In referring to the item heard earlier, there are other liquor license
holders in Storey County that have some of the same problems. We have never held the finances to
the high standard of gaming. There needs to be clear expectations for the level of investigation so the
applicant knows what to expect.

County Manager Whitten: If staff’'s recommendation is a basis for the consideration, the record
should be clear that it is not based on the fact that we should hold individual applicants to exactly the
same scrutiny and process as gaming does - the recommendation was made simply on the facts that
we were aware of the results of the gaming investigation and background. There were documented
observations of that, and therefore, could not or should not, ignore that particular information on
hand.

Sheriff Antinoro: There have been past applicants, who have been approved, where we have also
been aware of tax liens, lawsuits, judgments, financial issues, or other regulatory over-sight
problems.

Outside Counsel, Robert Morris: It is very clear that the Board was given the legal standard out of
the liquor license ordinance as to having the ability to carry out a successful business. Mr. Morris
feels the Board took that advice and used it in their decision. The information that came from
Gaming, was available for the Board to use in making their decision but the standard is the standard
that is in the Code and should have been used all along in the approval of liquor licenses.

Sheriff Antinoro: The Board has approved licenses where some of the same financial concerns were
known by the Board.

Chair McBride: This has not come up since he has been on the Board. And, nothing that has
involved a multi-million dollar deal. There are a lot more moving parts on this issue,

Sheritf Antinoro and Chair McBride both concurred that the liquor ordinance needs to be clarified.

25




Robert Morris: Agrees and feels that this would be a high priority for this Board.

26. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned by the call of the Chair at 1:41 PM.

Respectfully submitted,

By

Vanessa Stephens, (lerk-Treasurer

26




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: November 3, 2015 Estimate of time required: 0 min

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [| Public hearing required [ ]

1. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 10/23/15 for $333,085.99.
Accounts Payable Checks date 10/16/15 for $936,582.70 and $6,490.81.

2. Recommended motion: Approval of claims as submitted.

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775 847-1006

4. Staff summary: Please find attached the claims
5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: NA Fund: NA __NA__ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
_NA_District Attorney

8. Reviewed by: -
_\é Department Head Department Name: Comptroller

@Kﬁy Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[ ] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

| S —

Agenda Item No. ‘5




HHEENSYIIL

UITTOULLINOD

HANOTISSIWWOD HINOISSIWWOD

NYWATYHD

ST/8T/0T

AAYNINITEES

g

abeg

PSIJUOTSSTWWOD JO parog Ajunod Asxols oyl Aq pasoxddy

66°580'E€€C ipasanqstda
L gge L 1A0IINPSI ©3 JIIISURIL ISSN
9% LBS L 'a7ta dog atg uc pIsIiy spog sskordug
0L'9L¥ 'S8T tareodeq 300xTg @3foTdug
¥ ZI0'T reyoeyy safordug
0s €698 10Oy I03IINPS]
61'5¢6'2CS igdLAd X0J Jajsuex] IsSsq
Junowy ssded # peq

& 8 L 9% s ¥ ¢
18780 PUS-POTISG ST/EE/0T :@3eq X23UD

za3stBay ypayd
WALFAS TICHUAYd AINNOD AHHOLS

/4 duz

z 1 :sdnoxn troxdAed
Iernbey :addr 1r10xled

reseL

TR30L
Tea0l
TR30L
1e30g
T220L

Te30L

# aa

/ADSUD-

g5 FTSTT ST/TZ/0T  sunyg
¥0150ud :adsy



£0°LT I0LvL  ST/9t/0% TYAN FUSHL

. L¥'ET ToLve  8T/9T/0T TYEW FRIEL
- E 4 TOLYL ST/9T/0T - YR EEJEL
8292 TO0LYL  §t/9T/0T TN FEEAEL
[4 244 TOLPL 5T/91/01 TaNd IIFAL
[ 3 At AA TOLYL ST/9T/01 ’ TAN ATIEL
06°9¢T TOLYL  ST/91/0% SEITAINS ONILVEIIO
609 ToLBL  ST/9t/0T TYEW. YIS HL¥ON
85°'¥% TOLPL ST/9t/01 TYEW ENYX0dS
€5' €% T0LYL  §t/91/0T TINI UYLS HINON
L8 €8 I0L¥L  ST/9T/0T TINd ¥YLS HINON
9T €9 TOLYL ST/91/01 SEITEANS FWT
09°£9¢ TOLYL ST/%t/01 AWYIA/QEE SL IS
§Z'58¢ TOLYL St/81/01 ZL % TL IS SHIVEEY
BL'TET T6LYL ST/91/0% TLT/TL $EINAdNS LNIVE
[tAR-1 4 TeLYL  ST/91/01 SEITAANS SWA
69'8% T0LYL  st/9t/o0T 1814 BLING
£6°'0€ T0LYL ST/ST/0T TYIW ZLING
01" €2 T0LYL  ST/9T/0T VAW ENYHOdS
§8°'191 TOLPL  ST/9T/0T TINT ¥WLE HIMON
89£ €8 TOLPL  ST/9T/0T 1INA YIS HIMON
00°9¥%T TOLYL ST/9T/01 - BYIVAAY YHXWI SL IS
IS8 ToL¥L  ST/91/0T ONIDUGH VLS HISON
»L'58 TOLFPL . ST/9T/0T ONIDAOT YIS HIJON
g5 LY TOLPL ST/9T/01 Td0d YIS HI¥ON
Z¥' 69 TOL¥L  §t/9T/0T TERA UYLS HI¥ON
¥0°0¢€ TOLYL  St/eT/0T TYEW UYL HI¥ON
T8¢ TOLPL  ST/9T/0T Ta04d ¥YIS HIYON
L4 T A TOLYL ST/91/01 DNISAOT ANYI0ds
zZe'BeE TOLYL S1/91/01 DNIDAOT ANVAOQSS
TL' 86 TOL¥L  ST/91/0T TENI VLS HIJON
oL 09T T0L¥L  SI/9T/0T TINA VYLS HILAON
L1 €8 TO0L¥L  ST/91/0T TYAW ¥YLIS HIRON
§0°'901 T0LYPL  ST/9T/0T TENA UYLE HI¥ON
ZEEY TOLYL ST/91/01 TYAR ¥YLS HIAON
0% 6L TOLYL ST/8T/0T A0S YIS HILHON
PETBIT TOLYL §T/91/0T 1and
:1:20-F4 1oLy ST/9T/0T SHEITAANS ONIIVIEd0
YOLZH YOIYEAWY J0 %NV LLGER
9L 6EZ 0g'Le LSSPL  &T/9tT/0T HOD
6L°05 LS89 ST/9T/0T dOHS
61’ €S LSSPL  ST/9T/0T dOHS
890t 869F%L $1/91/01 AMANAYT PL 15
25'0T 869%L  ST/91/0% AMANOYT SL 1§
ve'g BEOLL §1/91/01 ZYANOYT 2L LS
50°%T BEOBL ST/9T/0T A¥ANAYT TL LS
28101 869%L §t/9T/01 AMQONOYT vL 1S
8301 869%L  ST/9T/0t LHaNRYT PL LS
25'01 869%L  ST/9T1/01 A¥ANNYT ¥L LS
LL'g 869%L  ST/%t1/01 AYQNAYT 2L L8
PB ET B69%L  ST/91/0T AYANDYT TL IS5
JNI QD§TY 9L8E8]
00" 0%¥ ‘2L Co'orp 2L PEITL ST/%T/01 (0T¥00-2009) LEANAINTI I%A
AONYNIJ 4INDE T TYLIAYD SLSES
00°029'T 00° 089’7 LLOPL  ST/9T/0T IH04dNS ATHINOW
ONI SWALSAS YIV¥d UHSNYAQY PLGER
TYLOL LNOGKHY HSNYEL TLYA % 0/d NOLLJIHDSEA HIIOANI YOONEA HAIWAN
ADAHD : NDEHD
ST/9T/0T ¥ILSIHIW MIIHD ST/¥T/0T ¢ =29Bg uny
T abeg ALNNOD AEEOLS STETAd toN 3xodex

o 2




4

9Z'¢€9

Lz L5z

8z 'z

08°151

LA ERE

96'00¢€

00°00s5’'S

20 v¥59 0T

TYLOL
XOEHD

abegq

653 L
66°92
6£°087
8179
6€°¢
8L'6
6L %E
8E'L
L9'S%T
66,°9¢
-Z¥%' 8BTS

949
05'9¢%

0T 691
LT B8

BZ 9

00'6"
05" 291

go0*0os'p

0o vve
£ 88

00°'005°5

88'TL
96" 08T
PE‘LE
96" z¥g'e
T86ET
9%°58
(40813
DE'TE
00 66T
0T'Z0T
0L°8E6'T
ST 9L
¥6'28
g5’z
Ly Ze
86°9
81'z8
[ 1A 13
0t" %%
£9'LS
[N A
[ 38 4]
98'6 -
Lz'68
6€°2
6C'B§

LNNOWY

69504
658%L
[:3:3:3:72
69S¥L
65S%L
e AN
6588FL
64S¥L
655%L
6SS%L
ESS¥L

S95FL
LYavL

georL
£E97L

0LS¥L

SLgvL
SLSVL

659%L

TS8kL
159%L

899vL

TOLYY,
ToLvL
TOLPL
TOL®L
TOLbL
TOLPL
T0LwL
TOLYL
TOL®L
T0L¥s
TOLYL
TOLYL
ToLYL
TOLPL
T0LYL
TOLVL
TOLbL
TOLYL
ToL¥L
ToLPL
ToLPL
T0L%L
TOLPL
ToLyL
TOLYL
TOLEL

#SNTIL

ST/9T/0T
ST/9T/0T
§T/91/01
ST/%1/01
ST/9T/0T
ST/9t/01
ST/9t/01
S1/9T/01
ST/9T/01
ST/9T/01
ST/91/01T

St/9T/01
St/9t/0%

ST/9T/01
ST/91/01

St/9t/01

ST/9T/0T
ST/9T/01

ST/3T/01

ST/9t/0T
ST/9T/0T

St/9t/0T

ST/st/01
§1/91/0T
ST/9tT/01
ST/91/0T
ST/8t1/01
ST/91/01
ST/91/01
ST/91/0T
ST/9T/01
ST/9T/0T
ST/91/0T
ST/ST/01
ST/91/0T
ST/9T/01
ST/91/0T
ST/9T/0T
ST/81/01
ST/%t/01
ST/91/01
§T/9T/01
ST/9T/01
ST/9T/01
ST/91/01
ST/3T/01
§T/91/0T
ST/9t/0%

a1iva

d¥0 aQviE-yyZEoud
HALTIIL ¥IY-AD0LS
SHALTII-ADOLS

TYES TIO-Tv815Hd

dWY'T ASELENCD- 50 ToMd
dY¥TId ANW-PSO0TENA
UFANYIXE IJISTIVL-dOHS
q41d dEY-HS0TEMT
LUEANOD IV¥D-SETHPSLI
HALTIALIY-AD0LS
HILSOOT ANvYd-L0685Md

YHLYM NIARYH ACOMNIOT
JOOMMDOT HAMAS ¥ HILYM

QESENESIT INEWHSINIYD
QASANASIA LNAKHSINAYD

LIM YIV4EY -GLE ¥

ST0Z 'L ID0-¥Z 14dS
QIAYE -1OT

WEOJINN HIVWNI ‘MEJoddndgr
SAITIANS ATV ISuld

NODISIQ XDEC

LINIWW Si 1§

LNIVH SL &S

TaNd XETAN0D ¥¥od
LNYIVES JOLMovlg
SHIVAAY zL1g

SLYYd ¥EANHL ¥3Z0q
SAITAANG ANIAYDOY
TEOS dEATYH

INOTE St IS

TaINg

SUIVATY HNTJd WIATIWM
TYAR ENYH04S
HOVLS0d

S0¥L50d

HEVM ETOIHAA SL &8
HSYM ATOIHIA §L IS
SAITLENS ONILVATIO
Tand

T1and

1dana

AHM HDIJH0 SL 1§
THN

TYEW ZAJEL

BNIDIOT FHAZL
STYLNIATINI FISETL,
T304 FAGHL

NOILAIMDSEG HIIOANT

ST/8T/0T HALSIOAY MDEHD

ALNNOS AFAH0OLS

SI¥VE OLOY ALID IYLISWD

NANIAOUIWI TVHANTD NOANYD

TYNOISSHAONd % §SINISNG

ONI 8¥Id 5. NoLund

SIMET LLODS 'TTI3UNng

NOOTYS JQOTE 40 Laiong

ORI ANVAWOD ¥IN¥VE dod

NIJYNNYH dZD¥Ed

YOaNZEA

ST/PT/0T
STETHd

SBSEB

¥BSES

€858

zas¢eg

T8s5e8

0gses

6LSES

8L5€8

HTEWNN
AJEHD

?1eq uny
toN jxoday



£

YTTOGT'T
00'0sg
£5°0v9°g
8% 65

T0°58¢S

00 ST
0064

0L aLt

00’91

00"tz

0F'Gt1E

96" 1¢

00 0¢
L2 '1et

LS PET

€T LBT
0o egoz

EERE 31185

0009

00°S%6'LS

Ve 06T T
(T4
ES'0%9 g
5969
6 €%
SEZET
P 201
8Z'ZS
1s'£¥
02 LLE
-¥g sve
00'SLT
00 6L
06" TS
1 -]
S6° 52
S6'6%
0891
00°Lg
00" L8
0o L8
0% 0TE

PL'PT
22°LT

00° D¢
L2 TET

66' 1z
95 ZLT

£2°L82
0020z
T LEE
6L°SL9'T
85°08%'T
co' oY

00'8Z6'LS

LNNOWY

TLSPL
QESEL
£99%4
995%L
RN A
899PL
89s¥L
8954
895%L
895vL
89sbL
LOSEL
004LPL
OLSPL
oLSPL
SE9%L
2oLyt
T85¥L
¥o9vL
S¥avL
9vave
0BsTL

YEovL
bEIRL

209%L
FPPIFL

9LEHL
089%s

ZO9S¥%L
T95%L
09S¥vL
095%L
09S¥L
3TIPL

£69%L

#SNYUL

S1/8t1/01
ST/91/07T
ST/9T/01
S1/81/01
ST/9t/01
SI/9T/0T
ST/9t/01
ST/9T/01
ST/9T/01
ST/91/01
ST/9T/01
ST/91/0T
§T/31/0T
ST/9T/01
ST/ST/0T
ST/9T/01
ST/91/01
ST/9T/0T
ST/91/01
ST/91/01
ST/s8T/01
sT/ot/ot

ST/9T/0T
ST/91/01

ST/97/0T
ST/91/01

ST/9T/0T
st/et/ot

§T/9%T/01
ST/9T/0T
ST/8T/01
ST/81/01
ST/91/0T
sT/ot/ot

ST/9t/01

dLYd

150 ® DIY M7

CTETHSAONIN NOMOA

JEYd 10T SNIN¥Yd % TTY¥M
YILNED QOOMMDOT -ATIAOD
U¥EM IXE-S209908
AUBLIVE-NWA WIND ¥5 oA
SHHEITYO-EVRTSHS

Savd UYEM-85ZFSLL

UYEIN LXT -5E09508
HOLOY TAVHH-E£V8TSYd
SHIHALIYE -9-0 19D
L20W dESCTD HNO IWI¥AAD
TOOMMDOT HONYYE I¥3Ed 008

¥HLYM ONINNINA HO
FHLYM DNIMNIYMA HD

HALYM 5L IS

ST0Z "t IDQ-vZ 1dES
ST/TE/ET-T/0T WA ITawD
AL TIvp

AL OF 0808

Z/0T % ¥/e 'L/ ‘¢/L

JESANESTIA LNHIWHS INIYD
QESUNESIA LHIWHSINYYD

SHIL IAOOD DO¥A 0D ATNOLS
SMWVILS Lad

SOVE HSVUL NMovig
4l TIVL

a¥aI 1T0000-Z290€9ZELL
LAOHANS EITWIAON
TST~HOA

18 ¥ IMN-K4

90 ® INN-MG

SDUHS AYEAITIQ SIAIA LS

(TTY00-2005) ISHYTINT 1%a

NOILATHOSHU HITOANI

ST/9T/01 HELSIDEY MDOFHD

ALNOQD Xa¥OLS

YIONIVED

OTT ADYANE SHAATL

QNI §8¥19 Lsvd
ONIMIINIONE LSHEM HuY4

02 50¥d dHAWAYL

ONI A1ddNS OLOY LLOITIE
ANNYHD EU4Nd

NOILWHQAHOD S4d HSIA

ONI ¥Sn SHOIYa

STT TIIW ATOD AIOLSHOD

ONI AL ALINAWWOD XIOLSWOD

LVANNO AYILAWAD HIOLSWOD

AEN 0 ADIAY¥AS NOILOHTTION
YIENSWERL NOSUYD J0 ALID

d¥0D AIddNS JAHEIHD

ATdANS AYLIINYS TYVaLNID
dIHNSHANLYYd 007730

ONI FTTHEYD

ONI Q0 TIO AHTIVA NOSYWD
00 NOILYLINYS 'TVLIdYD
aNnd SITENd ENC TYLIdYD
"OONIA

ST/vI/0T
STETEd

-

909En
S0%€8
vootes
£09¢8

(41 ]

To2€E8
oo09ee

669€8

86g€g

LESEB

96SER

SESE]

v65E8
€6SER

2659€8

T65€8
065€8

685€8

89SE8
LBSES
9B8SE8
HIIWNN
HOEHD

Toeneq uny
toN jroday




k-4

LETBLT'TE

00°'gBZ
¥8° L
00" 06

55°8%0'%®

00'€0¢

08 £ee
00 pot'E
0o°o0t

L8 LS9

05" L8
0L EPD'T
00 00T
1 BES

¥ 1E6

00"SEY

¥ 0L

58 98T

TYLOL
ADHHD

abeg

ZH' 00T
EL'ETT
00°8%6
00" 08¢
00°00L'1TT
LZ 08T
00°T00°8
00'88Z
PEL
00'06

9 68T
£5°809
o0T'LES’Z
82 €¥E

00°9€T
207 LY

08' €22
00°00€E°¢€
00°00T
1t 8¢

LB 6V
POCHT
00°'61E
0T' S5
ss'ev
00 by
0086
05'Lg

0L E¥P'T
00°00T
v1 798
00 oY
86 ' BLE
7 295
00'GET
P2 0LE

[4: R4
YEPIT

LNOCHY

SE9¥L
8E97L

YOLPL
vOoLbL
vOLYL
POLYL
POLYL

PESEL
6LSYL
¥o9%L
089¥L
089%2L
08o%L
08oY%L

CESPL
269FL

‘889%L

T€9%L
8LGHL
LLSPL
LLSPL
LBOYL
LBOPL
LALSYL
LLSFL
LLSPL
LLSPL
2885%L
£0LvL
£LE%L
STIVL
TF9FL
6€9%L
T89%L
669%L
2£9%L

ZLSYL
TLSPL

#SNTEL

ST/9T/01
§t/91/01

ST/91/01
ST/9T/0T
ST/91/01
ST/91/01
§t/8T/01
ST/97/01
§T/3T/0T
ST/9T/01
S1/81/01
ST/9T/01
ST/91/01
§T/91/0T

S1/97/0T
S1/9T/0T

ST/9T/01
St/91/0T
ST/9T/0T
ST/91/01
ST/91/61
51/31/01
ST/91/01
ST/91/0T
§1/91/01
ST/9T/0T
ST/9T/0T
ST/9T/0T
ST/et/at
ST/91/01
ST/9T/07
5T/9T/0T
ST/9T/0T
ST/9t/0T
ST/9T/0T
ST/91/01

§1/91/01
ST/9T1/01

ILvd

QISUNESTT LNAWHS INUYD
JQESHOESIC LNEWNHSINYYD

qad

Fdd

2dd

gad

§3174dNS ONILYHNEAC
STOZ ‘L IDO-£2 LdAS
HOLDETIEN - TS5 PHL
TYOISAHd I0G

LXT AINM MH IAUAS LI
LXA ALNM MH HEANIS DAY
aInds NYOMLAN NNV
¥d DIM ¥¥D NI

¥I%¥HD

STGZ IDO LPTLIN

ST ONIdINLS OIS DA
aNNIFY LISOdIA HALYWM
NYYE TY0D owe

NYVE TYOD D¥a
:tcontalaice: @ AeTols]

WOOYW H3A¥AS ¥04 3/v
NMYE fv0D o¥E

NEYE Y00 O%E

LEONYA -08

dOL ALINYA-DIDA

ST0Z 'L ID0-%Z 1dES

SHIT4dNS SkA

STYDIWIHD HOVH
SEILITLILA

IEVIT Av¥d aNCd

ALNOCD dI¥0D AvEd aNOd
£ X S%

GESENGSI( LMEWHSINAYD

HINIL - bL-A
a804-5LL8

NOILATHISET HIIOANI

ST/9T/0T WALEISEY NDRHD

ALNOOD ATEQOLS

aIYNCQ SaWYL "HIET

SNOS % SIIUND N 1T
¥ NVILSIHS ‘¥ETHIAIM
o717 d490

dd DNILINSNOD diW ZLEE AwL

277 dD¥NCS TLI

TUOLS ALINOWWOD AW SLI
NI IOW O4NI NIVINNOW NOWI
TYAS AWUGTS NIVINNOWYERLNT

ANNA4 NOSANH

HIINYES LICEYD L0dEd ZWOH
OHDS QUYM HIMNOA DTHOLSIH
NIZHDOS AUNEH

ASI¥IYG ‘NIWAHH

QLT LRIV TI5Wd A17dd0S dH

2TT SLNIWLSEANT 419
WOL ‘AMAHSNYED

0 RONWN 'NYHD

YOaNIA

ST/%T/0T
STETEL

¥29¢8

ECoLR
zzZaeg
I29¢8

ozoea

6TI2ES

819¢s8
LT9E8
2912¢8

STSE8

»T2£8
ET9E8
gia¢ge
TIgER

019¢e

609€8
809¢8

Lgses

HIEWNN

HDEHD
ajeq uny
ON Jxodey




1)

0L*t80'S
»Z7 P
0O0TLOT
F¥eLST T
07 01E

S2°59€7500

0o’ osvy
0¥ 0TE

£9° €9

G6°91S'¢E

£2'3¢
£5°E¥

0T 812

0059
05 peEE’g

0E'TL

SL°L9Z'4,
00°T¥%
bo'ssz’'e
QE° 069
0F'0TE
ST ¥Ie
TYLOE
ADAHS

obeg

0L €80's
vZ vy
00°TL0'T
LR TARS
0¥'0T¢E
LE'TO5'00F
TE'ERT'T
06'00%
4008
00° QL
00002
00°00T
L27095'¢€
00°05%
0% 0%E

86° LT
E- -1

0E'ZLT'T
DESZLT'T
DErELT'T
ET' BT
£ ED
€E°0IT
La L9
06°6¢€
00" 59
0S*yEe’e

00" 2E
oL OF

SL'LIT'L
00't¥
0o‘s8z’'e
0E’ 089

o' oTe

LNOOWY

£597L
geabvs
S¥obL
§29%L
QESFL
vLSPL
69S¥L
S89%L
S89%L
S89VL
S89%L
S89%L
S89vL
29SbL
6BSVL

859y,
S85%L

165%L
T6S¥L
T65FL
989%L
£85¥L
Z99%L
6¥9PL
SOLYL
SSS¥L
£EBOTL

S09vL
S09¢%L

LS9bL
969bL
88S¥L
£90%L

98BS WL

#ENL

ST/9T/0T
ST/9T/01
S1/21/01
ST/91/0%
ST1/91/0T
ST/9T/0T
ST/91/0T
ST/9T/01
ST/9T/0T
ST/9T/01
ST/9T/01
§T/9T/0T
ST/91/0T
ST/91/01
ST/et/ot

ST/ST/01
sT/91/01

ST/9T/0T
§T/91/0%
§1/91/01
ST/91/01
ST/9T/0T
ST/9T/01
ST/81/0T
s1/3t/01
ST/9T/01T
ST/91/01

ST/9T/0T
sT/9t/01

ST/9T/01
ST/91/01
ST/8T/01
ST/91/01

ST/9T/01

aryg

OILDALCYd HITYHAE ¥IWOSNOD
STOZ XWI WOOW 1Snony
GNEDIDE T SINIMJYHOHNTS
NOILINGOYd IS4

T/t ‘v/e ‘L/8 'EfL

SEEd NQINTINAOd

SEEJd EDYUCAIA
SEEL &4

9T02/21-9108/7
2/01 'v/6 'L/8 "tfL

€IA LAFYLS 'SIITEENS DHd
NI& HOLIH

SHYIL ¥LE

SAYIL ZLY ¥4
SEYIL TL-3 ¥4

d¥D ‘ANYI-FP2Z9ud
SAYJILON ‘S0 ' SHIOTEANT
S@ITdans HIT440

S4ITD

YELIZ 00TX00T

gT6E 'L-T IDO
ST0C 'Z ¥EECLOC

91-810¢E

UEAOOH LP0ZTIAVEINIWAYENG

TYLNIEd FFIILAE

2/0T 'B/6 'L/® ‘€/L

NOTLATHOSEI HIIOAMI

ST/ST/0T ¥YALSIHAU ADIHD

ALNQOD AHYOLS

SIO¥NCSHY NYWNH AIN
NYWAH-RELIYEH 40 AIQ AEN
NOTILYXVL LdEd AEN

ALZAYE DITENd LdEA AHN
ALZAYS D179nd 40 1430 AHN

HOILTA¥EENGS J0 Id2d AHN

BHTTOYLAWOD AEN
SEILNAOD 40 NSSY TYNOLLYN

TAATIVLEY HONWY ONWLSOW

HOTYA ANUL ISN0H ONAOK

OINIWYEIWYS 20 HAIL NYSHOW
VAVHYL 'NYDIW

02 MOLOW fTTHOH TEYHOIW

NI SNOILIT0S FDIJI0 OULIW
N NHOC 'SH€W03I2W

YEIT ¥ LLODS ‘MNOSTAVK

HWNESOW NCISNYW AWNOYH
HATIOULAHOD 0D NOAT
HLIIEX 'SIW00T

OTT SLNZAF FNTE AIndIfd
FAIT TYNOLLYN NTOINIT
T ON 0D ANIONT AL¥EHAIT
¥OONZEA

ST/PI/OT
STETEd

9v9tg
s¥9¢s8
P¥3E8
eboce
[4-514]

iv9tee

0¥9€8
$L9¢8

gE9¢E8

LESER

9t9Es
Sg£9t8

vE9E8

EES2EB
zeses

1€9¢€8

0£9¢8
£29t8
82oLR
LZTSES
9Z9te
SZ9¢8

HIGHNON
AOFIHD

s3ed uny
oN 1xodsy



9

01'gfe
GO ELE
oL’ s

6% £09

00 SLT'¥

00" g8¢E

S9'BTIV'E

a0 0sE’T

00'06¢

21°89¢
00° LT

0¥ 2%t

0068
0G°609
65'¥SE
66 T9V T
00°00¢€
6L 8L

DorooT

G0 o¢
00°€€6°T
SL°BE6'S

YLOL
ADEHD

sbeg

0p*0TE
0T £€2
00"gLE
oL's,

00 £5%
eb 08T

00°008°T
00'000°'2
00°SLE
00°S8€

-T2 2%

98 19%'z
00 osz’T
00021
g 21
0528

G0 0ET
[c3- A

s ge

g1 88¢
00'LTT

00" 2¢
0% 0Te

0068
00605
£8°' %828
56 T3P "1
00°'00¢
6L" 8L

QG- 0s
00708

00" 0€
00'2L6°T
SL'BEE'S

LNOOWY

LESTL
BOLYL
E09%L
CLO%L

T8ovL
28IVL

958¥L
988 HL
955%L
858bL

SLobL
SLO9%L

989%L
LEZRL
265WL
S99FL
SEI¥L
965PL
S59%L
009%L
reshy

S6SPL
S6S¥L

LOLYL
€65¥L
LSSFL
6L9YPL
TEGPL
voovL

90Lve
¥SO¥L

¥89VL
LE9TL
8LSbL

HENVHL

ST/9t/01
st/et/ot
St/9T/01
St/9T/01

ST/9T/0T
ST/91/0T

ST/9T/01
ST/9T/01
ST/91/01
ST/91/01

ST/91/01
S1/91/01

ST/9T/0T
ST/97/0T
ST/9T/0T
51/91/01
ST/91/0T
ST/91/01
ST/9t/01
ST/9T/0T
ST/9T/01

ST/91/01
ST/97/0T

st/9t/ot
ST/91/071
ST/9T/0T
ST/91/01
ST/9T/0t
St/91/01

ST/81/01
S1/5T/01

ST/9T/01
sT/91/01
ST/91/0%

iA- e

2/0T "B/ 'L/B 'efL
SEITE4NE SHHE

LNIVK DWAd SOLT

BAIT FTAYILHE T0-69%ZST 719

LETULE D HWCD-¥BETJ00
TO-9L9END M¥ELLOTY SID

HIASOLOC

2IEOLIO

as5vd

HIYDSE FUIJ-IUY SAAVW LIS

1 ' LadvHAdINg
L 'WOTId4v

91-5T0%

ONIUOLINCH EYIJ SL IS
NI¥OLINOW 2T NYL-€T 100
SNOLLNE DINWd ATULO
FOLINOW HYIA HSN0YH 1dncd
ONINOLINOW ZT ID0-£T 10l
SNOLING DINva ATHLI0
IATYA NI TWHY -HEGWHED Md
5-98-T83L-61TC

§I0Z ‘4L IDO-$Z L4ES
z/0T '¥/6 'L/8 ‘EfL

¥IVdEY JOOa IL 1S
ST/ST/TT-ST/6T/01
EDTIA0 A¥ATID
HOISSTWWOD OMIMNYI4
gang

AILOFTIO SHHI

LNIWK TYLYOd
Tdd TYLIOd ATHLINOW

2D-08-MOY~9TAZS

NOILAI¥DSEA IDIOANT

ST/9T/0T YELSIDEY MDEHD

ALNOOD AZ¥QLS

ONT JALNRII¥Y SAUYH INIYS
DN 024dn¥
NI ONIA¥DSANYT NEIZYD ONTH

NI ZATT QYVANYIS FINYITHYH

(WD) ONI O NYDMOW vy

PNI SEISALVHELS avd

ONI SIVINEIYW UIWYHAd

INEHZEYILEY ATdWE 2I1740d

OILYSNIAWOD AJNIOY DITHNG

ONI SEDIAHA NOILOELOW
NETIREIMOL

ONI 5dmM0g XINLIJ

a OTHONY ' INIYLIEd
ANYAWOD ¥OOCQ AYAHAEAC
o7 YIAdAW INOAALNO

D11 'LOdEd ¥ivd FLISIIO
ONI YINMOAITYD 40 TELXAN
NSSY SHIAVAXYL YAYARN

NI HOIAMES IV94ET YOVAEN

{ONY} LT "ENTE YaYAEN
UYHENSTELL ATN

SEDYAOSHEY NYWNH AN

qoaNdn

ST/%1/01
STETEd

899¢£8
L99ESG
999¢8

s93¢ee

P99EE

£99¢8

299¢s8

T$9E8

032¢e

659¢€8
g59¢c8

LG9¢8

259¢€8
S59¢£8
PSIEB
£89ER
[AAN: ]
153¢8

059€8

6%9¢€8
8race
Lyoge
HIEWON
HOEHD

ajeg uny
oN 4xoday



v SHEIHAYALNE N¥Ed NOS ¥89£8
00°00s’'T 00'005'2 G98%L  ST/9T/0T

IS804 dHEL ALNOOD AZHOLS £85€8
96" %9 $6°18 8Z9%L ST/91/0T ST/0T/0T QDILS0D
. YESENYA ‘SNHHAILS 289¢8
0%'0TE 0% 0TE 6651L ST/3T/01 /0T 'B/6 'L/8 ‘g/L
: SNIVINNOW HHL NI SANYW'LS 189¢8
VLT96 '€ z6'28 S0SPL ST/9T/0t L0d3d HD
ZL oL £Z9%L ST/9T/0T
€8'99 £29%L ST/91/01
65" 82t €29y ST/91/01 LB O ZLt
£9°9%p £29%L ST/91/07
TS LTI EZokL  ST/9T/0T
ZZ 197 £ZIbL ST/9T/0T
[4: 444 £€Z9¥%L ST/9T/0T
L8 0LT €299/ ST/91/0D1
60°688 443 7 ST/91/01
65°82T £T9L ST/91/01
LE'OLT ETOVL st/9t/0%
99° 05T €254 ST/9%T/01
R BST £297L ST/9T/01
657821 £T9%L ST/91/01
S5L° 287 £ZIPL ST/91/01
6L°8ST £Z9¥L ST/9T/01
LBUOLT 909%L  ST/IT/01 DLoA
65°'8ET ¥4:17) ST/9T/0T
WHLSAS ¥ALYM 0D 1§ 089¢8
VEEEY 602 Ve EEY ‘602 LBSHL ST/9T/0T JEATEDEY XVI AL¥AIOEd
LITALSIA "OOHIS 0D IS ELYES
0E£'550°T . DE*SS0'T ZPorL ST/91/01 HONYINGWY
. AZNYINEWY 05 1§ 8L8ER
ZT 68§ ZZ'68S TEZIPL  ST/91/0T 1L¥04dNS ST 1L43s
ONI SHOIA¥ES ALITILO €4S LL9tE
00°02% 00021 LT9¥L ST/91/01 NOIS INEM SANAO¥DNIVE
Yad 77 SEINISNANT ADITS 2L9£8
05 01 05°0T 88SYL  ST/91/0T ST0Z ‘L LDO-¥E I4ES
) . ¥dd TYNOILYN HIVILS ¥AATIS SL9€g
00'08T 00061 8¥9¥FL ST/9T/01 TOULNOD ISdd O % TIVD
0008 3H9pL ST/9T/01T TOYINOD ISRd TOOMADOT
. ONI TOWLNOD 1SHd WduEIg ¥LIER
go'00tT’'e 0o o00T'2 £LOYL ST/3T/01 ddN§ UMLJAOS ' SSAIIV HLOWIY
: SHELSAS TOULNOD YH¥AIS L€
96 ' BLS -00°9T 618vL  ST/91/0T aNnNd=y daa
S6°'B6T'T 5T9%L ST/S9T/0T STIYDIWEHD
~00'0ZT 619%L ST/9T/0T aNQdxy aEg
-00'% 6T9¥L ST/9T/01 LIAEYS HSNIH
-00"08 6T9%L ST/8T/01 QNNSEY &30 TO0d
ANVAWOD TYSIWIHD WIHEIS zLoE8
8L LTIO'S zereL’ T6S¥L ST/9I/01T 400 2980-L¥E
YT LG 'Y T69%L ST/9T/0t SNOLLWDINOWWOD-¢1%s-252
26'L8 T69%¢L ST/9t/01 DIOA  00SL-L%8®
ONI SADIANES TYEQTH DJES TL9E8
00 8eS 00°828 TTo%L S1/51/01 SUIINAYE ALIIYE SILIA IS
ONI ANWAMWOD IOH-INYS 0L9E8
B0'6IE‘G BD'61E's ILIBL ST/9T/01 CIZY QI¥Y S€68800000ANTHY
YIH JIHEEIEdd SAYYW INIYS 699¢8
D% 0TE
THLOL INNOWY #SNWEL A of # 0/4 NOILAIUISET ADIOANI JOangA ATAHON
ADEHD NDEHD
ST/91/0T HALSLHEA MOEHD ST/¥T/0T ! 3qeq uny

L abeg ALNNCD AZHOLS STETHS :oN Jxodsy

. -




8

BO'8E6S
00'512

£9°€6L "¢

00°54% 22
009991

09°L9T

00°92T'1

00° 60T

00°086'T

00 Q0T

2z'50¢g

00'009

¥8'86¢€

88 LTIE

oo o8%
000871
00°0S%
00552

00" ¥LT

0% 5E8

TYLOL
ADEHD

afeg

00'90¢
¥9'Ls

807869
oo eTe

£9'9496'T
0o ge8'?

00 se0'ze
00°399°1

67" 84T
It°6
0GTOEE
00'084
00°92
00 00T
00°LEE'T
00'807T
00" Sy
00" 00E
oG8
0054
00° 5L
(4]

00 o0r
00'00¢€

PET66E

LB LLT
T0'0%1T

00" 08P
0o'oet
00'05%
00°§5¢2

00°'591
00's

00" SEY
o000y
[ 4

INNOWY

LZ9%L
LZ9vL

9T9¥L
T09%L

£98%L
£95¥L

TEIFL
689y

S99%L
S99%L

ST9¥%L
ST9VL
STIPL
0E9%L,
F19%L
PTIVL
PIIWL
£TOVL
8I9bL
8T9%L
2T9vL
BTIPL

PZITL
¥Z9%e

£P9vL

TZIvL
229%L

809%L
TIavL
¥SSPL
0Fobe,

0T9vL
0T9bL
LO9YL
LO9bL
L09PL

#SNWUL,

ST/9T/01
ST/91/01

ST/9T/01
ST/9t/01

ST/9T/0T
SY/31/01

ST/9T/07
ST/9T/0T

ST/8T/01
st1/91/0t

ST/9T/0T
ST/91/0T
ST/91/01
ST/91/0T
ST/9T/01
ST/91/01
ST/91/01
S1/91/071
ST/ot/01
ST/9t/01
ST/91/01
ST/51/01

ST/9T/0T
ST/91/01

ST/91/07T

ST/9T/01T
ST/9T/0T

ST/3T/01
$T/9t/01
ST/9t/01
ST/91/0%

ST/9T/0t
ST/91/01

ST/9T1/01
S§T/91/01
S1/9T/01

qLYaQ

TOS ‘LIN‘Hd I¥DOHL ' ANYWEQZO
QYY) 2UC TLL ITOD ALL NIV

SIHOIT SL 1IF
ST60°9LT SuUN ONILSIL YNQ

JCOMXDOT STIYEW MIGWALIES
GOOMA30T SIVEW LSnony

LOVELNOD EDIANES DISNANOL
SEOIAYES LSIAEECT

AEYILAY TO0O LV08PD OF
YUEQD T000 LP0BPO 0F

ST02 ‘L LDO-%Z 1dES

ST0Z 'y L20-vZ 1JES

S0HAIA JA 0T

FETYSUNGWIAY 2T 9EY IDDEM
TTAVSHNENIET T DAY INDEM
ITIVSUNEWIAY 2T DEM IDDEM
HOHVYL OL SIAIND WOLISIA

030 'AON 'IDC
DIATAON 120

SLYH 0828

¥EI- O¥Ed SOLT
S/M- ¥3d S0LT

SHSYD 8 HNIM DA

ST0T “t IO0-%E 1JdES

HIYAEA LETIOL/YZAYd IV

STOEZ ‘L LOQ-%Z IdES

ST0Z ‘L L20-%2 Id4=S

NOILIIUDSHT FIIOANI

SI/9T/01 ¥ALSISFY XIFHD

ALNOOD AFEOLS

YT TYINZWNONIANT NYIISHM
ONI Q2aam

YIYAIN 'ALMNOD HOHSYM

A¥EE ¥OINES ALNACD JOHSYM
HOIAI0 SdIIWAHS Q0D ZOHSWM

SELVIDOSSY % dIATYM

ONI 'N¥Id ADIANIAS MOISIA

ONI S¥N0L ALIO WINIDHIA

1SEA TVACTE ALID WINISWIA

0D ¥¥ AFADNUI % WINIDAIA

ALIDOTEA CHOTIA

JL3A

(S4)  @DIJE0LS0d SN

JTT YOYAEN 40 ALIWZOIINN

LNIWIAOYAWI TYUANTD INL
D MDIg 'ONITHSSLIL

ONI 9DD FHUHI,

‘ATEA’ ONOULSHEY * TYANHOHL

SHILYWIZHL

SROEMOD HNOLSEAWOL FHL

UOANIA

ST/%1/0T
STETad

voLes
EQLES

Z0LE8

1oLER
00LEB

669¢8

969¢£8

LEOER

963¢€8

962¢€8

PESER

£69¢€8

CE9E8

T69¢€8

ce9Ls
689€E8
g89¢8
L8oESB

989¢€8

S89L8

YFENON

ADEHD
io@jed uny
rON jxoday



0L Z8579¢6 TELOL SADTHD

v’ 609 9% 609 TLO%L St/9t/071 oA -ESvVd DOY
ONI ZLH¥ONCD ag LoLes
0005t 'L G0 0SSP 'L 999%L ST/9T/0T dSNI VISEL MANAY 34 ddY
ONI ’'d4vaTiom 20LEl
95°L22°T 0¥ 05 ZE9%s ST/%1/01 3d¥L '907d sdY-Tood
$8°699 [43-3 77 ST/91/07 HIVARY LNVIUAH 3dId
TELOS ZEIPL S1/91/01 YIVJEY INYEQAH FuIs
02 A1ddNS WAYAIN NNILSIM S0L€8
P9'ELO'T 00'oz LZovL ST/9T/0T . WH0JIIT0D TLL
0o 0sL LESVL S1/91/01 OTYH THL TLL'OIVH
TYLOL LNOOWY #ENYEL LY # o/a HOILL4ATYISEQ FOIOAMI YOaNTA HTEWON
AJFHD HADEHD
ST/91/01 ¥HISIOEE NDHHD ST/¥T1/01 ¢ @3eq uny

3 abeg ALNAGD ZFIOLS 51etEd ioN jaodsy




T

afeg

92764

1oL

90/0T S¥T6%0
# 9DT0AUI

S)X0ayD aartieben yo jaodey
ALNOOD AHYOLS

SIY¥d OLOY ALID TYLIAYD SL¥00T ST/9T/0T 9662

BWEN IOPUSA  #pusp 30 %ORYD  Hptoosy

BYI0EIFT ST/PT/0T
862084

funy
faday



HENOISSIHWOD

YIANOISSIWHOD
NYWHIVHD
UTANSYIAL
FATTOELIWOD
ST/9T/0T HIV¥A ¥IIHD 0L E859%6 IYL0L SMOEHD

NOLLYZTHOHLOY GNY MEIAFY J0 INANIZOAZTMONIDY




T

T8'06% '3

18 06%°9

IYIOL
a8 50)

abeg

T6 68T
0s'0T
00'0€
St R0T
[4:24: 5
£5° 8¢
61°'S¢E
0018
06" €91
626
0078271
6L°06
007LT
05781
008§
00° 02T
00" 96
¥6'LEL
€18
6667
ST’ 2€E
A1
8L°T0T
2E'LSE
68° 62T
00°091T
08 6T
S8°LE
26211
00-SLE
go0-a0g
00°SEZT
00°5zT
66°¥vZ
£9'26
68 6ET
£€5'¢e9
ZL'sLE
Ly 1e
2F ' ST
66°9
00°01
S0’ Z¢
S6°¥LS
£9°97
66°81¢
8881
00" S6T
Ze' T
5096
Qv s8¢
jefeReR
g0'g

LNOOWY

509
S09
809
S09
e
609
309
509
Q09
009
009
Q09
009
909
a09
209
909
S09
2090
oee
ogs
005
609
609
609
865
868
868
86§
209
909
209
209
909
o9
209
609
609
g3FT
89¥b1
89%1T
LES
669
¥089
209
£09
£09
£09
(4]
[Aek]
eI
Lo2
909

#SHNTIL

ST/91/01 SEITdANS ZDIJJQ
ST/31/0TAH HIYHYES ONIAAIHS WKW

ST/S8T/0T LSYDAYOUE OIQYY FAIT
ST/31/0T JI2A LIN ALEAVS
ST/9T/0T ONINEYT
ST/9T/0T HIOWAVH d /HORYW/UOKW

ST/9T/0T 6Z/6 SAXVL YD TYINTH

51/91/0T YALIYAY ¥EMOd TIEd
SI/9T/0T IATT-XONUL 'AZNd IYrd
ST/9t/0T TYEW dI¥L FILLYES
ST/9T/0T TEINI ADOEL HIALYM
ST/91/0T dI¥L ITLIVAS
ST/9T/0T ONINMVI JINL dTLLYES
ST/9T/0T OD¥N 6Z/6 uMV¥D TYLNTH

ST/9T/0TAGHSEWAN DEDYN NYWAYHD
ST/9T/0TOH/NASNYE NI qd0DTd-=
ST/ST/0T 9TXd NVWAYHD XOdd0HQ
ST/81/01 SHITAANS SHOS/SHE¥d
ST/9T/0T LXZL STINSA HNILIDGENE
sT/91/0°T ASYD ANOHA
ST/9T/0TNA HHANS 05Pd -S8699%4

ST/9T/0T 0052d WIUAIS-#8699XT
ST/97/0T HWIT AZLIIVYS
51/91/0T FWIT AZLIYS
S1/9T/0T TELOH ZINYITY

ST/9T/0THS LIID ¥0d WAIYM 0007
ST/ST/0TLIIS ¥OAd SEXOE TH IANIM
ST/9T/01 O¥TId ¥ €108 LHOHIN
ST/91/0T SONW ETZELS §SITINIVIS

ST/9T/0T ONINIVHEL MIHOVIOH
ST/9T/0THAYHD STIRST ONILIDANS
ST/91/01 ONINTVYEIL NESNWH
ST/91/0T ONINIVYL NISNYH

ST/9T/01 $T 100 ONINIVYL WINAT

ST/9T/01 HOUYHD WOOH 0IVN
ST/9T1/01 HOYYHD WOOH 0JWN
ST/9T/0% SLYEONOD avy

ST/91/0°T gY0
ST/9T/0T SHITEANS SHHIA IITULS
ST/9T/0T SIITL4NS $AIIA IABULS

ST/9T/0T dL AONZDWIWE TIVLD
ST/9t/0T HEYM QLOY
ST/9T/0T HINNYId NOSLOU TTIZdE
ST/9T/0T ch

ST/9T/0TWAYHD 62/6 ODVYN HANNIA
ST/9T/01IVd HLIVEH SWELI OWOdd
ST/9T/0TANOSAWOONT 1IYW NMNLEY
ST/9T/0T OLO¥EY -NOIWIMISIODZEY
ST/ST/0TH ONINNYIG 3N A9VLESOd
ST/91/0T SIYdT HOod LANJSALKI
ST/9T/0TSUAISNVAL-ANOD FTTASED
ST/9T/0TOD IV 1J4ID ¥OJ FAVHONT
ST/9T/0TVWAVHD 62/6 OD¥N LSJNd

ot A e NCILdTUO5H]

YALSIDED QuUYD) ESYHDUNG

ALNIICD REXOLS

ANYAA-669LT568
NYIET-0049
20Z2Z8P00PPTESLAD
ANYIA-$5L680

OD¥N NALLIHM

ALID ASMINYES NILLIHM
PLOLYBY/LETTO HIA
qaL

ALNNOD HOACH-YIIIEWAS
SATYNOTDN - YLLEUNS

MO THEAYH - YLLTHNS

NNI L¥04HO0D-YLLENAS
LAQAUTY - YLLEENS
0BSGEZESD WY
TLSET86HAT LATADEY
LETE8EZTS-0590" ' ' #ody
XEOAMLATAWTT# DIH
PEIZETOSH YATAO
LG9ZE60-0E" " # QHO
INIdS-NIATNH
AWO-NIATNA
ANT-NTATNN

CO¥N XAIINO0N

COYN AS2ANOON

COWN HATYEIN

NI¥dS ¥D0¥ a¥y NI aj
HHL-ONIDYNOWd 515 A
FOETIEIAN NOZYWY a3
FUNIVINAING NOLAY aX
ZIFOYTHANT

6Z90FT# ANI

99%0FT# ANI

YOPODPTH# ANT

9897 LPCOANI# ANT
NYTLSTM LEET THOWAYH
FINYITY TAOHAYH
LSTHOTI SHUYAS NIVA
OO¥N NIVd
$1/52/6-N4S0d
ST/%2/6-NASOU
§1/82/6 NASOQ

SYH ZIVS NEATOD aa
QOEAAIAQONT THNYEA MO
HYEHFANOD HOAL I¥NGD
ZEOTH MOEHD

INIdWIV -NIAHN'D
§dSn -NIAGN'D
SMOHSTAIA -NIAZN'D
84S0 DA IWENYIHDONA
ZIRIV IMANVIHDONE
DHS 9409 -WAONITATEE
8400TYS ¥HOLOH
896£80# HINY

LNAWAYA

# HDIOANI

*TBIOL PIEDs

TQUYD IYIDHINWCD HENO STTdm £9
IAHEd-aNDE FOONEA UHEWAN
2d
ST/PT/0T a3eg uny

L508¥5dd ON 3xodeu

1
o




4

FANOISSTHWHOD

aiwd NOILYZIMCHIOY GNY MIIALN JO INIWIOATTMONAOV

TYLOL LNOOWY #SNTUTL HLYAQ NOILITHDSHG # EDIOANI 1JIC-ANNS HOCNEA HEHWNN
addo ad
HHLISIDEY J¥vD FSYHOUNG ST/PT/0T ¢ @3mg uny

abeg AINOOD ARHOLS L508v9Ed ‘oN 3zoday




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: November 3, 2015 Estimate of time required: 0-5 mins

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda {] Public hearing required [ ]

f. Title: For Possible Action — Approval — Assessor’s petition to designate taxes on certain
personal property as uncollectible

2. Recommended motion: Approval

3. Prepared by: Tobi Whitten
Department: Assessor’s Office Telephone: §47-0961

4, Staff summary: Unsecured account # CM 001311, United Milling and Refining, has been
overassessed by their own error with extenuating circumstances for the 2012-13, 2013-14
and 2014-15 tax years. Using NRS 361.5607 as a guide to designate the overassessment as
uncollectible will allow this office to adjust their tax bills to what they should have been for
those years. The taxpayer is currently being cooperative and has stated that they will make
payments towards satisfying their personal property taxes once we have worked out a

payment plan.

5. Supporting materials: Please see attached letter with amounts to designate as uncollectible,
and new personal property tax and penalty amounts.

6. Fiscal impact: Unknown

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
____ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
_ X ___ Department Hea epartment Name: Assessor’s Office

Q%C(my Manager Other agency review:

0. Board action:
[] Approved [1] Approved with Modifications
[

[ Denied ] Continued

Agenda Item No. '7




STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE
25 South B Street

P.0. Box 484

Virginia City, NV 89440

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR

(775) 847-09G1 Phone
{775) 8470904 Fax
Assessor@StoreyCounty.org

October 19, 2015

TO:  Storey County Board of County Commissioners

RE: United Milling and Refining Corp.
CM 001311
Uncollectable Unsecured Property Taxes

Dear Sirs,

Our office has been provided with a list of the equipment located at the former United Milling
and Refining Corp. facility, 1280 Alexandria Court, McCarran, and informed that the equipment
on our Unsecured Tax Roll, as last declared by the company in 2012, had been grossly over-
reported by the previous President of the Board of Directors for the purpose of misleading their
investors. Per the discussion, the facility has remained completely idle, and what equipment was
actually there was turned on and cleaned up to run only when an investor was visiting, “for
show.” The account has been billed based on the reported assets since the 2012-13 year. Since
the last filed report, our office has also placed estimates of value per NRS 361.265 on the
account and billed them accordingly for the 2013-14 and 2014-15 tax years, as no reports had
been filed for those years after demand for their return was made.

Mr. Ken Barker stated that he had recently been appointed to handle the business, as there were
ongoing issues with the previous Board of Directors. He has been attempting to seftle as many
debts as possible incurred by the previous Board, as the company and (as I understand it) the
equipment has already been sold again. They had the equipment on-site inventoried and
appraised in-house by the Plant Facilities Manager in March 2015. Mr. Barker and his colleague
stated that, every time they have visited the facility as investors over the past several years, there
has been no change in the quantity or condition of the equipment. They have asked that we
amend the 2012-13, 2013-14 and 2014-15 Unsecured Tax Bills to reflect the equipment listing
and values (costs) that they have provided to us.

The current, total delinquent Unsecured Tax Bill amount is $116,736.97, which includes both
reported assets not in the possession of the business and estimates of additional asset value
placed on the account by our office per NRS. Add to that the fact that the facility has changed
hands again and has been idle for several years after not generating income, Mr, Barker and
United Milling and Refining Corp. are not going to be able to satisfy the existing bill.

Storey County is an Equal Opportunity Provider




M. Barker has also informed us that they will likely be relocating some or all of the equipment
in question to a storage facility outside of Storey County, due to what he has claimed is a
disagreement with the new tenants in the facility at 1280 Alexandria Court, This will make it
extremely difficult, if not impossible, to recover any outstanding taxes owed should seizing and
selling the equipment become necessary. [ believe that, while the taxpayer is being cooperative,
it would be in the best interest of the County to adjust these tax bills to what they should have
been and set them up on a structured payment plan.

Given the 2015 appraised cost of equipment at the facility as provided, we have used the 2015-
16 Personal Property Manual provided by the Nevada Department of Taxation to derive trended
Assessed Values for the 2012-13, 2013-14 and 2014-15 years (using the conversion factors
provided for 15 Year Life equipment and basically reversing depreciation). In order to recover
the tax amount that should in all likelihood have actually been due to Storey County from this
entity the equipment is relocated and they disappear, | recommend amending the Unsecured Tax
Bills for United Milling and Refining Corp. as follows:

2014-15 2013-14 2012-13
Billed Assessed Value 1,173,570 997,732 961,125
Taxes Billed $40,613.74 53452851 $33,261.65
Penalties/Interest/Publication $4,065.98 $3,457.92 $3,326.17
Amount Paid $2,517.00
Amended Assessed Value 214,099 245,920 278,297
Amended Tax Bill $7.409,32 $8,510.55 $9,631.02
Amended Penalties/Interest/Publication $745.54 385567 $96310
Amount Paid $2,517.00
Amended Balance Owing $8,154.86 $9,366.22 $8,077.12
~ UNCOLLECTIBLE |  $36,524.86 | $28,620.21 | $25,993.70

AMOUNT (NRS 361.5607)

1 have been advised that the most appropriate and expeditious way to complete the above
amendments to the Unsecured Tax Bills for United Milling and Refining Corp., account CM
001311 is to deem the remaining balance after adjustments as Uncollectible per NRS 361.5607.
No refund is necessary at this time, as the proposed amended balances have not been satisfied.

As the Personal Property Tax Collector, 1 hereby petition this board to designate the above
amounts as uncollectible and allow me to adjust the corresponding unsecured taxes and proceed

with attempts to collect.

(775) 847-0961
(775) 847-0904 fax
iseddon(@storeycounty.org




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Mecting date: |- —*f & Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings

2. Recommended motion; None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda)
I move to approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request)

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966

4. Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioners’ meeting for approval.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: None
7y s s District Attorney

Department Name: Community Development

@%unty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—L

Agenda Item No 8




Storey County Community Bebelopment
Business |

P O Box 526 » Virginia City NV 89440 - (775) 8470966 * Fax {775) 847-0935 - huslic@storeycounty.org

To:

Fr

Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office October 26, 2015
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email
Stacey Bucchianeri

Please add the following item(s) to the Nevember 3, 2015, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

FReMZOEESOR R

=

ecl

RENO PROVISIONS — General / 100 North Sierra ~ Reno (food truck)

FLEXIBLE ASSEMBLY SYSTEMS - Contractor / 9240 Mira Esbe Ct. ~ San Diego (tools distributor)
US TEST & BALANCE CORP -~ Contractor / 10 Corporate Park Dr ~ Hopewell Junction, NY (hvac)
SUNRUN INSTALLATION SVC — Contractor / 595 Market ~ San Francisco, CA (pv installer)
LABEEG BUILDING SVCS — General / 225 Keystone Avenue ~ Reno (janitorial service)

X1, LANDSCAPE DEVELOPMENT, LLC - Contractor / 4460 Riviera Ridge ~ Las Vegas (landscaper)
MODERN MINING SOLUTIONS, LLC — General / 1280 Alexandria Court TRI
SIMPSON GUMPERTZ & HEGER, INC. — Professional / 41 Sevon St ~ Waltham, MA (eng svcs.)
JAMES MAGGARD DESIGN CONS - Professional / 14665 Ambric Knolls ~ Saratoga, CA (eng)
GRAYBAR ELECTRIC CO - Contractor / 150 East Greg Street ~ Sparks (electrical distributor)
SHRED-IT RENO - Contractor / 8670 Technology Way ~ Reno (document destruction contractor)
JUGGERNAUT SERVICES, LLC dba Square 1 Solutions ~ Professional / 780 Smithridge Drive ~ Reno
(staffing solutions)

. DUSOUTH INDUSTRIES dba DST Controls — Contractor / 651 Stone Road ~ Benicia, CA (IT svcs.)

Inspection Required

Chris Hood, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept. Assessor’s Office
Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Fritz Klingler, Fire Dept. Comumissioners’ Office




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 11/03/15 Estimate of time required: 30 min.

Agenda: Consent | | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Presentation by Ed James of the Carson Water Subconservancy District (CWSID) including an
overview of activities of the CWSD and impacts on the Carson River Watershed area caused by
the drought. The presentation will also include various programs such as flood preparedness,
regional water supply, the CWSD watershed literacy survey, flood planning, and education
outreach.

2. Recommended motion: No action; receive and file

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne on behalf of CWSD Director Ed James
Department: Planning Telephone: 847-1144
4, Staff summary: Presentation with no action as described in the title language
5. Supporting materials: None '
6. Fiscal impact: None on local government
Funds Available: Fund: ____ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed,by: '
Department Head Department Name:
OMy Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e ey
g

Agenda Item No. f |




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda{] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: TRI PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP
Schedule of Project Revenue
And Net Revenue
And
Supplementary Information
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
2. Recommended motion
I do hereby make a motion to approve the TRI Public-Private Partnership for the year
ended June 30, 2014

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone:

4. Staff summary:
3. Supporting materials: June 30, 2014 audit report

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: % Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
7,_{2 Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
ounty Manager Other agency review:

oard action:
[1] Approved
[1] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

———
| S T

Agenda Item No. | 77




March 17,2015

Board of County Commissioners
Storey County, Nevada

Drawer D .

Virginia City, Nevada 88440

Tahoe-Reno Industriat Center, LLC
cfo Norman Properties '
PC Box 838

Poway, California 92074

We have audited the schedule of project revenue and net revenus of the TRI Public-Private Partnership (Project) for the
year ended June 30, 2014, and have issued bur report thereon dated March 17, 2015. Professional standards require
that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, as well as
certain information related fo the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our
letters to you dated May 1, 2014, Professional standards also require that we communicate fo you the following
' information related to our audit. o o L L S

Significant Audit Findings
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Pfac_t;'ces

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounfing policies related to the Project's net revenle are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. .No
new accounting. policies were adepted and the application of existing. policies was not changed during 2014.
Certain amounts have been included and excluded from the schedule of project revenue and net revenue based
upon the agreements between the parties. ‘ : _ : .

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financiz| statements prepared by management and are based on
management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements
and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected.

Issues concerning significant estimates made by management include:

" Management's ideniification of &nd process for making significant accounting estimates.
‘Risks of material misstatement, T : S
indicators of possible management bias. . :
Disclosure of estimation uncertainty in the financial statements.

* & & w»

The most significant. estimates affecting youf scheduie of project revenue and net revenue is the base ufilized for -
Project costs based upon the joint agreement between the parties, . - : S :

We evaluated the key faclors and assumptions used fo déve'!'o-p -estimates in defermining that they are -
reasonable in relation lo the financial statements taken as.a whole. . K :

" A significant portion of Project revenue and the ‘annual debt limit calculation is derived from real and personal
property taxes that are based upon assessed vaiues. The assessed values are estimated by the Storey County

Assessor's Office and such valuations have not been subjected to any audit procedures. .
* \We considered issues involved, and related judgménts made, in-formulating sensitive disclosures accompanying
the schedule of project revenue and net revenue and believe they are presented with overall neutrality,
consistency, and clarity. : ' T '
Difficulties Encountered During the Audit

We encountered no signiﬁcah_t difficulties in deafing with management in perfoerming and cpmpletihg our audit.

| 6310 Kietzke Lane, Suite 101, Reno, Nevada 89511 - 775-828-7300 - Fax: 776-826-7305




Storey County and the - i . - ) ' 2
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC i - .
March 17, 2015

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatemenis

Professional standards require us to accumulate all ‘misstatements identified during the audit, other than
those that are clearly trivial, and comminicate them to the appropriate level of management. We proposed )
three adjustments that resulted in an increase in net revenue of $31,152. '

Drsagreements with Management

-For purposes of this letter, a drsagreement with management is a financial accounttng, reporting, or auditing

- matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the schedule of project
revenue and net revenue or the auditor's report We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose
during ihe course of our audit.

Management Representatrons

‘We have requested certain representations from the responstb!e parties that are included in the
management representation letters dated March 17, 2015, :

'Management Consultations with Orher Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may dec:de fo consult with other accountants about auditing and acoountmg
matters, similar to obtaining-a “secand opinion™ on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of
an aocounttng principle to the schedule of project revenue and net revenue or a determination of the type of
auditors' opinion that may be expressed on that schedule, our professional standards require the consuiting
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has alt the relevant facts To our knowledge )
‘there were no such consuttattons with other accountants

Other Audit Frndmgs or lssues

: We generat]y discuss & variety of matters |nclud|ng the applrcatron of accountmg principles and auditing

" standards, with management each year prior to retention as the independent zuditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professtonat relattonshtp and our responses were not a .
condition to our retentlon ‘

Under professional standards, we are required to inform you about transacttons we noted that were both

significant and unusual, or transactions for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. We
noted no such transactlons reflected in the schedule of project revenue and net revenue. .

- Other Matters

' Supplementary !nf_ormation -

Except for the supplementary information marked, “unaudited,” we made cerfain inquiries- of management

" and evaluated the form,.content, and methods of preparing the supplementary information accompanying
the schedile of project revenue and. net revenue to determine that the .information is presented. in
_accordance with .the development agreement .between Storey Counly, Nevada and the Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center LLC, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information
"is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the schedufe of project revenue and net revenue. We
compared and reconciled the supplementary information to ‘the underlying accounting records used to
prepare the scheduie of project revenue and net revenue or to the schedule itself,

This rnformatton is 1ntended solely for the information and use of the members and management of the, Tahoe-Reno

Industrial Center, LLC and Commissioners and management of Storey. County. Nevada, and is not mtendsd to be,
and should not be used by anyone other than these speott' ied parties.

. Smcerely, o

' KOHN & COMPANY LLP . -

(o Clen

‘Connie Christiansen, CPA, CFE; CGMA




TRl PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUE |
AND NET REVENUE
R AND :
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

* FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014




TRI PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP

JUNE 3C, 2014

TABLE OF CONTENTS

" INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT |
SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUE AND NET PROJECT REVENUE

NOTES TO SCHEDULE.

' SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedute of Net Revenue Reimbursement
- Schedule of Project Vouchers
_Schedule of Reimbursement Limits-

© 00 I

—
2




Kohn & Company..

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT.

To the Members

Tahoe-Reno Indusfriai Center, LLC and
To the Commissioners

Storey County, Nevada -

We have audited the accompanying schedule of project revenue and net revenue of the TRI Public-Private Partnership

(Project) for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the schedule. The prior year summarized

comparative information has been derived from the Project's 2013 schedute of project revenue and net revenue and, in
our report dated November 14, 2014, we expressed an unqualified opinion on that schedule.

Management's Re’sbonsibi[ity for the Schedule

Storey County is. responsmle for the preparation and fair presentation’ of this schedule in accordance with the
develdpment agreement between Storey County, Nevada and Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC (TR1Y dated February 1,
2000, as amended. Storey Colnty is 2lso responsible for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal controt
relevant to the preparatron and fair presentatton of the schedule that is free from materral mrsstatement whether due to
fraud or error : r .

' Audttors Responsmrllty

‘Our responsabrhty is to express an opinion on the schedule based on our audrt We conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the schedule of prorect revenue and net revenue is free,

of material mlsstatement

An aud:t involves performing procedures to obtain audrt evidence about the amounts and d:sclosures in the schedule, The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the schedule, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the schedule in order to design aldit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of srgnrﬁcant accounting estimates fnadée by management as well as
evaluating the overalt presentetron of the schedule ] .

We belreve that the audit evrdence we have obtained is suff cient and appropnate to provrde a basrs for our audrt opinion,

Op:nlon

: In our opinion, the schedule of pro;ect revenue and net revenue referred to above presents fairly, in all meterrel respects

the projéct revenue and net revenue of the TRI Public-Private Parinership for the year ended June 30, 2014, in
" accordance with the financial reporiing provisions of the. development agreement between Storey County Nevada and
" Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC as amended. .

‘Basis of Accounting

We draw aftentiori to Note 1 of the schedule, which describes the basis of ‘accounting. The schedule is prepared by
Storey County on the basis of the financial reporting provisions of the development agreement between Storey County,
Nevada and Tzhoe-Reno Industrial Center; LLC., as amended, which s a basis of accounting -other than accounting
pnnclples generally accepted in the United States of America, fo comply with the financial repomng prowszons of the
-contract referred to. above Cur oprnron is not modified with respect to this matter

5310 Kietzké Lane, Su'ite 101, Reno, N.evad_a '895‘11 :775-828-7300 - Fax; 775-828-7305‘

”ano‘ﬁ

6‘('




Other Matter '

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the schedule of project revenue and net revenue of the
TRI Private-Public Partnership as a whole. The supplementary information included in pages 8 through 10 is presented
- for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the schedule of project revenue and net revenue. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and related direcily to the underlying accounting
and other racords used to prepare the schedule of project revenue and net revenue. Except for the information marked,
“unaudited,” the supplementary information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
schedule of project revenue and net revenue and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
informatian directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the schedule of project revenue and
net revenue or to the schedule of project revenue and net revenue Hself, and other additional procedures in accordance
" with auditing standards generally accepted in-the United States of America. In.our opinion, except for the information
marked, “‘unaudited,” the supplementary ihformation is fairly stated in all material respects fo the schedule of project
revenue and net revenue as a whole, * The information marked. “unaudited” has not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the schedule of project revenue and net revenue and, accordingly. we do not express
an opinion gr provide any assurance on it. o

Restriction on Use

Our report is intended solely for the information and use of the members and management of the Tahoe-Reno Industrial

Center, LL.C-and the Commissioners and management of Storey County, Nevada, and is not intended to be and should

" not be used.by_anyone other than these specified parties,

%M#Wwbuﬂ

- Reno, Nevada .
Marchr 17,2015




TRI PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP
SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUE AND NET REVENUE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(WETH COMPARAT!VE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 201 3)

2013
} (Memorandum
2014 C Only)
PROJECT REVENUE . : i . ) .
‘ Sales tax ) - § S
Real and personal property taxes ‘ . : 3,571,635 3415772
Business licenses and fees - 7 L . 38,975 E 35,168
-Building and special use permits : : T . 581,373 - 195,822
Real property transfer taxes ‘ B 28,483 8,135
Fire and safety inspection fees ' ’ ) - © 123,302 -~ - 71,988
Ambulance and fire fees . _ : R - A -
Recorder fees o , o - ‘ ' 3287 - 2,357
Total project revenue . e T 4,347,035 3,729,242
STIPULATED PROJECT COSTS ’ S - S Co 2,278,183 ' 2,169,678

‘NETREVENUE © . oo . $ 2068872 §. 1,559,563

~ See accompanying notes

3-




 NOTES TOSCHEDULE .




: TRI PUBLIG-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIF’
MOTES TC THE SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUE AND NET REVENUE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2014

NOTE 1 -

NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC (TRI) owns approximately 82,000 acres, of which more than 8,000
acres is zoned for industrial usage within Storey County, Nevada (County). On February 1,2000, TR, along
with DP Operating. Partnership, L.P., entered into & development agreement with the County for the
purpeses of completing structures, including grading, infrastructure, and all public facilities related to the
‘property owned by TRI. The TRI Public-Private Parinership (Project) represents the commitment between
TRI and the County to fund the capital infrastructure costs and local community services required by the
development agreement. According to the ‘agreements, TR s responsible for the construction of the Project
public infrastructure, which shall be dedicated to and maintained by the County, such as streets, sidewalks
and streetlights; flood control drainage channels, storm drains, basins and other related facilities: and
County building complexes (i.e. fire stations, police’ stations, public works maintenance yards, and
administrative offices). TRI is also responsible for the construction of ihe Project private infrastructure, -

* which shall be dedicated to and maintained by the TRI General Improvement District, such as community

water and sewer faciliies. The utilities shall be dedicated to the purveyors. The railroad track and refated

facilities; landscaping of common areas; private trails and parks; and other-property not dedicated to the

County shall be constructed by TRI and dedicated to the TRl Owners Association. The County is
responsfble for separatély récording certain revenue and expenses directly attributable to the Project,

‘approving relmbursahle costs and determlnlng the annuai nef revenue reimbursement to TRt if applicable.

The agreements establlsh a threshold-of $5,000,000 for the Project net revenue before any relmbursements
are made to TRI for Project-related infrastructure costs. This revenue threshold was met during the year

ended June 30, 2008. Accordingly, the County is responsible for reimbursing TRI for the outstanding

approved Project vouchers up to 35% of the annual net revenue, The County's annual debt is fimited to 5%

" of the Project assessed valuation. See the supplementary schedules on page 10 for the calculation of these . -
* limitations. . . . e

' .Regomng Entlty

This schedule includes only selected f nandal activity attributable to the PmJect and. such mformatlon has
been extracted from the financial records of Storey County. Nevada ' ‘

~ Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenue and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported

in the schedule. For purposes of this schedule, revenue includes only amounts actually received by the
County within the fiscal year. .

Pro ect Revenue :

Project revenue includes taxes and fees recorded by the County from Project-related sources. Project

- revenue does not include portions of any iax which are not actually distributed to the County or are -
' dedtcated revenue for earmarked programs not assomated with Project services. : .

. Stlpulated Prmect Costs

In lleu of allocating actual operatlons and maintenance costs capital outlay and overhead TRI and the

‘County have stlpulated to a base total of $1,700,000 for Project costs for the year ended June 30, 2008 with

scheduled annual increases of 5% Accordingly, the stipulated project costs for the year ended June 30,

2013 total §2.278,163.

: Use of Estimates

' The preparatlon of the schedule of protect revenue and net revenue and supplementary schedules includas .-

estimates and assumptions that affect certam reported amounts and dlsclosures Accordmgly, actual résults

A _ could differ from those estlmates




TRI PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUE AND NET REVENUE (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 -

NOTE 1 -

"NOTE 2 -

" NOTE 3 -

NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Subseuuent Events

Subsequent events have been evatuated through March 1? 2015, which represents the date the schedule
of project revenue and net revenue was available to be issued. Subsequent events after that date have not
been evaluated.

VOUCHERS

Through June 30, 201‘4. the Storey County Board of Commissioners has accepted vouchers totaling
$46,900,059 and approved payments and credits against property taxes owed by TRI totaling $4,135,883.
At June 30, 2014, outstandmg approved vouchers totaled $42,863,166, which does not inciude the followmg

' subsequent activities:

. t) Subm|ssson of a voucher for mfrestructure costs tncurred during the year ended June 30 2013 -
totaling $9, 894, which has not yet been approved by the County. L

2} Vouchers totaling $624,706 that were peld August 25 2014 the form of a credit agamst property
taxes owed by TRL ‘ .

) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to year end, the State of Nevada notified the County that sales taxes generated within the

" CGounty exceeded the Supplemental City-County Relief Tax (SCCRT) threshold, which would allow the
: County 1o elect to be removed from its current “guaranteed” status. If the County elects to be removed from

the guaranteed SCCRT, the County will receive revenue based on actual sales taxes collected from County.

- sources, which may have a sighificant impact on future Project net revenue. Currently, no portion of the

SCCRT is allocated tothe Project revenue because the amount the County receives is not affected by the
existence of the TRI properties. Once a county is removed from thé! guaranteed SCCRT, the dems:on is
permanent and the guaranteed status cannot be remstated : S




éUPF_’LEMENTARY INFORMATION




- TRI PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION .
SCHEDULE OF NET PROJECT REVENUE REIMBURSEMENT
o FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013)

2013 .
- . {Memorandum
: _ 2014 - Only)

NET PROJECT REVENUE L S ' N
For the year ended June 30, 2002 R o ' $ 622,967 $ 622,967
For the year ended June 30, 2003 ‘ o . _ 281,152 281,152
For the year ended June 30, 2004 _ : ' . - 520,102 . 820,102

" For the year ended June 30,2005 - - o 599,079 596,079 -
. For the year ended Jung 30, 2006 ‘ o - 1095455 1,095,455
_For the year ended June 30, 2007 : ' e 1,537,981 ' 1,637,981
For the year ended June 30, 2008 : . o . 1,608,839 . 1,608,939
" For the year ended June 30,2009 . B ' . 1,844,154 1,844,154
‘For the year ended June 30, 2010 . . . ‘ 2,467,573 2,467,573
"For the year ended June 30, 2011 : 279,714 2,179,714
For the year ended June 30, 2012 ] ) . : 1,672,476 1,672,476
. Forthe year ended June 30, 2013 . o o . 1,869,663 1,669,563
For the year ended June 30, 2014 o . . 2,068,872 - . -
: ‘ , S 18,158,027 16,089,155
Revenue threshold . ) o (5,000,000) (5,000,000)
" Total net project revenue reimbursement ' 7 43,158,027 . . 11,089,155
LESS CUMULATIVE REPAYMENTS THROUGH JUNE3Q - - o | (4,135,803)  (3,238460)
_ Total net project revenue reimbursement - : :
over cumulative repayments through June 30 .. 8 9,022,134 % 7,850,695

See accompanying notes

8




TRI PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP

_ SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT VOUCHERS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

During the Year Ended

§_ 46,970,577 §_ (3,238,460) ¥

28,482 § (897.433) - 3

Prior to June 30,2013 June 30, 2014 June 30, 2014
Total ) : Cutstanding
Approved Vouchers Vouchers Vouchers Approved
‘ Vouchers Paid Approved Paid Vouchers
Location/Costs © {Unaudited) {Unaudited) (Unaudited) ~ (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Waltham Way Phase | $ 751,562 % (751,562) § - 3 - -
Waltham Way Phase || _ 3,226 (3,226) - - -
Fire Station - : ‘ . )

Includes Hydrants 3,093,856 (2,483,672) - . (610,184) -
Britain 510,546 - - (287.249) 223,297
Denmark ' ' 804,327 - - Co. 804,327
Ireland - : 318,999 - - - 318,999
italy © . 285,648 - - - 285,648
‘London 373,298 - - - 373,299
Milan . 695025 . - - - 695,025
Peru ' 1,980,606 e - - 1,980,606
Pittsburgh _ ' © . 202,328 - - - 202,328
Portofine’ ' _ 3,685,873 ‘ - - - 3685873
RR Spur ' 4,918,261 - - - -4.918,261
Sydney . 589,985 ' s “ - 589,985
USA Interchange ~ - 10,725,755 . - - 10,725,755

 USA Parkway 2,484,529 _ - - '2,4B4,529

USA Parkway Phase i 8,920,764 - - - 8,920,764

- USA Parkway Phase lli 3,618,063 - - - 3,618,083

USARR Brldge 2,380,905 < - - 12,380,905
Venice . : : 507,017 - - - 507,017
Infrasfructure T : i ’ '

2010-2011 Fiscal Year 120,013 - - - 120,013
2011-2012 Fiscal Year - - . - 28 482 - - 28,482
42,863,166

* Total does not include the following activitles:

1) Submission of a voucher for infrastructure costs incurred during the year ended June 30, 2013
totaling $9,894, which has not yet been approved by the County.

2) Vouchers totaling $624,706 that were paid August 25, 2014 in the form of a credit against

properiy taxes owed by TRL

3} Storey County has established the TRI Payback Fund in order to accumulate maney for the payback
. of approved vouchers. At June 30, 2014, the TRI Payback Fund balance totaled $1,781,685.

See accompanying notes

9 .




TRI PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF REIMBURSEMENT LIMITS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

{WITH COMPARATIVE TOTA_LS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013)

ANNUAL DEBT LIMIT CALCULATION
Project Assessed Valuation (Unaudited)
Land :
Amprovements
Persanal property

Total net project assessed valuation
Percentage allowed

Annual debt limit

ANNUAL NET REVENUE LIMIT CALCULATION.
Net revenue
Percentage allowed

Annual net revenue limit

ANNUAL ELIGIBLE REIMBURSEMENTS-BASED ON DEBT LIMITS
Junie 30, 2011
‘June 30, 2012
Jupe 30, 2013
June 30, 2014

REImbursed vouchers
- Eligible reimbursements based on
debt limits at June 30

SUMMARY OF OUTSTANDING VOUCHERS
Total outstanding approved vouchers, beginning of year
-Add new vouchers approved '
" Less reimbursements from Storey County
Approved outstanding vouchers
Approved outstandmg vouchers in excess of reimbursement limits

Approved outstanding vouchers eligible for reimbursement

See accompanying notes

10

2013
(Memorandum
2014 Oniy)
68,963,210 67,834,370
98,161,639 95,929,885
46,499,217 . 42,847,008
213,624,066 206,711,263
5% 5%
10,681,203 10,335,563
2,068,872 1,559,563
35% 35%
724,105 545,847
- ' 444,134
191,041 ‘585,367
545,847 545,847
. 724,105 .
1,460,993 1,575,348
(897,433) {838,460)
563,560 736,888
43,732,117 44,570,577
28,482 .
(897,433) (838,460)
"42,863,166 43,732,117
(42,299,606) (42,995,229)

563,560 |

736,888




FE 508 LT D0 65T 8LE YY v9€S6¢ ZLTEBDFE T6 6LT EZ €9 E9T LY HONVENSNI BLIV¥AH ¢00-Z2102§

8089 0o’ 80° 99 vl 00° 00 HYId LO INHAR ‘I¥IDHAS/LOVd QTZZ-T10ZS
1€°6 00 TIE°6 00" 00" 00 SHDIVE THWYD/LOYE SO0T-TT0ES
iv'1e 00" 15214 0o0- 00’ 60" NOIIVYEIA LEFYLS/LOWd FOE-IT0ZS
00°EST 00" 00°2s1 00- oo~ g0’ HOVH 'IDADOIOW XI¥d dNYY9/LOWd T0Z-1102§
9588 00 EERE:1- 00- 00- 00" LNAWADWHNYH STa0d vISn/LOYd #5T-TTO0ES
[ A3 =T A 00°LTZL’OST 26 163 '5LT I8°6%0°9 T6 E£6E'ET ZLEVF ST IO¥d Q00-TTI0ZS
08" ELE 00" Qg ELE VIVl 00 oo TITd YYTIAA/SHAI LYL-0T0ES
-8T 016 1T 00" ¥59° P59 T8 EVLEVY 08°58L78T 05 ¥55°¥%S 0E'DYETEL S¥HEd Q00-0T02%
80" FST 00'69T°ST 80 EEE’ST ¥L"98S 80"¥92'1L 28 058°T ALIAIDNOT 000-0Z0TS
YELET Q0" YETLET 00 00 00" SHOVE THWYD/HWIIHNIAO S0Z-TTI0TS
£T°€08'1 Q0" £1°€0Z'1 00° 00- 00" NOILVIEIA LESULS/HHILIIAQ FOZ-TIQLS
6Z2'859 00" 62" 85% 00" 00" 00" EOWE IDADOLOA XI¥E ONYID/AWILYIAO TOZT-TTOTS
68'8TL 01 000007961 68°8TL"902 ¥TS6L L EE"EEE’9T LY BZT ¥T HWNIIHIAQ CO00-ITOTS
€6°TZ0'C g0’ £6°1Z0°C 00° ] uhe 00" AUId UVIQEd/SEOYM ¥ SHIUWIYS LFL-0TI0TS
96'EZE 00" 96" €CE oo o0 00" FUTA Lo LNAAE IYIDALS/SEOYM ¥ SEATUVIVS 0ZZ-0T0TS
0F'5e oo’ 0%°59 0o- 00 0o- SHOVHE TANVD/SEOVM ¥ SHIHNYIYS S0Z~0TO0TS
Z¥°0ST oo- 2% 0ST 00" [+ vie 00" NOILWIEIA LHIULS/SEDYM ¥ SHINYIVS $02-0T0TS
06 822 00" 067822 00" 00" 00" EIWd IDADOLOW XT¥d ONVYH/SEOVM ¥ SHIIYVIVS TOZ-0T0TIS
05'26% 00" 05°z€9 00-° 00- g0 INEHIDVNYH S7dAnd va50/STOYM § SAETEVIVS ¥5T-0T0TS
-T6°0T6°2Y 00" ¥ZY 999’1 G0 ETS EZI'T 0% "GLL 0¥ 99°898'8ET 90 F¥9BLT SHOVYM % SHINYIVS 000-0T0TS
INFWLEYAAd FHIL 0E0
heLPharcs
- SEANLIANIdXE
a2t gec Ef
TE ZTLBES 00" 950 ‘6EE '€ BE BC6 C6EL T Y8 tet 0LE 29°¥SC 8L 9% "8LS 'BFS SENNZARY TYLOL
00000 eET 00" Q0 000°ET 00" 000"2T 0o- 00°000°ZT THIANID WOMS HIJASNYIL 000-€0ZL€
LB LSE'T [s]vie LB LSE'T 00" 00” 00" SUNEWIEY WIYTD HONVAOQSNI 000-009%¢€
ES ERL’T 00" £STEVLIT 8¥ TLE oo 8% "TLE SANNAEY 000-0ESSE
73 LTE'9 oo0- P9 LZE'9 -Z6°L6Z og- ~Z6 LBZ VIALO - DSIMW 000-0GSSE
00°"ST9 00" 00919 0092 00° o0tse HLA¥d SNOILYNOG/EIHINOD 000-00v9E
00T00Z'T 00" 00°00T°T 00002 00" 00-00e SHILTYAQY - SINIEY 000~0CESE
00" 00°009 LS 00 009°LS -00°008'¥ 00" 008'% 00- SHOIAYMES ¥Q4 ESUVHD 000-Z1e¥e
-L0"S¥E°'SOT 007000 '0ET €6 ¥S0°FCT -99°'99T'%2 9999161 -00"000°'S JAAT EIA-SONITIIE 000-GTERE
TL 889 T 00°000 €T TL 88V PT LS TIV'T €L EBD'T 00°96%°€E WEAD0Ud FONYINGWY 000-80EFE
€6 ZTLL POT 0o0° €6 ZLL'POT £9°086'0E 00° £97086°02 TYIVLSNANI ONHY HOHYL/SHII NOILDHASNI 00S-LOEVE
-9€'gLB B 007000 %9 ¥9'LZT ST -E€'E60°S €€ €E€E’S 00" 0%z §d34 NOILDEASNI 000-LOE¥E
0% SE0°L 00°G0O0'0%T 0% S60°L¥T -06°519 00" 00002 0T ¥8E’6T HEA HETA/EONYINEWNY 000-20€EFE
Qg 008°T 00° Nn.ﬁ%&@.{ 00°008'T 00"’ o 00 WIS TIIH/STOVE IMYY¥dd/SINFAR IVIDEAS 90Z-ETEVE
00" SL9 0o” = 00°SL9 0o’ 00" 00" SHOVY THWYD/SINZAZ TYIDAAS $0Z-ETTIVE
-00T08L7Y 000006 00°052°¢Z -00°05¢L 00°0SL 00° SINEAE TYIDA4S 000-ETTVE
PT I8% ¥ 00° 956 ‘654 ¥I LEDP TSL z9°'008 99°6ZL"E9 8Z°0€8'€9 LdDDS 000-LOSEE
£8°'BZS’'BT 0o £E8°'8ZS'BT S5°'16 00" 99° 16 IYIELSNANI ONEY HOHYL/SAdS FENIDIT SSENISND 00S-TOZZE
88 §55L°¢ 00-005’9 L ¥PL'E -899'ESY 99°T¥S 0088 Sd3d ISNHEDIT SSENISNY 000-TOEZZE
£€9°GT¥’S 00" 000 FEY E9 STV GEF 26 E9T'69¢ 997991 '9¢ 85 0EC'S0¥ JISSIASEY LTTHAINED-FLYLS 0Q0-8OT1E
L8 BOE’0T 00 L8 BOE'OT L¥'6E8 00° LY 6E8 SUYHA ¥OTI¥d INZNONITHI 000-SO0TTE
59 6YEVT ag- SS9 6VE’PT FE 498 00" PE PS8 YYIL LS¥IJd INENONITIT 000-EDTTIE
T0 6T 8T 00°00006E T0 6PTL’'8EE -GZ'CEL'T 99°991'¥%Z T¥# PEV'EC VOSSISSY-NEICTIVYA ¥ 000-TOTLE
-95'gnL'ee 00°000°'5€2'T ¥V 98Z°2TZ T -ZZ S02°66 99916 '20T PEOITL € UVIR INIEEND WEHOTIYA ¥ 000-00TTE
SENNIATT
unowy ajeq oL Junowy Junowy
IouBTIEA Jabpng Ten3sy SoURTIARA Jabpng Teniony
xxsxaaiidddry DYBQE O TPTR 24+ 4545558 008 FENErr e rredPOTIS JUIIIN) s ¥ ¥ X ¥ FFXEXF X ¥

PL/0€/90 ONIUNE TOIHHEA
FATA 0£0

AYNLOY QL dEEVINQD SEUNLIANHAXH ¥ SHONIAHE JILISAND 0 LNIWALYLS
ONILNOODOOW LIdang DI7dEnd 20:ST:60 ST/ET/€0 uny
T 2Beg ALNNOD AHEOLS 590244 raday




£5°BLE
~0T1°906
~PI7PSE
9g°803'ez
6798602
-67°06L'C¢E
-63°065°91
-6675LZ'T
28 TEL’0T
887 L56 T
~39°009
€27 ZIP'E
£E°680°T
TTZ TI60°T
08°2ZT'%
-LTTLO0TTT
007 0%
00-zZLE
30°ved
$8°9EL’S
S§5° 08’01
V6 TE9'8
-IF 8LT TE
68 °ZZ8'T
SZ'088

18 EFF
857082

ZF 618

0L F0T'T
¥g8 0ED
-0E LET'T
-1 ey

-¥8 15T
PLOTST LT
gL

S0° %

€€ 8

61 %L

b6 2
-Le10e

PO 6T
oL %

g0 €
Zo'el
SL°TT

70 0T

¥E 66275
L5'8T9
[#-2-TA
Tooge

6T LET

aoueTIBA

yxaxrr¥¥¥iyyy 8380 O JIEIK

z abegd

00"
00°000°1
00 0LE'T
00"

00"

00 8¥E’6¥
00 000°0E
00'0SL'F
00'000°8¢
00050708
00 006°T
00"

00"

00"

00"
00759711
00"

00*

QG 000'ET
00"

0o

00"
00°50Z 'S¢
00" ¥60°91T
00°008'T
00 000°T
00"

00"

00"

00"

00° 000’6
£0°000'T
00069 T
00"

00"

00"

00"

00"

00"
00°S6T'T
00*

00"

00"

0o-

00"

00"
00°T0Z'EZ
00"

00"

00"

00"
Junowy
JeBpng

£5°BLE

06 €6

98 ST9'%
9z 809 'EC
6986 '0C
TS L55'9T
TE 60%'¥
TO WLV '€
z8'TEL'8Y
BELOO'¥T
$E 66T'T
€T TIV'E
£€°680'T
ZZ'160°'T
08" TET'¥
€L LST
00° 08
00°'2LZ

90 ¥EP'ET
v8 9EL'S
SS0EE'0T
Y6 VES'S
65°920°%
687916 LT
SZ°08%°Z
TEEVE’T
85°08%
Zy°618
DE"POT'T
¥8°0€E%
08°2%¥8°9
GLTLEE'T
91 88E’T
PLTTST LT
0t 4

FEELELEEEFEF LS

BE'ET
-66°LT
19°0%
£2°81E'¥
S8 9LL ¥
-9€ TS’ T
-15° %65
BT BEZE L
SY I9L’S
TT 019
-EETLEOT
8L E€6C
6016

LB 5B
¥EUELY
~89°T16
00"

00"

9L’ g9g’s
£T°2LE
Z0'6LS
0T 66%F
-86°0£%’'€
~LG LEO'T
-00°0ST
-887LEL’T
19°9%
307 0L

8L 16
25° 2%
9570021
-99°997
-68°L
60°€8T'9T
0o-

00"

00"

00"

Q0"
-80°9ZT
00"

00"

[s1¢Iy

[eIel

00"

co’

00" BLE'T
00"

00

00"

oo*

SOUeTICN

00"
EE'ER
ST ' %1F
00"

00-

EE ZIT ¥
99°93%°1
£8°S6€
99981 €
€8 0L9°T
EE"8ST
00"

00"

00"

00"
19546
00"

00"

£E ERDT
00"

00"

00"
SLTEEE'T
9L THE’T
00°0ST
£ €8
00"

00"

00"

00"

00° 052
99°99T
057 LET
00°

00"

00°

00"

00"

00"
95766
00°

00"

00"

00"

00"

00’

TP EE6°T
el

00"

0"

00"
Jjunouyg
3ebpng

BE'ET
¥E'S9
LL'¥SY

€T 81L’
g8 9LL’
L6098
ST %407
10 vEe'
11°826°
¥6' 08¢’

-00'638
6T €6Z
60°16
LB 56
rETELY
ELTEY
G0
00"

60 LYY

ET EEE
20"eLs
0T 66%
[ A
EEM Y24
0e*

-S5' #5859’

1988
207 0L
8L 16
25'gs

95 056"

oo’
I9'62T

60 €8T’

oo’
oo
00
00-°
00"
~08°9¢C
00-
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"

TP TIE’

00°
00"
00"
Q0"

Juneuy
Tenioy

ALIO YINIOWIA/R¥ANAYT

AMANNYT

SHUTL

4 ALID VINISWIA/TIISIAIA ¥ S¥O
¥ TYINLSNANI ONZ¥ HOHY.L/THSHIA 3 S¥D
z 1EGAIA ¥ SWH
T SWHOAINN
€ TUYMLIOS WAINAWOD
8 HONYNALNIVW OINY
Z ONINIVAL
SNOLLYD INAKRKOD

QOOMADO0T/ISYHOUNA /ASVET/SINTE

NIVML YEYW/ISTHOUNL /ASVAT/SINES

SUNYIHOTH DA //ESYHDEN /HEVHT/ SLNES

ALID VINISYIA/ESYHOUNG/ISVIT/SINTY

ESYHOUNA /ISYAT/ S INEY

SANYTHOIH DA/SEINAANS ONILVEIJO

ALID YINISWIA/SIITAANS ONILVHEIAO

] SHITAINS ONIIVEZEAQ
- QOOMIDOT/STILITILO

SANYTIHDIH JA/SEILITILO

ALID YINIHYIA/GEILITILN

SHILITILO

HONYNIINIYW INTWIINDE

"II¥OSENS ¥ FENA

T THAVEL
QOOMAD0T/HANOHATTAL

SANVIHOTH DA/HNOHAATHL

ALID YINIDVIA/ENOHIATAL

IYIVLSOANT ONFY HOHWVL/HNOHAHTAL

T ANOHAETIL
SEIT44ANS FDIAJ0

HIOVLSOd

o1 AWOD LNHWXOTAWEND
FYII 10 INAAE I¥IDEAS/ALIMODES TYIO0OS

SHOVYE TEWYD/ALINNDES TY¥IOCS

NOILVEEIA LIEWLS/KLINODES "I¥ID0S

HIVY TIDAJOLOW XI¥E ANVUO/ALINNDES TVYIDCS

INANIOUNYRH STEN ¥ASH/ALIENDES IYIDCS

ALI¥ODES TYIDOS

TITd ¥VIGHEd /FAYDIAEN

Fard L0 INHAH TYIDHAS/EAVOIAHNW

SHOVY TAWYD/EEYDIQEN

NOILVHHIA LIARLS/TIYDITIW

HOVE TIADOLOW XI¥d ONWES/ZAY)Iadn

INTWEDYNYW STI0d ¥ASn /v Iaan

€ FAYIIAAN

HYI4 ¥V¥ICHd/EONVHOSNI

SEOVY TIWYD/ZONVANSNI

HNOILVYEIA LITELS/HONTANSNI

FOWY TOADOLOM XI¥d QNVED/EDNTINSNI

rerrdtexpppaPOTIASd QJUILINI L X X XXX XXFFF XXX

HLIVHH
HIIVAEH
HLIVEH
HITYIH

T05-€50€9
000-£S0ES
Q00~TH0OES
105-0F%0ES
005~0%0ES
000-0%0€S
000-6€0ES
000~-PL0ES
000-0£0£S
000-620%S8
000-8Z0ES
¥0S-LT0ES
€05-LEZ0ES
Z0S-LEOES
T0S-LZ0ES
000-LZ0ES
205-%20ES
T05-%20€S
000-%20ES
v0S-2C0ES
ZQS-TZ0ts
T0S-Z220%S
000-220ES
000-9T0ES
00C-PTI0ES
000-€T0E9
¥05-2I0ES
ZOS-ZI0ES
T05-2T0ES
00S-ZT0EE
000-ZT0ES
000-TTOES
000-0TQES
000~ST0ES
0ZZ-¥102S
S0Z-¥T0ES
vOZ-$TOES
T0Z-%1CES
¥8T-FT0ES
000-%TOES
L¥PL-ETOLS
02Z-€T0TS
S0Z-£T0ES
¥0Z2-£T0ES
TOZ-€T0ZS
PSI-€T02S
GO0-ETOZS
LYL-2T0TS
S0Z-Z2T0ZS
P0Z-2T02S
T0Z-ZT0ES

PL/0£/90 ONIONT QOIWHEd

YOIV OL QF¥YdNC) SEUNLIANEdXE 3 SEONIAZY CILIDANT 40 INIWILTLE

ONIINNCOOY LaDang OITENd

ALNAOD XERQLS

JdId 00

ZOFSTIE0 ST/ET/E0  suny
S902Hd

13day




LO'S¥STTE ~00"5§58°S0T -€6°60E"PL 59700572971 -LT 1T8’'B By 5L9EYT SHINLIANEIXE ¥ AEY LEN

L LEE 2T 00°TT6 'P¥% '€ LT 8ET LIV T BT €28 LIL 6L SLO LBT 86 868 VOV SHENLIGNEAXE TVLOL
Lz Lee’ze 00 IT6"T%% € LZ BEC LIV 'E 6T €28 LTTL 6L GL0 LBE 86 868 V0¥ INANLIYdEd FYII TYLOL
00" 00000 '¥0T 00°000°%0T -99°999'g 9979998 00" AOVEAYA IMIL OL ¥TJISNWEL 000-8ZZLS
00" 00 000" 0% 00°000°0% -00°005°¢2 0o-o0s°2 00" YHASNYIL ANDJUALNY 000-00ZLS
-00 506 00°005°9 00°S65 ¥ L9 T6L £€°85% 00°082°'T YATINOTIOA DDO-Z0FSS
I8 FOE’'E 00°'000°TZ T8 ¥0EET -00°8¥9°Y 00°05L°T 00" 20T STYDIISAHA - TYIICGEW 000-STEWS
16965 7L 00'005°¢£E 60 €pg‘Se PLTEDE 99°16L°Z 0% SET’€E 5EITAANS FONVINEWY 000-80E%S
Le* 00°000°T LP 000°T -£E£7€8 £€" €8 00" NOIINIATNG A¥IJI 000-90EFS
-5 991 00'00%'Z §6€€T’e ~§5° €€ 007002 S%' 99T SHTITEANS NOILDILOYL HIIA 000-SO0EWS
66 %L 00" 66 VL 00" 00" 00" INEWIINDE ¥ILAAWOD 000-09TFS
LT I8T'% 00°0582'ST LT TER'6T €8 0LET T £8°0L2'T 00" AYILNO TTYLIAYD 000-0TQHS
ST F89T 00°005'T 9% ¥BI '€ -0€°89L 00°SZT ~0E E£¥9 SHDIAYAS TYNOISSEICHd 000-0LOES
EE'E6 00" £€7 €6 -§876L0'T 00" -S8'SLO’T INIVH dINDE AAYHH 000-8S0ES
S6°'8ET 00" S6°QET 00" 00" 00" TOOMADOT/IONYNTINIYW ONIQTING ¥0S-LS0ES
00001 00" 00601 00" 00" 00" SANYTIHOIH DA/IONYNIINIVW ONIATIING Z0S-LS0ES
0T 00S 00" 0T" 085 00" 00" 00" ALID VINIDWIA/HONYNELNIVW DNIAQTING T0S-LS0ES
L6 vEE 00" L6 FZE 00" 00" 00" TYINLSNANT ONAY JOHYL/HONVNILNIVW DNIGTING 00S-LG0ES
-85°3%2°1 00'005°2 PPUESTIT “08°SE6 £€°802 LB LTL HINYNIINIYW ONIQTING 000-LS0€ES
00 €8T 00 00§51 po €891 -00°52T 00°S2T 00" “INIVW SEHSINONILXE 000-390ES
£8°322 00" £8° 98¢ 257 0T Q0" Z5'0T JOOMNIOT/AEANAYT F0S-E£50ES
AR A4 00" tzzec LL"8 00" LL8 SANYTIHOIH DA/A¥ANAYI Z0S~€S0ES
JUTNOWY a7%g oL AUNoWY JUNOWY
spueTIRA Jabpng Tenloy SOUBTIRA 38Bpng TETI30Y
Fryrdrrerrrxx BIBJ O IESE sr++3r+srsrxss Frrrrrr s rraPOTISE JUSIINDI X % £ XX R XXX XX XX

YI/0E/90 DNIANI GOTNEd
AYId QLD

TYALOY Ol JIUYAWOD SHUNIIANIAXE ¥ SHANIATY dILIDANE 40 LNANILYLS
ONIINAOISY Lasand 217Tdnd ZOSTI:60 ST/ET/€0  suny
€ abedq AINAQD AZEQLS §9028d i3day




LA AN: B SINAWSANEWIET/SINVIE/SEZI ¥1/LE/9 . HYId ¥1/Le/9 S6TT WD PI/LE/9

-1T S22 SLNINSANEWIHYE/SINVYD/85aa8 #1/02/9 qYTA ¥1/02/9 6%TT WD PI/0T/9
-ZL Los'e SLNAWSYNEWIAE/SINVES/SA82 ¥1/€T/9 GLIWEEE ¥ NYId 1330 FuId ¥I/€1/2 TOTZ  ¥D PI/ET/9
~T¢' 956 SINAWSANEWIHY/SINVED,/ 8332 »T/0E/S auza ¥I/0E/S €661 WD PT/0E/S
“TL 169°C SINIWSANEWT 0/ SLNYHD /5392 bT/0€/¥ BT YT/CE/¥ 08LT  ¥D VI/CE/T
-G9°9£T'T SINIWSUNGWINY/SINGED/SHAS FT/¥2/¥ SLIWNEE ¥ NY1d  L14dd J¥14 ¥L/¥E/F SELT ¥D PT/¥E/E
-IT €8% SINTWSHNEWIRY /SINVD/S3Ed +1/682/€ SLIW¥EE T NYId 1490 FH1d ¥I/8T/t 08ST  ¥2 PI/8Z/%
-¥6°0SE°¥ SIIWHED/HEIATY MY ¥L/E1/¢ FAId PL/ET/€ €6%T ¥D BT/ET/E
-LS FTEEE SIIWYEd ONY MITAIY NYId PI/6T/E THId PI/BT/2  EBEET MO ¥L/6L/2
-9L°9TF SINANSHOSWITE /SINVUD/STEd $T/0E/T SIIWYEd ¥ NYId IdId FUIL PT/0E/T €9TT M2 YL/0E/T
-00'9LT SINTWSHNEWITY/SINVED/SHEd ET/TE/2T fee iy €T/TE/2T L0TT  ¥2 €L/TE/ZT
-0L'EEB’E SINIWSHNHNITY /SINVED/ST8d £T/€2/CT SLIKYEd ¥ NYTd L1430 FUId €L/eT/2T 90T  HD €T/e%/21
-S89 EbL'S $ATA LIWYAd ¥ MITAEY NUId E€T/ZE/TT SIIWHEd 3 NYId Ld3d FHIJ ET/2Z/1T P06 ¥D ET/ZZSIT
~55'SE8'Y SLNAWSYNIWINY /SINTED/SA3d £T/0€/0T SLIWEEd 3 NYId L1430 FHIL €I/0E/0T BLL > £I/0E/0T
-68°066'2 SEFA £T/0E€/6 HIS NOLIDIASNI- L4ud AYId £1/0%/6 §98 ¥2 £T/0€/6
-€0'ZRY'6 SLNIWSENSWITY/ SINVED /5334 €T/0€/8 AHII ET/0E/S BLE ¥ £e/0e/e
~95°688'€ SLIWYAd ¥ MATATE NWId £T/€2/8 FEII £€T/E8/8  $IE ¥ €1/€e/8
-9E£°859 '€ SINIWSINEWI B/ SLNYHD/ 5334 €T1/91/8 TYL €T/51/8 €8E ¥D ET/91/8
~191Z9T'Y SINEWSENEWI IE/ SINVED/SIAIL €1/92/4 HYIL £T/98/L  EST w frfee/L
LINNCHY HEITOANT ROILIINOSIA WYOUNEA  UIAHON $M0FHS  AING Ho0q 4L qIva
JOaNEA MDEHD Is0d
~€6°BLL ¥OT ZONYTYE ETHYIIVAY TYIYLSNANT ONHE FOKVL
oo’ FONVATANING  INFIEND 334 NOLLOEJSNI
~£6°ZLL POT TLWA-OL-¥HA THHANIS
00" qQU¥MEOd FONVTUE
00" QLA SINZWLSNCAY 3A0d0d
0g° 130ang FAT

¥I/0E/9 OL ET/10/L SHIYA DNILS0d 005 4LOTPE GO0 DEQ JAEWIN LNNODDY

¥102Z UYEA TYISIL

AMOLSIH LNOOOOY
6EI0T6 : SWLL uny ONTINOOOOY LEIDING OI71d0d ST/TT/E0 ¢ a3ed unyg
1 =beg ALNOOD AZHOLS ZeELgd o 3roday




-58°' 1€
-0g LT
~Z6°8€T
-GL BST'9
-8E LED’E
~6Z'0E9
-¥8° 29
-LY T
-0T" TE8
-¥LBFE T
~85" 16
-10°9%6

LNNOWY

50°T
T

Ti6
abed

SWTL uny

#EDIOANT

SINIWSHNEWIE N/ SINYED /5394 #T/0€/9
SINANS INANTAE/ SINTED /ST $T/0E/S
SINIWSUNIWIZA/SINVID/ BT84 PI/¥E/¥
SLINYZA/MITAZY NYTd PT/ET/€
SITWATd ANV MATATA NYTd $T/6T/Z
SINIWSENGWITY/SINVYD/SATI PT/0€/T
SLNINSUNEWIEY,/SLNVYD/STZd ET/TE/TT
SLNINSEIEWITL/ SLNYID/ 5884 €T/€e/eT
SINANSENEWIHNY/SINVHD/SATd €I/0€/0T
§IAd €T/0E/6
SLINYEd ¥ MEIAZH N¥ld €1/€2/8
SINIWSENEWITE/ELNVED/SAAL €T/9T/8
NOILAIHOSEA
-£8°8Z5'8T
00”
-€9°8E5'91
oe"
00"
00"

FYra
bt ot §

SLIWgEd 2 NY'Id JLd3d 3dId

JEII
TIII

SLIWYAd 3 N¥1d 1430 IEIJ

ddI3

SLINYgEd 3 N¥Id Ldd¥d JdId
SLIWYId 3 NWId JId30 TEIJ
34 NOILDEASNI- IJ3d TETJ

HE1d
fcr-n ety

PT/0E/9
YT/0E/9
PT/PE/¥
PL/ET/E
YI/6T/T
PT/0E/T

002E
£66T
SELT
EGPT
TEET
€5TT

€I/TE/ET LOTT
ET/EE/ET §90T
€T/0E/0T ¥id

£T/0E/6
€T/ET/8
ET/9T/8

AOUNIA  YHAWAN $MOUHD  JINT

HOANZIA

HONYIYE STIYIIVAY
EONVEEWAONE LNIZHEND
EL¥d-0L-UvdA

QELMEOS BONTTYE

ALE SINIWISALdY 135d0d
132ang

PLI/0E/9 O €I/T0/4 SALVD DNILSC

AYOLSYH INNODDY
SNIINNOODVY 130dand OITang

ALNACD AFIA0LS

ADEHD

585
PTE
£8¢C

#OOQ

o
ki)
o
o
u2
k-]
o
1ol
o
o

o

¥I/0E/9
¥L/0%/S
YU ¥ES ¥
PT/ET/E
¥1/61/2
¥I/0E/T
EL/IE/TT
fr/teser
€T/0E/0T
£T/08/6
£1/ez/8
£I/91/8

AN
L3804

TYIULSIANI ONEE JOHVL
S¥Ed ISNIOIT SHINISN'

IYEINTD

HUId

Q05 TOZZE 00C O£C HHAWAN LNOOOOW

PICC

ST/TT/t0

WYdA TYOSIA

ajeq uny

ZEELEE FON 3xodsy




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: November 3, 2015 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion only, no action. Workshop on nuisances and the appropriate procedures to deal
with nuisances and discussion on a proposed ordinance No. 15.267 amending Storey County Code
Title 8, Health and Safety by adding chapter 8.01 Nuisances, providing a uniform process for abating
all the different nuisance complaints in the code. The existing nuisance procedures in other parts of
the Code in title 6, §, 13, 15, and 17 are amended to be consistent with the new chapter.

2. Recommended motion: I move staff to bring Ordinance No. 15-267 back for a first reading.
3. Prepared by: Robert Morris, outside counsel.
Department: District Attorney’s Office Tel: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: The county staff has been working on nuisance problems in Storey County and
has found that the Storey County Code is fairly fragmented and has different hearing procedures for
handling different nuisances based on the section of Storey County Code that is used. This
ordinance creates a single hearing process for all the types of nuisances in code and amends the
various sections to be consistent with the new hearing chapter.

(Continued on next page.)

5. Supporting materials: Ordinance 15-266
6. Fiscal impact: None
7. Legal review required: Yes District Attorney

8. Reviewed by: :
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved f
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

JRR S S—

Agenda Item No. ‘ﬁ,




4. Staff summary continued:

There are several issues that have been brought up in this redrafting that may benefit from
discussion by the board and the public.

A. Whether a written complaint is necessary to start the process.

B. What should county personnel do when they see nuisance violations?

C. Should there be an independent hearing officer or should a county employee hold the
position and who should appoint the hearing officer?

D. Should all complaints go through the county manager’s office?

F. Are the hearing and appeal procedures too formal?




Ordinance No. 15-266

Summary

An ordinance amending Storey County Code section 17.12.064 Public Utility Uses
to establish a procedure for permitting aboveground utility projects
and renewable energy generation projects.

Title

An ordinance amending Storey County Code section 17.12.064 Public Utility Uses
to establish a procedure for permitting aboveground utility projects and certain
renewable energy generation projects and providing for other properly related

matters.

Recitals

As part of the master plan process required by Nevada Revised Statutes 278.165,
the planning commission must prepare and the board approve an aboveground utility plan
that designates corridors for the construction of aboveground utility projects that is
consistent with any transmission plan prepared by the Office of Energy, that ensures the
continuity of transmission corridors and is consistent with the aboveground utility plan of
adjacent jurisdictions, and that is consistent with any Bureau of Land Management
resource management plan. The utility corridor plan is being prepared as part of the
Storey County master plan process. In addition, NRS 278.26503 require the governing
body to establish a process for the issuance of permits for aboveground utility projects
and certain renewable energy generation projects. This ordinance provides for that
process.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does
ordain:

SECTION I:

17.12.064 Public utility uses-Issuance of permit for utility projects.

Draft 11-3-2015 l




A. "Aboveground utility " means an aboveground eleciric transmission line,
transmission substation, and power substation which is designed to operate at 209 {2{)
kilovolts or more and which has been approved for construction after October 1, 1991,
by the State or Federal Government or a governing body.

B. Any aboveground utility project, which is planned to be located in an overhead
aboveground utility corridor identified on the master plan, must submit the plans for the
project to the planning department. The director of planning must review the plans and if
the director determines the plans are complete and the location is within the master plan
designated corridor, the director may approve-the-prefect-determine that the project is
an allowed use and allow it fo move forward with applicable permitting.

C. Any aboveground utility project that is located outside an aboveground utility
corridor identified in the master plan is required to have a special use permil. In
addition to meeting all the general requirements for a special use permir including a
public hearing, the special use permit must not be approved unless it meets the following
additional criteria:

1. The construction of the aboveground utility does not conflict with any existing or
planned infrastructure or other utility projects.

2. The board determines thai the proximity of the proposed corridor to any school,
hospital or urban residential area with a density greater than 2 units per gross acre is
acceptable.

If the aboveground utility project is on federally owned land, af the beginning of the
Jfederal review and permit application process, the applicant must have a pre-application
meeting with the planning department. The applicant may submit, as an application io
the county, the appropriate documents related to the environmental review by state and
federal land management agencies. If the applicant is required to apply to the Public
Utilities Commission of Nevada, the copy of the application is required to be served on
the county, pursuant to NRS, will constitute the environmental documents that make up
the application to the county.

D. Any renewable energy generation project with a nameplate capacity of 10
megawalils or more is required to have a special use permil and must be a-permitteduse
an allowed use with a special use permit in the zone where the ptant renewable energy
generation facility will be located,

E. An applicant for the issuance of a special use permii for the construction of any
utility project or for the construction of a renewable energy generation project with a
nameplaie capacity of 10 megawalts or more who.

1. Believes that the decision of the planning commission or governing body to
approve or deny the applicant’s application was not timiely; or

2. Disagrees with any conditions imposed by the special use permit issued by the
planning commission or governing body; may, in the manner prescribed by the Public

Utilities Commission of Nevada by regulation, petition the Public Utilities Commission of

Nevada to review the decision of the planning commission or governing body.

Proposed on , 2015,

by Commissioner

Draft 11-3-2015




Passed on , 2015,

Vote: Ayes  Commissioners

Nays Commissioners

Absent Commissioners

Marshall McBride, Chair
Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Attest:

Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

This ordinance will become effective on

Draft 11-3-2015 3




Ordinance No. 15-267

Summary

An ordinance amending Storey County Code Title 8, Health and Safety by adding chapter 8.01
Nuisances, providing a uniform process for abating all the different nuisance complaints in the
code. The existing nuisance procedures in other parts of the Code in title 6, 8, 13, 15, and 17 are
amended to be consistent with the new chapter.

Title

‘An ordinance amending Storey County Code Title 8 Health and Safety by adding chapter
8.01 Nuisances and providing a uniform process for abating all the different nuisance
complaints in the code, The amendment also changes the existing nuisance procedures in
other parts of the Code to be consistent with the new chapter and provides for other
properly related matters.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:
SECTION I: Title 8 Health and Safety is amended by adding the following:

Chapter 8.01

Nuisances
Sections
8.01.010 Declaration of nuisances.
8.01.020 Definitions.
8.01.030 Notice of violation.
8.01.040 Voluntary abatement.
8.01.050 Time limit for abatement.
8.01.060 Hearing procedures.
8.01.070 Appeal procedures. |
8.01.080 Abatement by the county and recovery of costs.
8.01.090 Summary abatement.
8.01.100 Civil penalty.
8.01.110 Criminal penalty.

8.01.010 Declaration of nuisances
In order to protect the public health, safety and welfare of the residents of the county from
public nuisances, the board of county commissioners or its designee may order the owner of real

Draft 11-3-2¢15




property within the county to.

A. Repair, safeguard, or eliminate any dangerous structure or condition.

B. Clear debris, rubbish, refuse, litter, garbage, abandoned or junk vehicles or junk
appliances which are not subject to the provisions of NRS chapter 459 Hazardous Materials.

C. Clear weeds and noxious plant growth.

D. Abate any condition or use that is declared a nuisance in this code.

E. Repair, clear, correct rectify, safeguard or eliminate any other public nuisance to protect
the public health, safety and welfare of the residents of the county.

As an alternative to the abatement of nuisances in the manner provided in this chapter, the
district attorney is authorized, pursuant fo NRS 244.360(6) to bring all necessary civil actions on
behalf of the county to enjoin, abate or restrain the violation of the any ordinance of this county,
the violation of which is declared to be a public nuisance in the ordinance violated and to seek
damages for the cost of abatement of nuisances and the recovery of expenses and costs of suit
arising out of such actions.

8.01.020 Definitions.

For the purpose of this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires, the following
definitions apply:

Authorized inspector (inspector) means the person designated or authorized by this section fo
enforce the provisions of the code dealing with nuisances.

A. The building official or his or her designee is the authorized inspector for public nuisances
regulated by title 15, Buildings and Construction, chapter 15.20 Flood damage prevention and
title 13, Public Services when involving dangerous structures. The building official must use the
Code for Abatement of Dangerous Buildings to abate siructures that are public nuisances.

B. The fire marshal is the authorized inspector for public nuisances regulated by the
International Fire Code as amended

C. The planning director or his or her designee is the authorized inspector for public
nuisances regulated by titles 8, Health and Safety; 17, Zoning.

D. The sheriff or his or her designee is the authorized inspector for public nuisances
regulated by title 6, Animals.

E. The public works director or his or her designee is the authorized inspector for public
nuisances regulated by title 13, Public Services.

F. Any person designated as an authorized inspector may refer a complaint received by that
person to the county manager or his or her designee 10 be reassigned to an appropriate
authorized inspector.

Dangerous structure or condition means a structure or condition that may cause injury to or
endanger the health, life, property or safety of the general public or the occupants, if any, of the
property on which the structure or condition is located. [t includes any violation of any building,
electrical, housing, plumbing or safety code or the violation of an ordinance regulating public
health, welfare or safety which violation is designated a public nuisance in such ordinances.

Hearing officer means a person designated by the board of county commissioners fo hear
matters that are declared nuisances under this code or to determine the propriety or amount of
civil penalties. '

Occupant means a legal entity that through the rights of ownership, rental, or residence has
the use and enjoyment of the subject real property for residential or commercial purposes.

Draft 11-3-2015




Owner means the legal entity listed as the current owner as recorded in the official records of
the Storey County Recorder’s office

8.01.030 Notice of nuisance.

When the county's authorized inspector receives a complaint about the existence of a
condition which is declared to be a public nuisance by any provision of this code on property
within the county, the authorized inspector musit personally deliver to the property owner, or
send to the owner of the property at the mailing address provided by the owner in the real
property records of the county, a notice of the existence of the conditions along with an order to
abate the nuisance. If sent by mail, the notice must be sent by certified mail, return receipt
requested.

The notice of nuisance must inform the owner of the following:

A. The street address, parcel number, or legal description sufficient io identify the property.

B. A description and pictures if available of the offending condition or conditions.

C. A4 statement of the action required to abate the nuisance and the date by which the
abatement must be completed,

D. A statement informing the owner that he will be subject to civil and criminal penalties for
each day the nuisance is not abated after the date specified in the notice for completing the
abatement has passed.

E. A statement that the owner has a right to request a hearing before the hearing officer and
the right to an appeal of the hearing officer’s decision to the board.

The authorized inspector may alternatively refer the notice of nuisance to the disirict
attorney. The district attorney may commence a civil action to abate, remove and enjoin the
violation as a public nuisance or commence a criminal action in the manner provided by law. If
a civil or criminal matter is filed in court the procedure in this chapter no longer applies.

8.01.040 Voluntary abatement.

Upon service of the written notice of nuisance, the owner of the property on which the
offending conditions exist has until the date set out in the notice of nuisance to abate the
nuisance unless the authorized inspector grants an extension of time in writing. If the nuisance
has been abated, the owner may requesit an inspection to verify the condition of the property. If
the applicable time limit in the notice has expired, the authorized inspector must make re-inspect
the property. If the nuisance has been abated, no further enforcement action may be taken. If the
nuisance has not been abated by the date set forth in the notice of nuisance and no hearing or
appeal has been requested, the authorized inspecior may refer the matier to the disirict
attorney’s office for enforcement.

8.01.050 Time limit for abatement.

A. The owner has 30 calendar days from the date of personal service of the notice of nuisance
or from the deposit for mailing of the notice of nuisance unless the condition of the property or
structure is causing an immediate danger to the public health, safety or welfare. If there is an
immediate danger to the public health, safety or welfare the inspector has discretion to require
immediate abatement or abatement in a time period of less than 30 days.

B. The date for abatement set forth in the notice is tolled during the time the owner requesis a

Draft 11-3-2015




hearing until he receives a decision from the hearing officer and for the time taken o decide an
appeal if an appeal from the hearing officer’s decision is taken.

8.01.060 Hearing procedures.

A. If the owner of the property contests the notice of nuisance, the owner may request a
hearing before a hearing officer designated by the board. The hearing must be requested by the
owner in writing within 10 business days of service of the notice of nuisance and must be
delivered to the county clerk.

B. The county clerk must, within 10 business days of receiving the request for hearing, set a
hearing before the hearing officer. The hearing must be set within 30 days of the date of the
receipt of the request for the hearing.

C. At the hearing the inspector and the owner of the property must present evidence to prove
or disprove the facts set out in the notice of nuisance. The hearing officer must determine if there
is a nuisance that must be abated and issue a written order within five working days of the
conclusion of the hearing. If the hearing officer determines there is a nuisance the hearing
officer must order the owner to abate the nuisance within 10 business days of service of the
order or within the number of days remaining in the original notice of nuisance, whichever is
longer,

D. The hearing conducted by the hearing officer must be recorded or reported. Any evidence
introduced must be retained in the custody of the county clerk.

8.01.070 Appeal procedures.

A. If the owner of the property disagrees with the decision of the hearing officer, the owner
may appeal to the board of county commissioners. The appeal must be requested in writing by
Jfiling a written notice of appeal, within 10 working days of the service of the hearing officer’s
order, with the clerk of the board and payment of a filing fee of 100 dollars. The clerk of the
board shall set the matter for a hearing at the next available meeting of the board. The county
clerk must provide for the transcription of the record made before the hearing officer ai the
expense of the county. The clerk must provide the board with transcribed record along with the
evidentiary materials admitted by the hearing officer.

B. At the appeal the board must review the record made in the hearing before the hearing
officer to see if there is substantial evidence to support the hearing officer s decision. If the
board finds there is substantial evidence and agrees with the decision of the hearing officer that
there is a nuisance the board must order the owner to abate the nuisance within 10 business days
of their decision or within the number of days remaining on the original notice of nuisance,
whichever is longer.

8.01.080 Abatement by the county and recovery of cosis.

A. The county may abate a nuisance declared under this chapter at any time ten days after the
authorized inspector sends the owner of the property written notice of the estimated costs fo
abate the nuisance and any accrued civil penalties, to the address provided by the owner in the
real property records of the county, by certified mail, return receipt requested.

B. The county may recover from the owner of the property on which a nuisance exists the
amount expended to abate a nuisance if the owner has not abated the nuisance within the time

Draft i1-3-2015




required by the notice of nuisance, or afler a hearing where the owner did not prevail and the
owner has not filed an appeal within the time specified, or the board has denied an appeal and
the owner has failed to abate the nuisance in the time specified.

C. The county, in addition fo filing a civil suit or any other legal means, may make the
nuisance abatement expense a special assessment against the property with the nuisance and
may collect the special assessment according to state law.

8.01.090 Summary abatement.

The county may secure or summarily abale a dangerous structure or condition that the
building official, the fire chief, and the sheriff determine in a writien document is an imminent
danger to the public health, safety and welfare.

A. Before taking action to secure or summarily abate the nuisance, the owner of the property
must be given notice that is hand delivered to the owner of the property or sent pre-paid by
United States mail or posted on the property. The notice must state thai the owner may
challenge the action to secure or summarily abate the structure or condition and must provide a
telephone number and an address wheve the owner may obtain additional information about
abating the nuisance.

B. If the imminent danger will occur before the notice and an opportunity fo challenge the
action can be provided, the county may summarily abate the structure or condition to the extent
necessary to remove the imminent danger.

C. The owner of the property must be given written notice of the abatement after its
completion. The notice must state that the owner may seek judicial review and contain a
telephone number and an address where the owner may obtain additional information about
abating the nuisance.

8.01.100 Civil penalty, hearing and appeal.

A. An owner of property that fails io abate a nuisance by the date specified in the notice of
nuisance or as subsequently ordered by the hearing officer or the board may be assessed a civil
penalty of one hundred dollars per day for each day the nuisance continues beyond the date
specified in the notice. The cumulative civil penalties may not exceed three times the actual cost
to abate, or, if the county elects not to abate the nuisance, three times the estimated cost to abate
the nuisance as set forth in the esiimate provided to the owner of the property pursuant to section
8.01.080(4) or ten thousand dollars, whichever is greater.

B. Hearing.

1. An owner of property who has been billed for a civil penalty may request a hearing
before the hearing officer as to the propriety of the imposition of the civil penalty or as to the
amount of the civil penalty. The request for the hearing must be made by delivering a request for
a hearing to the county clerk within ten days after estimated costs of abatement has been
deposited for mailing pursuant to section 8,01.080(4) or within ten days after the bill for the
actual costs to abate the nuisance has been deposited for mailing by certified mail, return receipt
requested to the address of the owner of the property as set forth in the real property records of
the county. The request for a hearing must be accompanied by a deposit of ten percent of the
civil penalty assessed with the county clerk.

2. The county clerk must, within 10 business days of receiving the request for hearing, set a

Draft 11-3-2015




hearing before the hearing officer. The hearing must be set within 30 days of the date of the
receipt of the request for the hearing.

3. At the hearing the county and the owner of the property must present evidence (o
establish the propriety of the impaosition of the civil penalty and its amount. In regards to the
amount of the civil penalty the hearing officer may take into account the gravity of the owners
conduct, and may be reduced in consideration of all relevant circumstances, or the payment of
which may be suspended for up to five years on conditions deemed suitable in the reasoned
discretion of the hearing officer.

4. The hearing conducted by the hearing officer must be recorded or reported. Any
evidence introduced must be retained in the custody of the county clerk.

C. Appeal

1. If the owner of the property disagrees with the decision of the hearing officer, the owner
may appeal to the board of county commissioners. The appeal must be requested in writing by
Jiling a written notice of appeal, within 10 working days of the service of the hearing officer's
order, with the clerk of the board and payment of a filing fee of 100 dollars. The clerk of the
board shall set the matter for a hearing at the next available meeting of the board. The county
clerk shall provide for the transcription of the record made before the hearing officer at the
expense of the county. The clerk must provide the board with the transcribed record along with
the evidentiary materials admitted by the hearing officer.

2. At the appeal the board must review the record made in the hearing before the hearing
officer to see if the decision of the hearing officer is arbitrary or capricious.

D. Collection of civil penalties.

If the decision of the hearing officer is not appealed and he determined that civil penalties in
any amount were appropriate or if the board upheld a decision of the hearing officer that civil
penalties in any amount were appropriate, the civil penalties must by collected as allowed by
state law.

A decision by the county to enforce civil penalties does not limit or prohibit the prosecution of
the owner for a nuisance violation by criminal complaint,

8.01.110 Criminal penalty.

In addition to any other civil remedies set forth in this chapter, the owner, occupant or agent
of any lot or premises within the county who permits or allows the existence of a public nuisance
as defined in this code, upon any lot or premises owned, occupied or controlled by them, or who
violates any provisions of this chapter is guilty of a misdemeanor. Each day of any violation
constitules a separate offense.

SECTION II: Section 6.04.120 is amended as follows:

6.04.120 Noisy dogs--Nuisance abatement,

A, It shatl-be is unlawful for a dog owner to permit or allow a dog to habitually howl, or bark,
or in any other manner disturb the peace and quietsde of the community, or of any person within
the community. Such conduct on the part of any dog is declared to be a public nuisance and shat
must be abated as-such.

Draft 11-3-2015




...... s FaV¥a L Y I G o ok a WA

AL ' = 3 Cl 8 L L1l v waE W w g oo Choe

of this-seetion: When the sheriff receives a complaint alleging the existence of a public nuisance
that is a violation of this chapter and confirms the allegarions of the complaini, the sheriff must
Jollow the procedures in chapter 8.01 to abate the nuisance. 1t is lawful for any-sueh an officer

to enter upon any private property, to take any sueh dog causing a nuisance into custody and

impoundment, except that no dog shalt may be taken from any dwelling, house or other building.

L b OIS 3

SECTION III: Chapter 8.08, Refuse and Trash, is amended as follows:
Chapter 8.08

Refuse and Trash

Sections:

8.08.010 Definitions.

8.08.020 Unlawful deposit prohibited.
8.08.030 Nuisance declared.

8.08.040 Abatement-—Responsibiity-for-eosts:

O8: Violation--Penalty.

8.08.010 Definitions.
For the purpose of this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires, the following
definitions apply:

o .

Garbage means swill, offal or any accumulation of animal, vegetable or other matler
associated with the preparation, handling, consumption, storage or decay of plant or animal
matter including meats, fish, fowl, fruits, vegetable or dairy products, or the waste wrappers or
containers for these items, and any filthy or odoriferous objects.

Junk vehicle means any car, truck, trailer, recreational vehicle, boat or other vehicle, or
component parts thereef, that is unregistered, disassembled, wrecked or in distepair.

Litter means rubbish which is non-decaying, decaying or solid and semi-solid wastes,
including but not limited to, both combustible and noncombustible wastes, such as paper, trash,
cardboard, waste material, tin cans, yard clippings, wood, glass, bedding, or debris, scrap
paving material, discarded appliances, discarded furniture, bedding, dry vegetation, weeds, dead
Draft 11-3-2015




trees and branches, overgrown vegetation and trees which may harbor insect or rodent
infestations or may become a fire hazard, piles of earth mixed with any of the above or any
Jforeign object, including junk or abandoned vehicles, without regard to value.

Noxious plant growth means any accumulation of weeds or other harmful plants that create a
danger to persons or animals or pose a fire hazard.

Person means and includes a natural person and any corporation, firm, partnership or any
other legal entity.

Rubbish means any litter, vegetable waste, debris, garbage, junk vehicles, or refuse.

8.08.020 Unlawful deposit prohibited.

A. It is unlawful in the county for a person to place, deposit or dump, or cause to be
accumulated, or cause to be placed, stored, deposited or dumped, any debris, garbage, refuse,
trash, junk vehicles, rubbish, or any nauseous or offensive matter in or upon any private property
with or without the consent of the owner, or in or #pon any public property other than property
designated or set aside for such purpose by the governing board or body having charge thereof.

B. Exemptions. The following are exempt from the provisions of this chapter:

I. Not more than three unregistered junk vehicles parked or stored on a lot or parcel of land
that are contained within a building or screened from view from a public street, road or alley by a
6-foot tall solid fence, wall or other similar structure.

2. Equipment and materials used for farming, ranching or keeping of livestock, appropriate
to the size and zoning of the parcel, including fencing, lumber, compost, gates, irrigation
equipment and materials, etc.

8.08.030 Nuisance declared.

All debris, garbage, trash, junk vehicles, rubbish, refuse, weeds, grasses and shrubbery, of any
and all kinds, accumulated or stored upon any real property within the county are declared to be
nuisances and detrimental to the health, safety, economics, and general welfare of the people of
the county.

8.08.040 Abatement—Responsibilitvfor-costs:

It is unlawful for any person or persons to-suffer-or-permit the accumulation of any of the
things enumerated in-Seetion-8-08:020-ef this chapter. When an guthorized inspector receives a
complaint alleging the existence of a public nuisance that is a violation of this chapter and
confirms the allegations of the complamr the inspector must follow the procedures in chapfer
8.01 to abate the nuisance. -Erh , - v — e

Draft 11-3-2015




Draft 11-3-2015




8.08.140 050 Violation--Penalty.
Any person who violates the provisions of this chapter shall-be-deemed is guilty of a

misdemeanor
SECTION IV: Title 13 1s amended as follows:

13.76.030 Compliance required generally,

thereatier; the-further The maintenance or use of cesspools or other local means of sewage
disposal within the service area constitutes a public nuisance, and it shall-be is unlawful for any
person to connect to, construct, install or provide, maintain, and use any other means of sewage
disposal from any dwelling place inside the service area except by connection to the public sewer
in the manner set forth in this division, provided the dwelling to be connected is within two
hundred feet of an existing public sewer. (Ord. 79 § 112, 1980)

13.88.020 Prohibited discharges--Designated.

Ne-personshall 4 person may not discharge or cause to be discharged any of the following
described waters or wastes to any public sewer:

A. Any gasoline, benzene, naphtha, fuel oil, other flammable or explosive liquid, solid or gas;

B. Any water or waste containing toxic or poisonous solids, liquids, or gases in sufficient
quantity, either single or by interaction with other wastes, to injure or interfere with any sewage
treatment process, constitute a hazard to humans or animals, create a public nuisance, or create

Draft 11-3-2015

10




any hazard in the receiving waters of the sewage treatment plant, including but not limited to
cyanides in excess of two milligrams as CN in the wastes as discharged to the public sewer;

C. Any water or wastes having a pH lower than six or higher than nine, or having other
corrosive property capable of causing damage or hazard to structures, equipment, and personnel
of the sewage works;

D. Solid or viscous substances in quantities of such size capable of causing obstruction to the
flow in sewers, or other interference with the proper operation of the sewage works such as, but
not limited to, ashes, cinders, sand, mud, straw, shavings, metal, glass, rags, feathers, tar,
asphalts, plastics, wood, unground garbage, whole blood, paunch manure, hair, fleshings,
entrails, paper dishes, cups, milk containers, etc., either whole or ground by garbage grinders;

E. Any waters or wastes containing iron, chromium, copper, zinc, heavy metals, and similar
objectionable or toxic substances; or wastes exerting an excessive chlorine requirement, to such
degree that any such material received in the composite sewage of the sewage treatment works
exceeds the limits established by the engineer for such materials;

F. Any liquid or vapor having a temperature higher than one hundred fifty degrees Fahrenheit;

G. Any water or waste containing fats, wax, grease, or oils, whether emulsified or not, in
excess of one hundred milligrams per liter or containing substances which may solidify or
become viscous at temperatures between thirty-two and one hundred fifty degrees Fahrenheit;

H. Any garbage that has not been properly shredded. The installation and operation of any
garbage grinder equipped with a motor of three-fourths horsepower or greater shall be subject to
the review and approval of the board;

I. Any water or waste containing phenols or other taste-producing or odor-producing
substances, in such concentrations exceeding limits which may be established by the engineer as
necessary, after treatment of the composite sewage, to meet the requirements of the state, federal,
or other public agencies having jurisdiction for such discharge to the receiving waters;

J. Any radioactive wastes or isotopes of such half life or concentration as may exceed limits
established by the engineer in compliance with applicable state or federal regulations;

K. Materials which that exert or cause:

1. Unusual concentrations of inert suspended solids (such as, but not limited to Fullers
carth, lime slurries, and lime residues) or of dissolved solids (such as, but not limited to sodium
chloride and sodium sulfate),

2. Excessive discoloration (such as, but not limited to dye wastes and vegetable tanning
solutions,

3. Unusual BOD, chemical oxygen demand, or chlorine requirements in such quantities as
to constitute a significant load on the sewage treatment works,

4. Unusual volume of flow or concentration of wastes constituting "slugs”;

L. Water or waste containing substances which are not amenable to treatment or reduction by
the sewage treatment process employed, or are amenable to treatment only to such degree that
the sewage treatment plant effluent carmot meet the requirements of other agencies having
jurisdiction over discharge to the receiving waters. (Ord. 79 § 702, 1980)

13.88.030 Prohibited discharges--Control measures.
A. If any waters or wastes are discharged or wasted or are proposed to be discharged or
wasted, to the public sewers, which waters contain the substances or possess the characteristics

Draft 11-3-2015

11




enumerated in Ssection 13.88.020 of this chapter, and which in the judgment of the engineer,
may have a deleterious effect upon the sewage works, processes, equipment, or receiving waters,
or which otherwise create a hazard to life ofr constitute a public nuisance, the engineer may:

1. Reject the wastes;

2. Require pretreatment to an acceptable condition for discharge to the public sewers;

3. Require control over the quantities and rates of discharge;

4. Require payment to cover the added cost of handling and treating the wastes not covered
by existing taxes or sewer charges under the provisions of Ssection 13.108.010 of this division.

B. If the engineer permits the pretreatment or equalization of waste flows, the design and
installation of the plant and equipment shall be subject to the review and approval of the
engineer, and subject to the requirements of all applicable codes, ordinances and laws.

C. When the authorized inspector finds a public nuisance or receives a complaint alleging the
existence of a nuisance that is a violation of this chapter and confirms the allegations of the
complaint, the inspector must follow the procedures in chapter 8.01 to abate the nuisance. (Ord.
79 § 703, 1980)

13.112.010 Nuisance designated.

The cContinued habitation of any building, or continued operation of any industrial facility in
violation of the provisions of this code divistion-orany-ethererdinance, or any rule or regulation
of the county is declared to be a public nuisance. When the authorized inspector finds a public
nuisance or receives a complaint alleging the existence of a public nuisance that is a violation of
this chapter and confirms the allegations of the complaint, the inspector must follow the

procedures in chapter 8. 0] to abate the nuzsance {-he—eeuﬁt—y—ma%ea&se—pfeeeedmgs—m—be

ei%eh#&e-}aﬂew (Ord 79 § 902 1980)

13.112.060 Disconnection of service--Abatement of nuisance.

During the period of sueh disconnection, habitation of sueh the premises by human beings
shall-constitute is a public nuisance, when the authorized inspector discovers the existence of a
public nuisance or receives a complaint alleging the existence of a public nuisance that is a
violation of this chapter and confirms the allegations of the complaint, the inspector must follow

fhe procedur es in chapter 8.01 to abate the nuisance. whereupen-the-eounty-shall-eause

(Ord 79 § 904 1980)
SECTION V: Chapter 15.20 is amended as follows:

15.20.180 Variance--Conditions.

A. Generally, variances may be issued for new construction, substantial improvements, and
other proposed new development to be erected on a lot of one-half acre or less in size contiguous
to and surrounded by lots with existing structures constructed below the base flood level,

Draft 11-3-2015

12




providing that the procedures of this article have been fully considered. As the lot size increases
beyond one-half acre, the technical justiﬁcation required for issuing the variance increases.
B. Variances may be issued for the repair or rehabilitation of "historic strizctures” {as-defined
3 in-Seetion15-20-040% upon a determination that the proposed repair or rehabilitation will not
preclude the structure’s continued designation as an historic structure and the variance is the
minimuin necessary to preserve the historic character and design of the structure.

C. Variances shall may not be issued within any mapped regulatory floodway if any increase
in flood levels during the base flood discharge would result.

D. Variances shalt may only be issued upon a determination that the variance is the "minimum
necessary" considering the flood hazard, to afford relief. "Minimum necessary” means to afford
relief with a minimum of deviation from the requirements of this chapter. For example, in the
case of variances to an elevation requirement, this means the board Sterey-Ceountrcompiission
need not grant permission for the applicant to build at grade, or even to whatever elevation the
applicant proposed, but only to that elevation which the board Sterey-County-commission
believes will both provide relief and preserve the integrity if the local ordinance. |

E. Variances shal may only be issued upon a;

1. Showing of good and sufficient cause;
2. A determination that failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional "hardship”
‘ {as-defined-in-Section15-20-0401 to the applicant;
3. A determination that the granting of a variance will not result in increased flood heights,
additional threats to public safety, or extraordinary public expense, create a nuisance-{as-defined
m-Section-15:20:040; "public safety/ nuisance"y, cause frand or victimization {as-defined-in
Seetion-15.20:040) of the public, or conflict with existing local laws or ordinances.

F. Variances may be issued for new construction, substantial improvement, and other
proposed new development necessary for the conduct of a functionally dependent use provided
that the provisions of Ssections 15.20.170(A) through 15.20.180(E) are satisfied and that the
structure or other development is protected by methods that minimize flood damages during the
base flood and does not result in additional threats to public safety and does not create a public
nuisance.

G. Upon consideration of all the factors of Ssection 15.20.380 and the purposes of this

chapter, the board Sterey-County-commission may attach such conditions to the granting of,
variances as it deems necessary to further the purposes of this chapter. (Ord. 184 (part), 2003)

15.20.290 Declaration of public nuisance.

Every new structure, building, fill, excavation or development located or maintained within
any area of special flood hazard after date of first FIRM in violation of this ordinance is a public
nuisance per se. When the authorized inspector finds a public nuisance or receives a complaint
alleging the existence of a public nuisance that is a violation of this chapter and confirms the
allegations of the complaint, the inspector may follow the procedures in chapter 8.01 fo abate
the nuisance unless there is a request for a variance under section 15.20.180 or a request by the

mspector for more mfo: matwn under Secnon 15.20.300. and-may-be-abated. prevented-or
- (Ord. 184 (part), 2003)

Draft 11-3-2015

13




15.20.300 Abatement of violation.

Within thirty days of discovery of a violation of this chapter, the floodplain administrator
shall submit a report to the governing body which shall include all information available to the
floodplain administrator which is pertinent to the said violation. Within thirty days of receipt of
this report, the governing body shall either:

A. Take any necessary action to effect the abatement of such violation; or

B. Issue a variance to this ordinance in accordance with the provisions of herein; or

C. Order the owner of the property upon which the violation exists to provide whatever
additional information may be required for their determination. Such information must be
provided to the floodplain administrator within thirty days of such order, and he shall submit an
amended report to the floodplain board within twenty days. At their next regularly scheduled
public meeting, the governing body shall either order the abatement of said violation or they
shall grant a variance in accordance with the provisions of herein.

D. Submit to the administrator of Federal Insurance Administration a declaration for denial of
insurance, stating that the property is in violation of a cited statute or local law, regulation or
ordinance, pursuant to Section 1316 of the National Flood Insurance Act of 1968 as amended.
(Ord. 184 (part), 2003}

SECTION VI Title 17 is amended as follows:

17.03.040 Enforcement.

It is unlawful for any person, firm or corporation, whether as a principal, agent, employee, or
otherwise, to construct, build, convert, alter, erect maintain a building, structure or any use of
property, equipment, or operation in violation of a provision of this title. Any violation of this

titleis a public nuisance and a misdemeanor offense pamehable—by—&—ﬁﬁe—eiﬂe{—mefe—thﬁﬂ—ene

e%—-b%—b@-t—h—ﬁﬁ@—&—ﬂﬂﬁﬁS@ﬂﬂ&fﬂﬁ 1he followmg procedures apply to enforce the provisions of
this title:

A. If a violation of this title occurs, the authorzzed mspector must follow z‘he procedures in
chapte} 8. 01 to abate rhe nuisance

B. The director may also refer notice of the violation to the district attorney who may
commence an action to abate, remove and enjoin the violation as a public nuisance or a criminal
action in the manner provided by law. A party is guilty of a separate offense for each and every
day the violation of this title, or the failure to comply with any order, is committed or otherwise
maintained.

C. The conviction and punishment of any person under this section will not relieve the person
from the responsibilities of correcting the nuisance. (Ord. No. 12-244, § I, 12-4-2012)

Draft 11-3-2015

14




iolation. (Ord. No. 12-244, § I, 12-4-2012)

17.84.180 Nuisance Bdeclared.

All signs not in compliance with the provisions of this chapter are declared to be nuisances
and detrimental to the health, safety, economics, and general welfare of the people of this county
and may be abated under the provisions of chapter 8.01-Seetion-1763-045. (Ord. No. 12-244,

§ 1, 12-4-2012)

Proposed on , 2015,

by Commissioner

Passed on , 2015,

Vote: Ayes: Commissioners

Draft 11-3-2015

15




Nays: Commissioners

Absent Commissioners

Marshall McBride, Chair
Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Attest:

Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

This ordinance will become effective on , 2015,

Draft 11-3-2013

16




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: November 3, 2015 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda; Consent | | Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion and possible action to approve the second reading of Ordinance 15-266, an
ordinance amending Storey County Code section 17.12.064 Public Utility Uses to establish a
procedure for permitting aboveground utility projects and renewable energy generation projects and
providing for other properly related matters.

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve the second reading of Ordinance 15-266.
3. Prepared by: Robert Morris, outside counsel, and Austin Osborne, Planning Director
Department: District Attorney’s Office Tel: 847-0964

4, Staff summary: As part of the master plan process required by Nevada Revised Statutes 278.165,
the planning commission must prepare and the board approve an aboveground utility plan that
designates corridors for the construction of aboveground utility projects that is consistent with any
transmission plan prepared by the Office of Energy, that ensures the continuity of transmission
corridors and is consistent with the aboveground utility plan of adjacent jurisdictions, and that is
consistent with any Bureau of Land Management resource management plan.

(Continued on next page.)

5. Supporting materials: Ordinance 15-266

6. Fiscal impact: None

7. Legal review required: Yes District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
{1 Approved [] Approved with Modifications
] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. | 5




4. Staff summary continued:

The utility corridor plan is being prepared as part of the Storey County master plan process. In
addition, NRS 278.26503 require the governing body to establish a process for the issuance of
permits for aboveground utility projects and renewable energy generation projects. If the
aboveground utility project is located in a master plan aboveground utility corridor just a permit is
required. If the aboveground utility project is outside of a master plan aboveground utility corridor
a special use permit is required. A special use permit is also required for the construction of a
renewable energy generation project with a nameplate capacity of 10 megawatts or more. This
ordinance provides for this permitting process. The additions made to the text are shown in
underlined italics and deletions are shown as strikeouts. The current changes to the ordinance
before the board, 1) limits renewable energy projects to areas where they are allowed, and

2) Increases the minimum size of a renewable project that comes under this section back to 10
megawatts that is required by NRS.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 11/03/15 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/No Possible Action: Presentation by planning staff on the status of the comprehensive
update to the Storey County Mater Plan. The presentation is provided pursuant to Storey County
Code Title 16A and 17A establishing minimum interim requirements for subdivision map
approvals and limiting master plan amendments for approvals of planned unit developments
during the master plan approval process, and providing for other properly related matters.

2. Recommended motion: No action; receive and file.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
4. Department: Planning Telephone: 847-1144

5. Staff summary: None

6. Supporting materials: Note: Draft updates to the Storey County Master Plan are maintained
for public viewing and comment at www storeycounty.org/321/updates. The drafts are updated
regularly. Copies may also be requested from the Planning Department at 775.847.1144.

7. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
8. Legal review required:
District Attorney
9. Reviewed by:
= Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

10. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Medifications
Continued

gy r—
[ —

Agenda Item No. \6




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 11/03/15 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: First Reading of Ordinance No. 15-270, an ordirance extending
interim development regulations affecting Title 16 and 17 of the Storey County Code by |
extending through June 30, 2016 Title 16A establishing minimum interim requirements for ‘
subdivision map approvals and Title 17A by limiting master plan amendments for approvals of
planncd unit developments during the master plan approval process, and providing for other
properly related matters. The moratorium on subdivisions and planned unit developments will be
in effect until the comprehensive update to the Storey County Master Plan is adopted, or July 1,
2016, whichever comes first.

2. Recommended motion: (Take action at time of Second Reading in accordance with the following)
In conformance with the applicable federal, state, and county regulations, and the
recommendation for approval by staff, I (Commissioner) motion to approve Ordinance Number
15-270 extending interim development regulations (i.e., moratorium on subdivisions and planned
unit developments) affecting Title 16 and 17 of the Storey County Code by extending Title 16A
establishing minimum interim requirements for subdivision map approvals and Title 17A by
limiting master plan amendments for an approvals of planned unit developments during the
master plan approval process, and providing for other properly related matters.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osbome
Department: Planning Telephone: 847-1144
4. Staff summary: See Enclosure A: staff summary.

5. Supporting materials: See Enclosure B; Draft Ordinance No. 15-270.

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewe :
epartment Head Department Name:

Mumy Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
] Approved
[ Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

L W |
[ S —

Agenda Item No, ‘7



Enclosure A: Staff Summary for Request for Passage of Ordinance No, 13-270

It is the purpose of this ordinance to extend temporary residential development regulations and standards,
which limit the approval of subdivisions or planned unit developments (PUDs), and master plan
amendments for subdivisions or planned unit developments until the comprehensive update to the existing
Storey County Master Plan is completed and adopted, or July 1, 2016, whichever comes first. The
moratorivm on such residential development will ensure that the public interest in protecting the planning
process for the master plan furthers and balances with the private hardships that may result from the
imposition of controls; to ensure a uniform, orderly, and managed process by which development may
proceed concurrently with the master plan in a2 manner that complements the nature and extent of the
available resources, facilities and services; and to promote and protect the health, safety and general welfare
by contributing to the physical and economic well-being of the people by promoting adequate facilities and
services, and protecting Storey County’s economic bases, resources and character. The following types of
applications may be approved while the interim development guidelines are in effect: (a) approvals of
variances; (b) issuance of a building permil on an existing parcel; (¢) approval of parcel maps or divisions
into large parcels; and (d) approval of a special use permit other than for a planned unit development.

Enr:iclosure B: Praft Ordinance Neo. 15-270

Ordinance No. 15-270
Summary

An ordinance extending interim development regulations affecting titles 16 and 17
of the Storey County Code by creating title 16A establishing minimum
interim requirements for subdivision map approvals and
title 17A limiting master plan amendments for and approvals of planned unit developments
during the master plan approval process.

Title

An ordinance extending interim development regulations affecting titles 16 and 17
of the Storey County Code by creating title 16A establishing minimum interim requirements
for subdivision map approvals and title 17A limiting master plan amendments for and
approvals of planned unit developments during the master plan approval process, and
providing for other properly related matters.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:

SECTION I: Title 17 is amended to create title 1 7A as follows:

17A.02.020 Purpose.
It is the policy of the board of county commissioners that existing and future development

in Storey County will be guided by the master plan that provides for orderly development, and the
timely provision of facilities and services. This policy recognizes the need for and the public’s
interest in protecting the master plan process by controlling subdivision and other development
application processes to ensure that the master plan may be developed, revised or amended in an

orderly fashion,
The board finds and declares that Storey County would be affected by the premature




development of residential property during the master plan process.

The board further finds that a premature amendment to the master plan for a large
residential development or the subdivision of property for residential use during the revision of the
master plan may jeopardize the ability of the Storey County to ensure orderly development and
adequate provision of services and facilities, and that certain types of development initiated before
the master plan is revised may prevent the best possible development pattern and the county’s
ability to economically provide necessary services and facilities.

The board further finds that interim development controls and regulations, including
controls on the division of lands through subdivision maps and master plan amendments are
necessary to protect the planning process for the revision of the master plan.

It is the purpose of this ordinance to enact temporary development regulations and
standards, which limit the approval of subdivisions or planned unit development (PUDs) and
master plan amendments for subdivisions or planned unit developments, that expire on July 1,
2016, or on the adoption of the master plan whichever occurs first, to ensure that the public interest
in protecting the planning process for the master plan furthers and balances with the private
hardships that may result from the imposition of controls; to ensure a uniform, orderly, and
managed process by which development may proceed concurrently with the master planin a
manner that complements the nature and extent of the available resources, facilities and services;
and to promote and protect the health, safety and general welfare by contributing to the physical
and economic well-being of the people by promoting adequate facilities and services, and
protecting Storey County’s economic bases, resources and character.

The following types of applications may be approved while the interim development
guidelines are in effect:

A. Approvals of variances.

B. Issuance of a building permit on an existing parcel,

C. Approval of parcel maps or divisions into large parcels.

D. Approval of a special use permit other than one for a planned unit development.

17A.02.039 Application.

Notwithstanding any provisions of the Storey County Code to the contrary until July 1, 2016, or
the adoption of a revised master plan for Storey County, whichever occurs first, these interim
guidelines apply to all of Storey County except where real property is subject to an existing
development agreement (NRS 278.0201).

17A.03.080 Hearing.

Notwithstanding any provisions of the Storey County Code to the contrary until July 1, 2016, or
the adoption of a revised master plan for Storey County, whichever occurs first, the board must
hold a public hearing on the progress of the master plan within 6 months of the effective date of

this ordinance.

17A.03.110 Amendments.

The board may amend these regulations before July 1, 2016, or the adoption of the master
plan if it determines that one or more of the provisions is substantially detrimental to the welfare of
the Story County during the interim period and that the amendment will not jeopardize the purpose
of these regulations.

SECTION II: Title 16 is amended to create title 16A as follows:

Title 16A



Subdivision interim development regulations

16A.04.010 Purpose.
It is the policy of the board of county commissioners that existing and future development

in Storey County will be guided by the master plan that provides for orderly development, and the
timely provision of facilities and services. This policy recognizes the need for and the public’s
interest in protecting the master plan process by controlling subdivision and other development
application processes to ensure that the master plan may be developed, revised or amended in an
orderly fashion.

The board finds that a premature division of property during the revision of the master plan
may jeopardize the county’s ability to ensure orderly development and adequate provision of
services and facilities, and that certain types of development initiated before the master plan s
revised may prevent the best possible development pattern and the county’s ability to economically
provide necessary services and facilities.

The board further finds that interim development controls and regulations, including
controls on the division of lands through subdivision maps, and controls on other development
processes, are necessary to protect the planning process for the revision of the master plan.

16A.16.020 Approval process-planning commission.

Notwithstanding any provisions of the Storey County Code to the contrary until July 1,
2016, or the adoption of a revised master plan for Storey County, whichever occurs first, the
planning commission may not approve a tentative map for a subdivision or PUD that involves any
of the following:

A. The project requires the expansion or construction of any sewer plant or capacity.

B. The project results in the greater use of septic tanks or domestic wells in areas planned
for sewer or a community water system or than would be permitted for land uses authorized under
the existing mater plan.

C. The project results in a reduction of service level on impacted road segments and
intersections.

The approval of any tentative subdivision map or PUD by the planning commission must
be accompanied by a finding the no significant impact on ground water quality or quantity will
result from the proposed subdivision.

16A.16.030 Board action.

Notwithstanding any provisions of the Storey County Code to the contrary until July 1,
20186, or the adoption of a revised master plan for Storey County, whichever occurs first, the board
may not approve a tentative map for a subdivision that involves any of the following:

A. The project requires the expansion or construction of any sewer plant or capacity.

B. The project results in the greater use of septic tanks or domestic wells in areas planned
for sewer or a community water system or than would be permitted for land uses authorized under
the existing mater plan.

C. The project results in a reduction of service level on impacted road segments and

intersections.
The approval of any tentative subdivision map or PUD by the board must be accompanied

by a finding the no significant impact on ground water quality or quantity will result from the
proposed subdivision.




Proposed on

, 2015,

by Commissioner

Passed on , 2015,
Vote: Ayes: Commissioners
Nays: Commissioners
Absent Commissioners
Marshall McBride, Chair

Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Attest:

Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

This ordinance will become effective on , 2015,




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 11/03/15 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

t. Title: (Continued from 06/01/15 meeting) (Agenda Language included in Enclosure A)

2. Recommended motion: (Continue item until 01/19/16 beard meeting). Based on findings of fact
shown in Subsection 4.1 and the conditions of approval shown in Section 5 of this report,
and conformance with federal, state, and county regulations, and the recommendation for
approval by staff and the planning commission, I (Commissioner) motion to approve
Storey County Zone Map Amendment Application No. 2014-021 modifying the official
zoning map of Storey County to include the Forestry, Natural Resources, Public, and
Industrial-Commercial zones as presented by staff in this report.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Planning Telephone: 847-1144

4. Staff summary: Amendment of the Official Storey County Zoning Map as explained and
recommended in Staff Report No. 2014-021.

5. Supperting materials: Staff Report No. 2014-021 and exhibits provided at the 12/02/14 board
meeting and packet are available at the Planning Department at 775.847.1144.

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.
Funds Available: Fund: ' Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

Dastrict Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
¢/ Department Head Department Name:

ng;le’ounty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1 Approved [1] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. |8




Enclosure A: Agenda Language for Application No. 2014-021

(Continued from 06/01/15 board meeting) Discussion/Possible Action: Application No.
2014-021 by the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC., and Storey County on behalf of The Nature
Conservancy, LLC and the Union Pacific Railroad Company to amend the Official Storey County
Zoning Map. The amendments will apply regulatory zones to approximately 600 acres of land
located in McCarran, Nevada (River District near the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center) which was in
July of 2014 transferred from Washoe County to Storey County by means of boundary line
adjustment. The subject area is described approximately as portions of: Section 31 and 32,
Township 20 North, Range 22 East; Section 6, Township 19 North, Range 22 East; Section 36,
Township 20 North, Range 21 East; Sections 2 and 11, Township 19 North, Range 21 East; and
Section 1, Township 19 North, Range 21 East, all in the Mount Diablo Bascline and Meridian
(MDB&M). The specific zones and subject properties will be as follows: (a) F Forestry zoning will
be applied to land located at Assessor’s Parcel Numbers (APN) 004.161.98, 004.161.99,
004.162.01, and 004.162.02; (b) N-R Natural-Resources zoning will be applied to land located at
APNs 004.161.85, 004.161.86, 004.161.88, and 004.161.96; (¢) 1-C Industrial-Commercial zoning
will be applied to land located at APNs 005.121.01, 005,121.02, 005.121.03, 005.121.04, and
005.121.05; and (d) P Public will be applied to land located at 004.161.87, 004.161.89,
004.161.90, 004.161.91, 004.161.92, 004.161.93, 004.161.94, 004.161.95, and 004.161.97, all
within the approximate subject area described above. The purpose of the zone map amendment is
to apply zoning to newly acquired land in Storey County that is consistent with surrounding uses
and the Storey County Master Plan. Prior to their transfer into Storey County, the properties were
zoned in Washoe County as Agriculture, Medium Density Rural, Industrial, and Public
Infrastructure. Additional information including, but not limited to, reports and maps may be
obtained from the Planning Department at 775.847.1144 or planning(@storeycounty.org.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: |[{- R[5 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion; Approval

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966

4. Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting. A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to
Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: None
~ A District Attorney

X Depamen i Department Name: Community Development

Murﬁy Mnager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
{] Denied [ Continued

Agenda Item No.‘ q




Storey County @smmunitp Bebelopment
Business &

P O Box 526 + Virginia City NV 89440 » (775) 847-0966 « Fax (775) 847-0935 + buslic@storeycounty.org

To:

Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office October 26, 2015
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Please add the following item(s) to the November 3, 2015, COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

Storey County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code
requirements necessary to operate in the county:

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS

CHARONOZENRNNEHOAETOW R

ec:

RED-D-ARC, INC. — Contractor / 685A Lee Industrial Boulevard ~ Austell, GA (ind. equipment sales)
PANASONIC ENERGY OF N.A. — General / Electric Avenue (lithium-ion battery manufact) TRI
SUMMIT CONTRACTING, LLC — Contractor / 120 North Lime St ~ Lancaster, PA (insulation contractor)
SYSTEMS CONTRACTORS, INC. ~ Contractor / 701 South Carson Street ~ Carson City (steel erectors)
HIGH DESERT SURFACE PREP -- Contractor / 1885 Temple Hill Rd ~ Reno (concrete prep contractor)
SANKYQO USA, INC. - Contractor / 1555 Mittel Blvd ~ Wood Dale, IL (cargo handling svcs.)

STEP BY STEP — Home Business / 2321 Cartwright Road ~ VCH (foot care nurse — no public traffic)
OAKRIDGE INDUSTRIES, INC. — Contractor / 352 East Monterey ~ Pomona, CA (epoxy coatings)
SOLUM CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 10105 Indian Ridge ~ Reno (contractor)

VERITAS MANAGED SOLUTIONS, INC. — General / 5302 Greenside Drive ~ San Jose, CA (IT)

CMC STEEL FABRICATORS, INC. - Contractor / 2990 Fast Annadale ~ Fresno, CA (rebar cont)
INDUSTRIAL LOGISTICS — Contractor / 3868 Goni Road ~ Carson City (machinery transport, sales)

. MESA FIRE SERVICES, INC. — Contractor / 7442 Tahoe Basin Drive ~ Las Vegas (fire protection)

CARR ELECTRICAL TECH, INC. ~ Contractor / 2929 Quality Dr ~ Petersburg, VA (elect cont)
DESERT COMMERCIAL SWEEPING — Contractor / 5620 Madras St ~ Carson City (indust. sweeping)
JC ROOFING, INC, — Contractor / 10580 N McCarran ~ Reno (roofing contractor)

C & M CLEANING — Home Business / 137 D Street ~ Virginia City (cleaning service—no public traffic)
RYAN’S ROCK & HOE - Contractor / 274 North A Street ~ Virginia City (dirt hauling)

BI NUTRACEUTICALS, INC. — General / 625 Waltham Way #101 (milling botanicals) TRI
A-Z TRUCK MARINE AND RV — General / 3033 Waltham Way (repair, parts, access.) TRI
RICH DOSS, INC. — General / 201 Wild Horse Canyon Drive (transportation) MCC

Inspection Required

Chris Hood, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept. Commissioners” Office
Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Fritz Klingler, Fire Dept. Assessor’s Office




